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1.1 Introduction and Objectives

-

This study was commissioned by the Historic Buildings Preservation
Council and the Australian Heritage Commission. The brief required
important areas of North Fitzroy to be identified and specific
recommendations made as to the future conservation of North Fitzroy.
In addition, individual buildings and groups of buildings were to be
investigated with a view to possible protection using the provisions
of the Historic Buildings Act, the Town and Country Planning Act, and

the Australian Heritage Commission Act.

The purpose of this study is to undertake surveys and gatiier together
existing data regarding the architectural and historic nature of the
area, to analyse that information and to make recommendations asto how
the buildings and areas of particular historic and architectural

impcrtance may be preserved and enhanced.

The principal objectives of the study as outlined by the commissioning

bodics are:

i) to identify these buildings, groups of buildings and areas which
could be considered suitable for inclusion on the Historic
Buildings Register, the Register of the National Estate and for
designation wuder the provisions of Clauses 8 and 8B of the Town
and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule) ;

ii}  to ildentify those areas which should receive special consideration

by the City of TFitzroy.

NOTE: This study was commissioned in March, 1978. The survey work
was cdone 1in April-May, 1978 and a draft report released in July, 1978.

Tne report was edited and prepared for printing In November, 1979.

Subseguent to the preparation of tihe draft report, conservation guide-
lines have been prepared by the Fitzroy City Council. These originally
formed part of the draft report, but have been subsegquently expanded

and refined and now form a separate reference document.

1.2 Definition of Study Area

The study area includes all that area known as North Fitzroy bounded

by Alexandra Parade, Nicholson Street, Merri Creek, Queens Parade and

Smith Street. (Refer Map 1)
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1.3 Summary of Recommendations

1.3.1 Buildings Recommcnded for addition or retention on the Historic
Buildings Register.

{i) As a result of investigation and consideration cf the
relative merits of the buildings listed for investigation,
the following buildings are recommended for addition to
the Historic Buildings Reglster

House, 43 Alfrced Crescent - entire building.
National Bank,
460 Brunswick Street - building envelope.
Shop, 497 Brunswick Street - street facades,
Railway Sub Station, Brunswick Street (corncr Park Street)
(Note : this is a State owned building and is brought
to the attention of the Historic Buildings Council.)
House, 39 Kneen Street - building envelepe.
House, 77 McKean Street ~ facade and fenco.
"Dentonville™ House,
151 McKean Street - strecet facado, fence and
roct.
"Denton Hail"™, 151 McKean Strect- south-cast (front)
facade.
"Moss vVale®
225 McKean Strect - street facade and fonce.
Natlonal Bank, 270 Queens Parade- building onve leope.
ANZ Bank, 370 Queens Parade - building cnvelopo.

"Strome", Housce, 78 Rowe Street - building onvelope and intact
internal featurces.
01d Coleonists Homes,
Rushall Crescent - all pre-sccond world war
houses.
(It is recommended that a detaeiled study of this
complex be undertaken to clarify architectural merit
of individual buildings.)}
Hungarian Feformed Church,
121 st. tecorges Road - building envelopoe
Frost Office, St. CGeorges Foad - building envelope
{(Note: this is a Commonwealth owned building and is
Lrought to the attention of the Historie Buildings
Council,)

(il1] The following buildings are recommended for retention on the
Historic Buildings Register

House, 96 McKean Street.
Imiting Church, Nicholson Strecet.
York llouse, 131 St. Georges Road.

RSN




1.3.2 Summary of recommendations regarding all buildings investigated

KEY ; HBR

* Recommended for addition to the Historic Buildings Register
** Recommended for retention on the Historic Buildings Register

*GBAC Recommended to be brought to the attention of the Historic
Buildings Preservation Council and be referred to the
Government Buildings Advisory Committee

ENE

* Recommended for addition to the Register of the National Estate

** Recommended for retention on the ERegister of the National Estate

I&CPA

* Recommended for specification under Clause 8 of the Town and
Country Planning Act {Third Schedule)

R
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1.3.2 Summary of recommendations regarding all buildings investigated.

NAME ADDRESS HBR _RNE T & CPA
Alfred Crescent

%‘ ;;;se 19 Alfred Crescent *

| House 21 alfred Crescent *
House 41 Alfred Crescent *
House 43 Alfred Crescent * *k *
House 67 Alfred Crescent *
House 69 Alfred Crescent *
House 13/75 Alfred Crescent *
State School No.1490  Alfred Crescént *GRAC * *

Bennett Street

House 62 Bennett Street *

Birkenhead Street

"Jam Factory" 9 Birkenhead Street *

Brunswick Street

National Bank 460 Brunswick Street * * *
Shop 497 Brunswick Street * * *
Lord Newry Hotel 543 Brunswick Street *
House 591 Brunswick Street * % *
House 599 Brunswick Street * *
Railway Sub Station Brunswick Street (corner *GBAC * *

Park Street)

Delbridge Street

Housge 17 Delbridge Street * *

Edinburgh Gardens

Bandstand Edinburgh Sardens * *

Falconer Street

House &2 Falconer Street * *

f;.; Fitzroy Cricket ~3ub

Grandstand | ’ )
j- -~ Timber Gatehouse ) *
Brick Gatehouse Cnr. Brunswick Street and * *

Freeman Street

.
pAEEE.




1.3.2 Summary of recommendations regarding all buildings investigated {contd,

NAME ADDRESS HBR RNE T & CPA

Holden Strect

Former Moran & Cato

Shop 63-69 Holden Street *

St. Josephs School 106 Holden Street *
(octagonal
building)

Kneen Street

Houge 39 Kneen Street * * *

McKean Street

House 77 McKean Street * *

House 96 McKean Street *k * *

"Dentonville" 151 McKean Street * *k *

"Denton Hall" Rear of 151 McKean Street * * & *

House 177 McKean Street *

House 191 McKean Street * *

"Hatherlie"” 222 McKean Street * *

‘Cameron House' 223 McKean Street *

"Moss Vale" 225 McKean Street * * *

'Halesmere" 227 McKean Street *

Michael Street

House 124 Michael Street *

Nicholson Street

St. Brigids Roman

Catholic Church 377 Nichelson Streen *

Uniting Church Nicholson Street(Cnr. Church ** * % *

"Simpson's Terrace” ESOLSOG Nicholson Street *

State Savings Bank 720 Nicholson Street * *

Queens Parade

National Bank 270 Queens Parade * *% *

Fun Facteory 284 Queens Parade *

A.N.Z. Bank 370-372 Nueens Parade * ** *

Kingdem Cycle Works 376 Queens Parade *

6 ;né;v




1.3.2 Summary of recommendations regarding all buildings investigated (contd.)

. - NAME ADDRESS HBR RNE T & CPA
» Rae Street
Former Shop 123 Rae Street
Former Temperance Hall 270 Rae Street *k

Rowe Street

Terrace 16-20 Rowe Street *
House 35 Rowe Street
House 37 Rowe Street
¥Strome" 78 Rowe Street * *x

Rushall Crescent

Terrace 39/41 Rushall Crescent

0ld Colonists Homes Rushall Crescent * * %

Scotchmer Street

"Carnforth" 242 Scotchmer Street *

St. Gecrges Road

Hungarian Reform Church 121 St. Georges Road * * *
York House 131 St. Georges Road *H **
Church of Christ St. Georges Reoad *
"Gladstone Buildings" 169-187 St. Georges Road *
Post Office S5t. Georges Road

{cnr. Taplin Street) * **
Fire Station St. Georges Road *
Aberdeen Hotel 324 St. Georges Road )

Wocdside Street

LRI = ' TR
Fashoday" 21 Woodside Street

York Street

House 61 York Street **

: At .4.-. . 7
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1.3.4

Areas of special significance recommended for protection using the
provisions of Clause 8B of the Town and Country Planning Act (3rd
Schedule) : R

After consideration of the uniqueness of precincts or groups of
buildings in terms of architectural and historical importance,
the following areas of significance are proposed as appropriate
for protection by the provisions of Clause 8B of the Town and
Country Planning Act (3rd Schedule) (See map p. 26)

(These are not listed in order of importance.)

21 Queens Parade Precinct

A2 Rowe Street Precinct

A3 Newry Street Precinct

A4 McKean Street North Precinct
A5 FEdinburch Gardens Precinct
A6 01ld Colonists Homes Precinct
A7 Batman Street Precinct

A8 Kneen Street Precinct

A9 Edwards Place Precinct

A10 Delbridge Street Streetscape
All Scotchmer Street Streetscape

Areas and Streetscapes recommended to receive special consideration

by the Fitzroy City Council.

The follewing areas and streetscapes are proposed as appropriate
for special consideration by the Fitzroy City Ceouncil in development
control procedures :

{These are not listed in order of importance.)

Bl Brunswick Street South Precinct
B2 Coleman Street Precinct

B3 Brooks Crescent Precinct

B4 Brunswick Street North Precinct
B5 Scotchmer Street Precinct

B6 Best Street Precinct

B7 Park Street Precinct

B8 Bennett Street Precinct

B9 Delbridge Street Precinct

B10 Precinct adjoining 0ld Cclonists Homes
R11 Queens Parade Streetscape

B1l2 McKean Street Streetscape (1)
213 McKean Street Streetscape (2)
Bl4 McKean Street Streetscape ({3)
B15 Rae Street Streetscape (1)

Bleé Church Street Streetscape

Bl7 Rae Street Streetscape (2)

B18 Reid Street Streetscape (2)
Bl19 Rae Street Streetscape (3)

BZ0 Egremont Street

B21 Birkenhead Street

B22 Napier Street North Streetscape

I
IV, P




1.3.5 Areas recommended for listing on the Register of the National

Estate.

al
Ad
A5
Ab

Queens Parade Precinct
McKean Street North Precinct
Edinburgh Gardens Precinct
0ld Colonists Homes Precinct




1.4 Historical Background — The development of North Fitzroy

A

©

any conservation policy must be based on an understanding of the
characteristics of the area, and the characteristics of North Fitzroy
are somewhat elusive. It is not so early or so riddled with historic
associations, nor so picturesque or architecturally ambitious as areas
within the centremost ring of development. It has the broad govern-
ment established streets of South, West, North and East Melbourne, but |
less dense development along them. Its character in some ways approache)
that of suburbs much further out.

These indeterminate characteristics are not the result of accident. The
first settlement of Melbourne comprised a small proportion of half and |
gquarter acre allotments within a sizeable town reserve which would allow
for future expansion as well as space for public purposes. Much larger ]
allotments suitable for cultivaticn, typically from seventeen to twenty-s
five acres, were sold from 1839 outside this reserve, that is, north of |
Victoria Street and east of Hoddle Street~Punt Road. Subsequently the i
private subdivision of these blocks gave rise tc the narrow and unco-
ordinated streets of South Fitzroy, Collingwood, Richmond and South
Yarra., (Refer Fig(2))

The area north of Alexandra Farade was developed only much later; it
was subdivided by the government into larger alleotments fronting much
more generous streets, and most building in the area took place under
controls which had not been introduced in South Fitzroy until after muc
sub-standard building had already occurred. The other factor which cen
tributes to the special character of North Fitzroy is the somewhat unco
vincing arrangement of the street pattern in a plan which departs sub-
stantially from the north-scuth, east-west grid.

North Fitzroy was not entirely terra incognita in the earliest vears.
The line of the Heidelberg Road was followed by Octavius Browne and
others and was in 1838 rationalised inte the line of Smith Street (cne
of the few public roads reserved by the government in the first sales
of 1839} beyond which it soon resumed its characteristic diagonal coursg
The first settlement in the area was probably that of guarrymen, whose
allotments, then in an isolated pocket, were put up for sale by the
Crown in 1851 in a strip between the present Nicholson, Church and Rae
Streets and an east-west line somewhat to the north of Reid Street.
(Refer Fig (3))

There were other privately owned quarry allotments in Clifton Hill, and
near them the Melbourne Corporation Quarry. (See Fig{(l)) By the middle
1850's, the area which is now Carlton, included a collection of quarry j
holes worked by prisoners from the stockade just west of the Fitzroy |
boundary on the present line of Lee Street, as well as a number of
private quarries at Princes Hill, south of Brunswick Street and again
just west of the Fitzroy boundary at Nicholson Street. The early
character of North Fitzroy, therefore, was that of an open area,
probably fairly bleak, with the Heidelberg Road (now Queens Parade)
forming a diageonal boundary and carrying the most traffic; (See Fig {3U
a small colony of quarrymen established to the west and others outside 3
the boundary in the adjoining suburbs. :

The Weslevan Church site at the corner of Nicholson and Church Streets ¥
was later to be selected in recognition of the existing concentration 3
of quarrymen whereas the Anglicans and the Roman Catholics character-— 3
istically selected more prominent and potentially wvaluable sites on

. S
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geilly Street (Alexandra Parade) and the Heidelberg Road. By the
widdle 1850's, however, there were some other features making their
appearance. The government. subdivided Yillage of Northcote was already
4n existence above the loop -of the Merri Creek and the Plenty.Road, (or
High Street) branched off the Heidelberg Road to the point where the
sorthcote bridge was established. Here there was a toll bar and in
1855, twenty quarter acre allotments were sold at this point in the
plock pounded by Queens Pde., Rushall Crescent, McKean and Bremnand
gtreets. (Refer Fig.(4)) On these allotments were established two hotels,
the Scotch Thistle and the Northcote Arms, while at the other side of
the suburb there was another hotel about the junction of Scotchmer ancd
wicholson Streets which served the Princes Hill Quarry area.

1t was now that the Survey Department, revitalised under the direction
of Captain Andrew Clarke, began ambitious plans for the layout of the
whole suburb to be called "Marriville". These plans recognised the
diagonal of the Heidelberg Road and provided as 2 grand axis at right
angles to it, a street running diagonally from about the intersection
of Forest Street and Reilly Street (ARlexandra Parzde), Collingwood,

to the top corner of Fitzroy formed by Brunswick Road and Nicholson
gtreet. The line was a little way aouth-west of and parallel with the
present Delbridge Street. At the Collingwood end two circular spaces
were placed symmetrically about this axis, and ir Pitzroy two unusually
planned oblong spaces were strung along the axis itself. Undoubtedly
the concept underlying these developments was thz: of the contemporary
squares of Bloomsbury in London, though the more sxotic shapes may have
derived from Bath or elsewhere. A map compiled iz 1855 (“"Kearney's
Map® shows the proposed layout and a detail of t*isz map is shown on

the cover page to Part One of this report. (Refer Tic, (1)}

Like many similar proposals of this date, these Imaginative spaces were
abandoned, but the re-organisation of much of North Fitzroy conforming

to the Heidelberg Road axis is a feature which hez remained to this day.
The main reason for the change of plans must have Zeen the establishment
of the Yan Yean pipe track which has determined e lines of St. Georges
Road and introduced a further incompatible axis Istc the layout. {(Refer
Fig.4) It is still not clear exactly why the Ecinburgh Gardens acquired
their rather extraordinary shape.

The late 1850's saw other changes which affected <he area. South Fitzroy
““had already established itself as a separate munizizality, but the whole

- -7 area north of Reilly Street (Alexandra Parade) rema’ned within the
manicipality of Melbourne, more especially as ths Meibourne Corporation
Quarry was still located in clifton Hill. Folloving petitions in 18539,
Fitzroy was permitted in 1860 to annex 480 acres Zram the northern
residents which constitutes the greater part of e czresent North Fitzroy.
The original provisions of the Melbourne Buildin: 2c+, which controlled
standards in the southern portion, did not apply <o the northern part, but
it is believed that similar controls were placed zr. the area in the 1870's,
before much if any of the presently existing devzizrment had taken place.
This accounts for the high standard of building 2 The area. Shortly
after the annexation, in 1861, the Collingwood Geswcrks commenced oper-—
ations on the Alexandra Parade site and this estzcilshed one of the major
landmarks 3just outside the North Fitzroy bounda-r =z= well as an important
service to the developing suburb.

Development when it came, was to be unusually raz-<, and Garryowen Ssums
it up as follows :
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PLAN OF ALLOTMENTS IN NORTH FITZROY - detail showing first purchasé
Block bounded by Rushall Crescent, Plenty Road,
sold second (after the quaXk

from the Crown.
McKean Street and Brennand Street was
allotments) in 1855 with neighboring blocks sold in 1865/1875.
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“Tt was for a long time, surmised that building enterprise would never
penetrate to any extent beyond the sickly Reilly Street drain. This

" due northern region was the most unpleasant of the surroundings of
Melbourne, the cold north-wind in winter and the hot wind in summer,
produced climatic variations anything but agreeable. One was either
half-drowned or half-baked and between mud and dust and wet and heat,
you could hardly dream that homes and hearths could have an abiding
place there. 1In a comparatively short time, however, the aucticneer's
hammer knocked all such imaginings to pieces, the land was placed in
the market, and then, did not land jobbers reap a golden harvest? Tk
result, as now seen, is that gquite a town spramg up as If by magic,
and Fitzroy is fast being linked with Northcote and Brunswick"d

. Despite the somewhat surprising layout of the streets, they were nearly
"all laid out by the government at the standard genercus width of 1%
chains {30 metres). Almost the only exceptions are Brooks C. :scent

" and other streets subdivided privately through the o0ld quarry allotments.
- The next allotments to be sold were those along Queens Parade beginning
in 1865 at Rushall Crescent, adjoining the 1855 subdivision and extend-
-ing down, by 1869, to Alexandra Parade and Nicholson Street. The allot-
“ments between Brunswick and Nicholson Streets from Alexandra Parade
wnorth to the quarries were sold between 1867 and 1870. The remainder

of the suburb was mainly filled out from 1869 to 1875, except for the
strip between Park Street and Brunswick Road in 1877 and 1883,

Building on the allotments of course, tock much longer, but the majority
:was complete by the time of the depression of the 1890's. Some of the
characteristics of the buildings may be attributable to the nature of
the property cowners, more of whom were investors than owner builders.
MpSt prominent of all, was M. Moss, probably Mark Moss, the bocm period
"ipancier (of "Norwood", Brighton, fame) or Moton Moss who had earlier
wested heavily in Carlton and elsewhere. Moss's purchases included,
Kér example, the whole of the block bounded by Rushall Crescent,
Falconer, Michael and Rowe Streets, plus nearly the whole of the two
blocks in either side of Kneen Street, all in 1875. (Refer Fig.(4))
n addition he purchased nearly the whole of each of the three blocks
younded by Reid, Rae, Scotchmer and Fergie Streets, and Alfred Crescent,
between 1870 and 1875. Investors on a lesser scale included from 1864,
he builder John Falconer, who had been responsible for Falconer Terrace
South Fitzroy and whose name is commemorated in Falconer Street; and
.I. Ievers, Senior and Junior of the famous real estate firm.

ny of these buildings are of a higher than average quality, and though
ew of them possess any characteristics which would distinguish them as
emarkable in the larger Melbourne context or can be identified as the
Wwork of well-known architects of the time, there are certainly some dis~
%gctive local tendencies. There are a number of buildings, not a large
proportion of the total building stock, but featuring much more promin-
ly than in other suburbs, which are of a two-storeyed terrace house
gLOorm but which, instead of having an attached verandah and balcony roof,
e the main roof extending out over the balcony usually with the para-
t brought forward to the front line. Even more prominent are the
ceptionally good polychrome brick villas of Rowe Street and elsewhere
h may be attributed to the proximity of the Brunswick works of John
r Supplier of coloured bricks for such pioneering works of poly-
PR ome’ as the Independent Church in Collins Street, and allegedly the
irst manufacturer of 'fancy white bricks' in the colony.
‘E. Finn (“Garryowen")
:The Chronicles of Early Melbourne 1835-52, Melbourne 1888,
P.29
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PART TWO: CONSERVATION
AREAS AND STREETSCAPES




2.1 Introduction

.1

This section of the report identifies two categories of areas
within North Fitzroy. The first areas are those considered
suitable for designation as Areas of Special significance under
the provisions of Clause 8B of the Town and Country Planning
Act (Third Schedule), the second areas are those of lesser
importance that are not copsidered suitable for designation,
but which should receive consideration by the Fitzroy City

Council in development control procedures.

This section is intended to provide an cbijective survey of the
study area defined by the brief, and to specify areas and their

particular character and importance.

Ideally, most of North Fitzroy should be preserved and enhanced.-
By identifying these two categories of areas, it is not proposed
that the remaining areas be forgotten. Nor is it intended that
this approach to planning and protection of areas be seen as
piecemeal. Rather, the recommendations outlined in this section
of the report are an attempt (using current planning legislation
and paying regard to present day realities and pressures) to
identify those areas which stand out as being significant and

coherent in their own right.

Legislation for Protection of Conservation Areas and Streetscapé%
Under current legislation there are two sources of protection *
for environmental areas and streetscapes : the specification of
an area or streetscape under Clause 8B of the Town and Countxy
Planning Act (Third Schedule) : and limited protection provided
by the listing of an area or streetscape on the Register of

the National Estate. In the future it is possible that State

Government legislation providing protection for historic areas

may be introduced.

The only statutory mechanism currently existing that enables the:
retention of areas of special architectural and historical sig- A
nificance is that available under Clause BBof the Town and Coun
planning Act 1961, which enables a "Responsible Authority" e.q. é
local Council to propose an amendment to the Melbourne and

Metropolitan Planning Scheme,



Under the terXi= -# —lause 8B, the vpesponsible Authority" with the

aim of preser7iifs ~=2 character of an area of special significance,

can formulate =

—.ze=<1%.that can proiibit, restrict or regulate:

- the use of lazzs® .= the area }

- the developmer™ -= land in the ared

- the pullirg Zo¥%- removal, alteral ion, decoration, defacement of
any buildinz, - -7, site or objec! in such area,and

- requires ruilfiiE and works to harmonise in character and appear-
ance with adlzze™™ buildings or with the character of the area, and

_ in the case <f =& #rea of historicsl interest, requires
buildings arc #Wrss to conform to the former appearance of the
area at scme 5pec;fied period, including the specification of

materials, Co~w“<= finishes, to lw used in the external surfaces

The Clause states:

WPhe conservatissi wnd enhancement i the character of an area specifie.
as being of special significance Y prohibiting restricting or
regulating the Wit or developmen+ -*f land In the area and by prohibit-
ing restricting F requlating tie ttlling down removal alteration
decoration or dufacemcnt.of any ru:lding work site or object in such
area or by requiring buildings a:mi works tc harmonise in character
and appearancc with adjacent pui.i:1gs or with the character of the
area or (in the casc of an area ~: 'lstorical interest) to conform
to the Formor appearance of the zv at some specified period and
For such purposes specifying the -~:lerials colours and finishes +o
be used in the external walls of © :ldings or in the external
coverings of such walls.”

In Maldon Clausc 8B has been utilired and serves as an interest-

ing case study-. The Maldon Planninc icheme was prepared in 1973

and gazetted in October 1977, The rwanning Scheme is the first

statutory attempt in Victoria to ac-:<ve historic cecnservation

of a whole town. Under the scheme, 3¢ wWhole of the township

is specified as an area of special swwnificance under Clause 8B.

In Melbourne, the gawthorn City Cowm-:l, in conjunction with the

Melbourne Metropo:itad Board of Work: have prepared an amendment

to the Metropolitan rlanring Scheme 3¢3ignating St.James Park as

a conservation arsa. Thisz will be *~ first case in Melbourne
utilizing Clause =% in a residentiz> context. In June 1976
Clause 8B was utilizad to implement ¢ Interim Development Order

over the central ~aziness district of Melbourne. Other municipal-




ities in Melbourne, such as the City of South Melbourhe are

pressing for the use of this planning tool for the protectio

areas of significance.

Clause 8B provides for protection of areas through the use of?

planning controls. These are administered under the Planning?

Scheme by the responsible authority, in this case the City
of Fitzroy.

b

i
3

Iocal Development -Schemes

The proposed legislation for Local Development Schemes, to be 3
included in the Town & Country Planning Amendment Act, will eﬂ;;
the responsible authority to establish a second tier of plannjh
controls, with detailed planning objectives. These could incdi
orate and implement the detailed policies, guidelines and deméL}

control schedules as recommended by this study.

The Register of the Natianal Estate

The Australian Heritage Commission, a statutory authority
established under the Australian Heritage Commission Act, 1975}

tha Government's policy advisory and administrative body respof;

for the National Estate. The National Estate is defined in thé

i
legislation as: 3

'those places, being components of the natural environment'of:1
Australia, that have aesthetic, scientific or social significaﬁm

or other special value for future generations, as well as for tH

present community.'

The Register of the National Estate is an inventory of the

significant parts of the cultural and natural environment of
Australia.

In this study, the most significant environmental areas recowfﬁ
ed for possible protection using the provisions of Clause 8B f
and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule) are also recommended §
listing on the Register of the Natiocnal Estate.

If an area is listed on the Register of the National Estate,
it is merely a recognition of the National Estate value of thfg

place. Unless the area in question is Commonwealth property Q

Crown land, the listing has no legal constraints.

20




9.2 Area Survey Method

2.2.1 Priority A Areas
S These represent those areas within North Fitzroy that are con-

sidered by the consultants to be of sufficient merit to be
considered for protection by the provisions of Clause EB of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule). The main objective
of designating an area one of "special significance” in this study
js to promote the preservation, re-establishment and enhancement
of the Victorian and Edwardian character of North Fitzroy.
significant early twentieth century buildings of a later date are

noted where they are felt to be of interest within the context of

the area.

Each Priority A area has been described in the fellowing form:

Boundary Definition: the boundaries of each area are delineated.

Individual maps of only three "A" areas have been included as an
illustration.
Area Description: this lists the items that contribute to the

character of the area and thus provides the basis for the objectives

of the area.

Building Schedule: a building schedule has been undertaken for every

contributery kuilding within these areas, Where a building con-
tributes to the character of the area, the street number is listed
.and intact and contributory building components noted. Such build-
ing components include:

building facade and material, reoofing material, chimneys,
-.decorative elements (e.g. iron work, timber fretwork) intact

shopfronts and signs, fences, ather components.

Buildings whose scale and form contribute to the character of
lthe area but have no intact building compcnents, are listed by
number only. Where a building does not contribute to the specific

character of the area, the building is not listed.

No attempt is made to discuss the historical development of each
of the designated areas, nor are descriptions provided of the

‘building interiors, or of exteriors not visible from the street.

 éase Studies

Areas Al, A2 and A3 have been considered in greater detail to

.Berve as case studies for the other A and, where applicable, B
areas,

21
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Al, Queens Parade, has been chosen as an example of a commercia]
strip. The cbjectives formulated for this area serve as a mode]

and are applicable to other commercial strips in North Fitzroy.

A2, Rowe Street, is an example of a wide street with substantial
detached and semi-detached houses. The objectives formulated
for this area serve as a model for other residential areas of

similar character.

A3, Newry Street, is an example of an area with consistent 12th
century single storey row houses. The cbjectives formulated
for this area serve as a model for other residential areas of .

similar character.

Maps and sketches of the above three areas are included to visual

convey the character of the areas.

There are nine priority A areas (Al-A9) and two priority A street
scapes (Al0Q,All}. These are marked con Map 2. In the consultant"
opinion there are no areas or streetscapes north of Park Street

worthy of an A rating.

Priority B Areas

These represent those areas in North Fitzroy which are considered
of insufficient importance to be protected by the provisions of
Clause 8B of the Town and Country Planning Act, but should receiv

special attention and consideration by the Fitzroy City Council.’

The main objective of these areas is to promote the preservation
re-establishment and enhancement of the Victorian and Edwardian

character of the area.

The report ocutlines the following information for each B area.

(i) boundary definition,
(ii) a description of the character of the area,

(iii) contributory buildings and elements -~
These are scheduled for only two B areas:

Bl {Brunswick Street, scuth precinct), and

B1ll (Queens Parade Streetscape).

22
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Buildings are scheduled in these two commercial precincts

to clarify those buildings and building elements which in

the consultant's opinion are worthy of retention.

There are 10 priority B Areas (Bl-Bl0). To avoid confusion

these are marked on the accompanying map in a clockwise
direction, beginning with area Bl (Brunswick Street, south
precinct)at the bottom of the map. There are 12 priority B Street-
scapes (B11-B22). These are also marked on the accompanyi:.s

map in a clockwise direction, beginning with streetscare Bll

(Queens Parade, Streetscape).

In the consultant's opinion there are no areas or streetscapes

north of Park Street worthy of B rating.




_

2.2.3. Area Selection Criteria

The following criteria form the basis for the selection of areas !
of significance,

(i) ARCHITECTURAL IMPORTANCE:
a) Architectural Similarity -

- groups of buildings of specific style or building
material which read as a coherent group.

- groups of buildings with continuous height,
verandah lines and/or setback,

~ groups of buildings of similar function with
compatible building elements {(e.g. groups of shops).

- groups of buildings of architectural merit.

b) Architectural Diversity -

- groups of buildings which display a variety of
styles or building materials with some degree of
architectural merit, which combine to form a
coherent group.

(ii) HISTORICAL IMPORTANCE:

- nature and early date of subdivision.

- association with social events or functions.

~ association with particular people or person.

(iii} STREET CHARACTER:

The above criteria are reinforced by the following stree
components -

- established trees,
- street width (wide, narrow, curved).

~ gtreet vistas (relationship to landmarks, terminal
views).

~ street materials - road surfacing, pavements, lawn
strips, gutters.

- street furniture - street lamps, signs.
-~ fences,
~ relationship to open space,

- verandahs.

s




{iv) SUBDIVISION PATTERNS:

- unusual street layout {e.g. circuses, curved street
patterns, changing street width). This is particularly
relevant to Melbourne, which is basically a grid
layout street pattern.

) TOPOGRAPHY :

- the influence of natural features (e.g. hills, creeks
rocky escarpments) on the urban street pattern and
building type. -

The areas and streetscapes surveyed are then categorised
into the following groups:

A Those areas which display one outstanding criterion or
display some or many of the abkove criteria. These
areas will be defined, the contributory buildings
and building elements recorded, a character description
of the area outlined, anéd the area recommended for
possible protection under Clause 8B of the Town and
Country Planning aAct.

B Those areas which are considered less significant and
coherent than & above, but which contribute to the
character of North Fitzroy. These areas will be
defined for the Fitzroy Council.

25
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: nservati‘m Areas:

\1 Queens Parade Precinct

poundary Definition

on North side of Queens Parade between National Bank (270 Queens Pde,
yner pelbridge Street) and 376 Queens Parade, north of Michael Street.
tthin this area the following consistent streetscapes were noted:

and two storey shops 270 - 294 Queens Parade.

storey shops 308 ~ 322 Queens Parade.

» storey and single storey shops 336 - 356 Queens Parade.
and two storey shops 370, 376 Queens Parade.

§i) Area Description

t is believed that the significance of the area derives from :

The two bank buildings Ne. 270 Queens Parade to the west and
No. 370 Queens Parade to the east which define the ends of the
precinct and frame the mostly two storey shop buildings between.

The consistency ©f height, setback and'building form, being
predominantly two storey with rendered masonry facades, built
to the boundary.

The intactness and diversity of 19th and early 20th Century
facades above the verandah line providing a variety of Victorian
and Edwardian window and decorative elements. The continuity of
parapets and pediments of first floor level is accentuated by the
consistent wverandah form.

- The remaining 19th Century cast iron column supported verandahs

which provide & sense of scale and enclosure to the footpath as
well as continuing the proportions of the building facade.

e. The established street trees which provide contrast and shade against
the building facades as well as extending the enclosure of the
footpath.

(iii) Building Schedule

The following buildings and their particular elements are considered to
contribute to the character of the area
Queens Parade - north west side

270 facade, cement render, with bluestone plinth, parapet, balustrade,

decorative cast iron.

{Delbridge Street- cross street)

. 280 verandah and decorative cast iron, parapet.
282 verandah and deccorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet
284

facade, red brick cement render, and trim, signwriting on side
walls,

facade, parapet.

286

27
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Al Queens Parade Precinct (covm.)

288 verandah, facade, parapet.
290 facade, cement render, parapet.
292-4 facade, cement render, parapat.
298 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render, ., part of
timber profile shop front, parapet.
300~-2 verandah and decorative cast iron, parapet.
308 verandah and decorative cast iron facade, cement render, , parapet.
310 verandah and decorative cast iron facade, (boarded over), cement
render, parapet
312 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
314 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
stucco trim, parapet.
316 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
318 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render, ¥
320 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render, ”%
parapet. &
322 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render, %
parapet. ':
330 facade, cement render, parapet. u

{Michael Street - erpss street)

336 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
338 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
340 verandah and decoxrative cast ircon, parapet.
342 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
344 facade, cement render , parapet.
346 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render, -
parapet. :
348 verandah and decorative cast iron, facade, cement render,
parapet.
350 facade, cement render, parapet.
352 facade, cement render, parapet.
354 facade, cement render, parapet.
, 356 facade, cement render, parapet.
] 362 facade, cement render, parapet.
‘ 370 facade, red brick, cement render, trim, slate roof, dormers,
high pitched roof.
376 facade, cement render, timber profile shop front, parapet.
A
#
T
i
3
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Al QUEENS PARADE
Area Description

The S.gnificance of the area derives from:

(a) the two bank buildings neo.270 Queens
Parade to the west and no.370 Queens
Parade to the east which define the ends
of the precinct and frame the mostly two
storey shop buildings between.

(bYthe consistency of height, setback and
building form, being predominantly two
storey with rendered facades, built to
the boundary.

{c}the intactness and diversity of 19th and
early 20th Century facades above the
verandah line providing a variety of
Victorian and Edwardian window and decor-
ative elements. The continuity of parapets
and pediments of first floor level is
accentuated by the consistent veranday forn

(d}the remaining 19th Century cast iron columr
supported verandahs which provide a sense
of scale and enclosure to the footpath as
well as continuing the proportions of the
building facade.

{e)the established street trees which provide
contrast and shade against the building
facades as well as extending the enclosure
of the footpath.

_Objectives

1.To conserve and enhance the street character
of the specified period wherever practicable

PRI OES ST, VISTA | TesewiT 100
FRONA CONT ! ay OUS SeACEY
ASVITION TO LARETE ST TTPES | 184S
TS

A\

T STORSt SHOP (MO, 3 T4)

CONT i L 11046 HT + Scm e AS

WL AL VAT, LIWAT O Atasas 107 E.
Cai/ I I REY AON -~ CorTIUBUTICT

[ 2 P, WW;W!&W
OF wirPow) FREPURTIONS &TC.

MISHABL ST, ST ' Trarr S Tion
Faohd Loy, EVESLY S e
TO RS Of TYPUT  HECEITTS | FTTACKS!

w5

CUBRERS Uil DOM AT

AUETNE ArArE goaeas (a0 3 o
PEC1ALS G TmRA Er R
IFF FEEC{rCT 7
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2.To retain buildings of the specified period.

3.70 maintain/restore the external elements
of contributory buildings in/to their 4
original condition. P BT (Mo 110) g -

4_.To ensure that infill buildings or VfPMG*uuthiSND.muﬂFAitnvsv
alterations to existing buildings shall L ’
i) be compatible in scale and character
with contributory buildings and ii) main-
tain the visual and environmental amenity
of the area. :

5.70 promote the 19th Century character of
shopfronts with recessed entry.

6.To promote the 19th Century character of
a pavement covered with a post supported
verandah.

7.To ensure that surface materials/colours
wisible from the street used in infill

ney
CONTAIBATONY
NON - CONTRIBLTOMT

S D D SRS A
EXTENT orF PABCINCT

HUOPERE Orta; Lol Powa, wNvTEY
OTHMTR v i  + L ATORET BN

buildings or alterations are compatible - i ; ks
with those of the specified period. ; y P /I\ .
N . . T EN Leotrn Ll + PO ESTRIAN ) aidd ror 333;
B,To ensure Fhat signs attached‘to bu%lsltgs - o St ofF TRCEE + STIECET i rxop s .
in commercial areas be compatible wit e ‘ \ ARt TTL Al .9 TH Porom coLonmiy aoep FACiopo atr ey
WALAANAATTL POV DIMNE Wislint ¢ PG

character of the specified period.
9.To ensure that service meters, switchboards i
etc. be located to minimise intrusion.
10 To conserve and enhance the 19th Century
character of public spaces wherever
practicable. !

A AAIAL AL LIS TEASTT

PRYSIOAL GACLALrtll, M. LBTR
r h ’] P ErCLcA Al oF 0Tt roSTO

paryl Jackson Evan Walker Architects P L




A2 Rowe Street Precinct

(i) Boundary Definition

Area on east and west of Rowe Street along the full length from
- 1-127 Rowe Street, and including 74 - 76 Michael Street and 63
:.Delbridge street. Within this area the following streetscapes

'were noted:

2 - 20 Rowe Street (east side)
27 - 39 Rowe Street (west sice)
87 - 127 Rowe Street (west side)

(ii) Area Definition

Tt is believed that the significance of the area derives from :

a. The wide flat street enclosed on both sides by predominantly
19th Century single and double storey dwellings, sloping to
its western end with a view to the Edinburgh Gardens.

b. The diversity of height, setback and forms of buildings,these
being primarily dwellings, either single storey terrace and
detached villas or larger two storey terraces and houses.

C. The intactness of the majority of Victorian and Edwardian
buildings and retention of polychrome brickwork, decorative
elements, chimneys, wverandahs, balconies and fences.

d. The diversity of front garden sizes, with some houses built
almost to the street, others with deep front and side gardens.

Several formal gardens remain.

(iii) Building Schedule

The following buildings and particular elements are considered to contribute
to the character of the area.

Rowe Street . north west side

1 facade, balcony, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron.

3 facade, verandah. )

5 facade, polychrome brickwork,verandah, galvanised iron roof,
decorative cast iron, verandah tiling.

7 facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
decorative cast iron, fence, verandah tiling.

2 facade, parapet, fence

11 facade, cement rendered, verandah, parapet, decorative cast iron
fence, verandah tiling.

13 facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
deccrative cast iron.

15 facade, slate roof, decorative cast iron, verandah tiling.

17 facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, decorative cast iron,
verandah tiling.

19 *acade, pelychrome brick, decorative cast iron, verandah tiling.

23 ‘Delbridge Street- cross street)

facade, polyclrome brickwork, verandah, decorative cast iron,
verandah tiling.
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Rowe Street Precinct (comm.)

facade, polychrome brick, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
decorative cast iron, verandah tiling. o
facade, slate roof, decorative cast iron, verandah tiling.
facade, polychrome brickwork, part of fence.

facade, polychrome brickwork, wverandah, chimney.

facade, polychrome brickwork, slate, chimney, fence, verandah
and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney,
decorative cast iron, fence, verandah and path tiling.
facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, decorative cast iron,
verandah and path tiling, fence.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, decorative
cast iron, verandah tiling.

verandah, verandah tiling.

facade, verandah, verandah tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, chimney, decorative cast iron.

Michael Street - cross street)

facade, cement render, parapet, chimney

facade, verandah, parapet, part of fence, verandah and path
tiling.

verandah, chimney.

verandah, chimney.

verandah, part parapet, decorative cast iron, stucco trim.
verandah, decorative cast iron,stucco trim.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
chimney, fence, garden.

slate roof.

facade, verandah, slate roof, chimney.

contributory

facade, wverandah, slate roof, decorative cast iron, verandah
and path tiling, fence.

facade, polychrome brickwork, chimney, decorative cast iron,
fence, verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, chimney, decorative cast iron,
fence, verandah and path tiling.

. facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof, chimney, decorative

cast iron, fence, verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roocf, chimney, decorative
cast iron, fence, verandah and path tiling.

facade, verandah, galvanised iron roof, chimney, fence, verandah
and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney,
verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney,
decorative cast iron, path tiling.

contributory. '

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney,
decorative cast iron.

contributory.

facade, cement render, verandah, parapet, decorative cast iron,
verandah tiling.

facade, verandah, galvanised iron roof, cast iron column,verandah
tiling.

facade, verandah, galvanised iron roof, chimney, decorative cast
iron.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
chimney, decorative cast iron, verandah and path tiling.

dny
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A2 Rowe Street Precinct (conm.)

{ belbridge Street - cross street)

—

facade, polychrome brickwork, wverandah, slate, chimney, verandah
and path tiling. _ ‘

facade, cement render, balcony, chimney, decorative cast iron,
verandah and path tiling. _

facade, cement render, slate roof, chinmney.

(Rushall Crescent)

Rowe Street - south east side

fence, verandah and path tiling

contributory

facade, cement render, verandah, parapet, decorative cast
iron, verandah tiling.

facade, weatherboard, verandah, freted timber, decorative cast
iron, verandah tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, balcony, parapet, decorative cast .
iron, verandah tiling, fence. {
facade, cement render, balcony, parapet, decorative cast iron,
fence.

facade, polychrome brick, part verandah, parapet, path and
verandah tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, chimney, decorative cast
iron, garden, verandah and path tiling.

facade, cement render, balcony, parapet, stucco trim, fence,
verandah and path tiling.

facade, cement render, balcony, parapet, stucco trim, fence,
verandah and path tiling.

facade, cement render, balcony, parapet, stucco trim, fence,
verandah tiling.

facade, cement render, . parapet, galvanised iron roof, chimney.
facade, polychrome brickwork, balcony, parapet, decorative cast
iron, verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, balcony, parapet, decorative cast
iron, verandah and path paving, fence.

facade, cement render, balcony, parapet, decorative cast iron.
verandah, galvanised iron roof, decorative cast iron, fence, path
and verandah tiling.

facade, verandah, slate rocf, chimney, decorative cast iron, fence.
verandah, galvanised iron roof, chimney, decorative cast iron, fence.
verandah, chimney, decorative cast iron, fence.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, chimney, decorative cast
iron, fence, verandah tiling.

contributory

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
fence.

facade, cement render, verandah, parapet, chimney, fence.
verandah, slate roof, decorative cast iron. ' 3
facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney, freted j
timber, decorative cast iron, verandah tiling.
contributory

Michael Street - cross street)

contributory

facade, weatherboard, verandah, galvanised iron roof, chimney
facade, cement render, verandah, galvanised iron rocof, chimney,
decorative cast iron, wverandah and path tiling.
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B Rowe Street Precinet (cowm.)

cast iron.
%erandah tiling.

tiling, parapet.
contributory

verandah tiling.
tiling.
contributory

facade, verandah, fence.

. facade, verandah, verandah tiling.

~facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney
‘decorative cast iron, verandah tiling. ’
facade, polychrome brickwork, wverandah, slate roof, chimney
facade, verandah, slate roof. ’
. facade, verandah, slate rocf, chimney, decorative cast iron
“verandah tiling. !

iRushall Crescent - cross street)

33

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, decorative
Facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate, chimney, path and

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, chimney, path and verandah

facade, polychrome brickwork, balcony, parapet, decorative cast iron
r

facaée, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney, verandah
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A2 ROWE STREET
Area Description
The significance of the area derives from:
“ {a)the wide flat street enclosed on both
sides by predominantly 19th Century
single and double storey dwellings,
sloping to its western end with a view
Lip to Edinburgh Gardens.
: (b)the diversity of height, setback and
forms of buildings, these being primar-

" ily dwellings, either single storey
‘ CONBISTENT SETAMCK, IS CONSISTENT SETRNCAK X
STORET (HE16HT 'uham‘. VARNIANG HHEHTE C19TH ‘ terrace and detached villas or larger
(:::) o Hve® TPt . | '

two storey terraces and houses.

{c}the intactness of the majority of
Victorian and Edwardian buildings and
retention of polychrome brickwork,
decorative elements, chimneys, verandah,
balconies and fences.

(d)the diversity of front garden sizes,
with some houses built almost to the
street, others with deep front and side
gardens. Several formal gardens remain.

C o L - ) i ‘ AL Tk h g Objectives
' ' o < Nz 3 z ¥ 1.To conserve and enhance the street

reT oz &8T.° character of the specified period where-

CONT PUBUTONY = o o 20 3o 4-:3 5« ever practicable.

NOB ~CONTRIBLITEAT | ) Ks RATTASE § 2.To retain buildings of the specified period

. 31.To maintain/restore the external elements
of contributory buildings in/to their
original condition.

4.To ensure that infill buildings or
alterations to existing buildings shall
i} be compatible in scale and character
with contributory buildings and ii) main-
tair the visual and environmental amenity
of the area.

5.Tc ensure that surface materials/colours
visible from the street used in infill
buildings or alterations are compatible
with those of the specified period.

6.Tc ensure that service meters, switch-
boards etc. be located to minimise
intrusion.

7.To re-establish the character of front
and where applicable side gardens of the
designated period.

8.To conserve and enhance the 19th Century
character of public spaces wherever
practicable.

[

MICHAEL

ECANCT

ROOP PLANES { C1HmAeE
PRON Y SENPE OF PUPTH -




A3 Newry Street Precinct

Afi) Boundary Definition

,irea on North and South side of Newry Street from 56 - 109 Newry Street
'kbetween Brunswick & Napier Sts.)} Within this area the following street-
‘gcapes were noted:

5 ~ 109 Newry Street. (North side)
‘mp ~ 108 Newry Street. (South side)

Area Description

is believed that the significance of the area derives from:

The wide street, enclosed on both sides by unbroken lines of
intact 19th century single storey row houses.

Groups of row houses having consistent height, setback, window
proportions,verandah and parapet lines,rcof forms,and facade
materials.

Within the overall theme of consistency, 2 gqroups provide
variations

i. the middle group on the north side (nos. 77 - 892) which
introduce a variety of setbacks and building forms, side
gardens and a walkway.

ii. The group of 2 houses on the north east corner of Napier
Street (nos 107-92) with staggered setbacks revealing
4 side wallg.

(1i1) Building Schedule

'g“following buildings and particular elements are considered to contribute
the character of the area.

Newry Street - north side

 parapet.
facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, verandah
tiling.
facade, red brick, verandah, parapet, chimney, verandah tiling.
contributory.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative
cast iron.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron,

facade, parapet.

facade, parapet.

facade, red brick, verandah, parapet chimney, decorative cast iron.

35

Y
v,




A3 Newry Street Precinct (cowm.

77
79
81
83
85
87
91

93
95

97
29

101
103
105

107
109

56
58

60
62
64
{219)
70
72

74

- facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, slate roof, chimney,
decorative cast iron.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, wverandah tiling.

facade, weatherboard, verandah, chimney, timber fretwork,

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative
cast iron.

facade, timber ashlar block, verandah, galvanised iron roof,
chimney, decorative cast iron, garden.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, verandah
tiling.

verandah, parapet, chimney, verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron,
verandah and path tiling.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron, path tiling.
facade, polychrome brickwork, werandah, chimney, parapet, decorative
cast iron, verandah and path tiling.

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron, verandah
and path tiling.

polychrome brick, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron,
verandah tiling.

facade, verandah, chimney, parapet, decorative cast iron

parapet, chimney.

facade, polychrome brickwork, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron,
verandah tiling,

Newry Street - south side

facade, parapet chimney,

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative
cast iron,

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, deccorative cast iron.

facade, timber ashlar block, verandah, galvanised iron roof, decorative
cast iron, timber verandah (deck).

facade, timber ashlar block, verandah, galvanised iron roof, cast iron
column, timber verandah (deck).

facade, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron, stucco trim,
fence.

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative
cast iron, stucco trim, fence, verandah and path tiling

facade, polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative
cast iron, stucco trim, part fence, verandah and path tiling.

facade, polychrome brickwork, wverandah, parapet, chimney, fence,
verandah and path tiling.

verandah, parapet, chimney, fence, verandah and path tiling.

verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron.

facade, verandah, iparapet, chimney, decorative cast iron.

verandah, parapet, chimney.

verandah, parapet, chimney,

parapet.
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“po;ychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, fence,

“and path tiling.

‘verandah, parapet, chimney, verandah and path tiling,
'polychrome brickwork, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron,

verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative cast iron, wverandah tiling.
wpolychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney, decorative

on, varandah tiling.
- polychrome brickwork, verandah, parapet, chimney.
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yea Descrj_ ntion

he signigicance of the area derives from:

tla) the wide street, enclosed on both sides

- py unbroken lines of intact 19th

. Century single storey row houses,

(p)groups of row houses having consistent
height, setback, window proportions,
yerandah and parapet lines, roof forms,

.. and facade materials.

&é)the two sub-groups which provide some

variations to (b} above.

i. the middle group on the north side

(nos. 77-89) which introduce a

T . mset-’an‘.“s ' variety of setbacks and building
MIDPLE & Row P/ vARIBTY ) forms, side gardens and a walkway.
FETRPAS

] !i._-;....ulllli.

- i OF Treers . ii.the group of two houses on the north
faw'rwm-rroﬁmlnc.uf-rr ‘ﬁ Pu e Tuahep BY VOBSTRTION/. west corner of Napier Street (nos. -
CATUETY HovsE Trres SATLDEN FETUNES Aol 107-109} with staggered setbacks
revealing side walls.

$:ne¢#'n-un

g & _:

.To conserve and enhance the street
character of the specifisd period where-
ever practicable.

$2.To retain buildings of the specified

§; period.

f?.To maintain/restore the external elements
¥ of contributory buildings in/to their
 original condition.

.To ensure that infill buildings or
alterations to existing buildings shall
i) be compatible in scale and character
with contributory buildings and ii) main-
tain the visual and environmental amenity
of the area.

.To ensure that surface materials/colours
; visible from the street used in infill
%%7 . buildings or alterations are compatible
« with those of the specified period.

V§.To ensure that service meters, switch-

! boards etc. be located to minimise
intrusion.
~7.To re-establish the character of front
¢ and where applicable side gardens of the
-1 designated period.

:8.To conserve and enhance the 19th Century
character of public spaces wherever
Practicable.

?aryl Jackson Evan Walker Architects P/L
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(1)

(ii)

A4 McKean Street North Precinct

Boundary definition:

Area on the east and west of McKean Street from 207-252

McKean Street (between Michael Street and Rushall Crescent).

Within this area, the following streetscapes were noted :
Presbyterian Methodist Church - 250 McKean Street (east side)

207-227 McKean Street (west side)
249-251 McKean Street (west side)

Area description:

The significance of the area derives from:

(a) the substantial number of houses of architectural and

historical interest

(b} the scale and generally intact nature of the two storey
terraces broken by one storey houses of complimentary
design and material
{c) the variety of the building set backs created by the
oblique shaped blocks
{(d) the curve of the street which creates a closing vista to
the church when viewed from the north and a vista closed
by substantial houses when viewed from the south
{e) the established street trees.
(iii)  Building Schedule
The following buildings are considered to contribute to the
character of the area : H
MeKean Street - east side 1
Presbyterian Church - facade, patterned face brickwork and ﬁ
bluestone footings, slate roof. N
: i
214  facade, cast iron e
216 facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof, fence 3{',
218,220 facade, pclychrome brickwork, cement render e 1.
finish to parapet, cast iron, fence ﬁ
224 facade (except for verandah enclosure), polychrome brick b
work, cement; repnder finish to parapet, cast iron,
fence, intact side wing
228,230 facade, cast iron, fence
236 facade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron
238 facade, face brickwork, terracotta tiles and shingles,
timber fretwork
240 contributory
242,244 facade, polychrome bhrickwork, cast iran
248, 250 contributory
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A4 McKean Street North Precinct (cowm.)

McKean Street - west Side

207 facade, cast iron, fence

209, .211 facade ({verandah altered), fence

213 contributory .

215 facade, cast iron, appropriate colour scheme, fence ,;

215 facade, cement render finish, slate rcof, i
~cast iron :

275 facade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron, fence

227 facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof, chimneys,

cast iron
241, 243, slate roof, some cast iron, intact fence to 245

245
- 249 facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof, chimneys,
cast iron
251 facade, slate roof, cast ircn

A5 Alfred Crescent Precinct

(1) Boundary definition

Area covering all of Alfred Crescent (nos. 1 - 177},
Edinburgh Gardens, Fitzroy Cricket Club, Freeman Street
(nos. 56-74), Brunswick Street {nos. 579-641),

$t. Georges PRoad{nos. 107-187). Within this area the
following streetscapes were noted

579-529, 609-619, 623-631, 637-641 Brunswick Street
151-159, 165-187 St. Georges Read

17-79 Alfred Crescent

105-115 Alfred Crescent

56-66 Freeman Street

{(ii) Area description

The significance of the area derives from:

{a) The large cpen space of Edinburgh Gardens with established
trees and garden furniture (see below for schedule of
garden furniture),

(b} The curve of BAalfred Crescent which creates a closing
vista contrasting against the foliage of the gardens.

{c} The substantial number of individual buildings of
historical or architectural interest - these include
single and two storey terraces and detached houses, three
churches , the state school, shops and other commercial
premises.

(d) The vista from the elevated position of the Cricket Club
grandstand across to the upper facades of the terraces
along Freeman Street and Brunswick Street.

(e) The Cricket Club and assoclated gateways (see separate
discussion) which provide a point of interest within the

garden complex.
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A]fred Crescent Precinct (covm.)

.Building schedule

The following buildings are considered to contribute to the

..character of the area : ;

Crescent - north side

contributory |
facade, timber fretwork and decorative cast iron

- facade, slate roof, decorative cast iron
Y - facade, slate roof, chimney, decorative cast iron, fence
s partially intact . H
-4 facade, decorative cast iron
' facade, decorative cast iron
th pay Adventist Church
. -facade, pelychrome brickwork, slate roof, decorative
cast iron, tiled path and verandah floor, chimney, fence
facade, polychrome brickwork, slate rcof, chimneys,
decorative cast iron, tiled path and verandah floor, fence
facade, original cement render finish, decorative cast iron,
tiled path and verandah floor, fence
wi facade, slate roof and terracotta cappings, chimney,
- decorative cast iron and elaborate timber fretwork, lead
light glass to all windows (except top tower windows),
- tiled path and verandah floor, fence
" facade, face banded brickwork, decorative cast iron, original
cement render finish to pediment, fence
facade, slate roof and terracotta capping, chimneys, timber
fretwork, scalloped timber blind cover
facade, chimney, decorative cast iron, original cement render
to parapet, fence
facade, chimney, decorative cast iron, fence
fence
- facade iron fence
facade, iron fence, chimney
facade, slate roof, fence
terracotta tiles and capping, chimney, timber fretwork, fence
facade, slate roof, chimney, cast iron, original cement render
finish fence
facade, chimney, cast iron, fence
facade, slate roof, chimneys, cast iron
facade, polychrome brickwork, chimneys, cast iron,
facade, face brickwork, timber fretwork
facade, face brickwork, chimneys, timber fretwork
face brickwork
facade, chimney, cast iron
facade, face brickwork, chimney, cast iron, natural cement
render finish to parapet, tiling to path and verandah floor,
fence {under hedge)
facade, chimney, fence
facade, face brickwork, cast iron, fence

facade, chimney, cast iron, fence
fence

fence

contributory |
slate roof, chimney, cast iron 4
_S}contributory ]

ATy
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AB Alfred Crescent Precinct (covm.)

Brunswick Stizet - west side

579

581,

585
587
589
591
593
595
597
599
605

583

609, 611

613
615

617, 621
623, 625

627

629

St. Georges Road - west sice

107

113,115

117

123

131
133
137
139

Resteze

Church of Christ

151
153
155
165
167
169,
173

175
177
179

181,183 first floor facade, intact c. 1920's shop front {with leadlighting). 3

185
187

171,

intact facade (one shop window partially altered), face
brickwork

facade, slate roof, chimneys and parapet capping, cast iron,
original fe ce to 583

facade, cast iron, original cement render to parapet

‘acade, cast -ron

zontributory i
facade, face brick, fence 3
facade, cast iron, fence 4
cast iron 1
facade, f.ce brick, cast iron, verandah trim, fence '
facade (5 pediment balusters missing), lead light windows
slate roof

first floor facade

facade, shop front, cast iron

facade, cast iron

contributory
facade, chimney, cast iron.

facade (upper floor new French door), polychrome brickwork,
cast iron, original cement render finish to parapet, gilt fan
light housename, fence

facade, polychrome brickwork, original cement render finish
to parapet, gilt fan light housename, paint colours generally
appear tc be original.

facade, cast iron, fence, chimney, slate roof

contributory

facade, cast iron, timber fretwork blind covers at window

levels

Antal & Antal, Solicitors (originally Parish Hall of St. Lukes,
foundation stone 7 August, 1915.)

facade, slate roof, chimneys, cast iron

semi intact facade, cast iron

facade, slate roof, chimney

facade, slate roof, cast iron, fence

Footware

first floor facade
semi intact facade, shop front partially intact
first floor facade
first floor facade
facade, shop front

first floor facade, intact c.1920's shop front.(with
leadlighting )

first floor facade. (leadlighting to ground floor)

first floor facade, intact  c. 1920's shop front
first floor facade, intact c¢. 1920's shop front

first floor facade
first floor facade, leadlighting on corner splayed entrance
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A5 Alfred Crescent Precinct (conm.)

Freeman Street - south side

56 facade (except for verandah infill), cast iron, path and
verandah floor tiling

58,60 facade, cast iron, path and verandah, floor tiling, 60 -
fence

64 facade, front garden layout and edging, fence

66 facade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron, verandah with side

return, original coloured cement render, fence
72, 74 facade, slate roof, chimneys, cast iron, fence

Edinburgh Gardens

Contributory elements include :

Cast Iron Bollards

Drinking Fountain

Bluestone edging to pathways
Established trees

Train track

Tennis Club House

Rotunda
Fitzroy Cricket Club ’

Contributory elements include:

Grandstand '

Brick entrance gateway (corner Brunswick Street & Freeman
Street)

Timber entrance gateway

;4# S a4 45 =7 N im B !
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(10) Edinburgh Gardens, Fitzroy, n.d.
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A6 Old Colonists Homes Precinct

(i) Boundary definition

Area bounded by McKean Street, Rushall Crescent, Falconer
Street and the Merri Creek, including the :Railway Station,

(1) Area description

It is recommended by this rxeport that a separate
architectural and historical study be made of this complex.

The significance of the area derives from:

(2} the exceptichal number of buildings of architectural
and historical interest

(b) the unusual and dense street laycut creating closed and
open vistas

(c) the formal garden layout, the established vegetation and
the lack of fences

(d) the example provided, of different building styles and
materials over a period of 70 years

(e) the garden setting provided for the intimate Rushall
Railway Station complex.

{(iii) Building schedule

No attempt has been made here to list all those buildings which
contribute to this complex (these have been

discussed separately in Section 39 Post war buildings are
considered not to contribute to the complex.

The contributory buildings are generally characterised by :

intact facades with elaborate window openings

face patterned brickwork and in some instances stonework
scalloped patterned slate roofs

chimneys

cast iron

appropriate colour schemes.
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A7 Batman Street Precinct

(1) Boundary definition,

Area on east and west side of Batman Street from 1A - 12
Batman Street and 10 - 18 Alfred Street.

(ii) Area description,

The Batman Street houses were owned and built for . G. Britten

by 1890. 1In 1886 three houses were built, by 1887, 9 houses
were built and the twelve houses were completed by 1890.1

The significance of the area derives from:

a) the closing vista formed by the narrowing of Batman Street
(when viewed from the north) which is closed by the
polychrome and face brick single storey paired houses
along Alfred Street.

b) the intimate scale of the single storey houses in
Batman Street. These are not all intact and originally
would have had identical cast iron work, pediment details
and fences.

(iii) Building Schedule.

The following buildings are considered to contribute to the
character of the area :

Batman Street - west side
la - contributory

semi intact facade (verandah removed}

semi intact facade (verandah removed)

semi intact facade

semi intact facade

semi intact facade

facade, iron lace, original cement render to parapet,
fence (This terrace gives an indication of the original
appearance of all the terraces.)

11 facade, fence

LD--JU'ILUI—‘E'

Batman Street - east side

2 facade, cast iron, semi-intact fence. Note : bricks
exposed by sandblasting.
4, 6 facade, fence
8 facade, semi-intact fence
. 10 facade, fence Note : bricks exposed by sand-blasting
12 facade, cast iron, fence

l'Refer Fitzroy Ratebooks : 1886, 1887, 1888 (1889 - missing}, 1890.
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A7 Batman Street Precinct cowm.

Alfred Street - scuth side

10 facade, polychrome brickwork and chimney
12 facade, chimney, original cement render to parapet
14 facade, polychrome brick, original cement render to
parapet
le, 18 facade, face brick, chimneys.

A8 Kneen Street Precinct

(i) Boundary definition.

Area on the east and west side of Xneen Street from 7-38
Kneen Street. 7-25 Xneen Street (west side) is
considered an important streetscape.

(ii) Area description.

The significance of the area derives I[rom:

some continuous intact single storey terracing (nos.
with some twe s3torev terraces (nos.

) -
18
outstanding decorative elsment zrovided bv 39 Kneen Strset,

(b} *the establilished strest
the view, when Llocking
terraces in Talconer 3
These TwWo ZTorsy nerra

strongly cdefines mhe X

acada, crk, slate Toci

’ natural ce inish, ca@s: irco

- facads,
25, confridunory,
23, facade, [ crickwork, chimnev, cazst iron, f2ncé,
3G, facade, ¢
32, contributory,
34, facade, fuce br
36, contributory,
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A8 Kneen Street Precinet (cowm.)

Kneen Street -~ west side

7 facade,
9, facade, chimney, cast iron,
11,13, facade, slate roof, cast iron,

15,17, facade, polychrome brickwork, slate rocf, natural
cement render finish, fence,

19, facade, polychrome brickwork, chimneys, cast irom,
21, facade, polychrome brickwork, slate rcof, chimneys,
25, facade, polychrome brickwork, cast irom,
36 facade, slate mansanded roof, fence.
A9 Edwards Place Precinct
(i) Boundary definition. .

Area on the ncrth side of Scotchmer Street from 247-263
Scotchmer Stre=et, on the east and west side of Falcone
Street fvom 62-127 Falconer Street, 124, 126 Michael
Street, 27, 103,105 Rushall Crescent, 2 Xneen Streset,

and the wncle of Chapman Reserve.
The following streetscapes were noted

1]

21-125 Palconer Strest {west side)
52-32 Talconer Z2trset {east side)
247-263 Scotoamer Street (nortia side’ i
124, 126 Michael Straet {nor-h side!
LG Ares descripticn.

z <he view Irom =ushall Crescent which 13 Zramed by
57 , 103, 10Z Rusnall Crascent at the ncr=h and s
clcged v Chepman Tlace, +#he wianting In Edinburgh
cardens znd the spire of the Huncarian Refcrmed -hursh 5
2runswick Shrszet
!
=y the relatively Intact single storsv =arracses Zrcm 3
21-12E Falccrex Street with a sredominance of
selivehromatic brickwerk
{¢) the ocherent group of decorative WG STOreY L2XIrEC2S
{70-82 Falcerer Street) and the detached single siocrsy
zolyvchromatic houses (88-%6 Talconer 3trset)
fe} +the view Zrom Scotchmer Street which 1s closed bj

o

the two sStorey terraces in Faleoner Strzet {(nos. 70-32),
which have striking parapet details ac

complemented by the varapets of the two single storey
terraces {(nos. 66-58 Falcocner Street

(R0
~—r

the two storsy Scotchmer Street facades (particularly
247-249 and 259 Scotchmer Street) which contrast with
the two storey Falconer Street terraces cpposite. The
scale is accentuatad by the adjacent single storay
dwellings zlong Scotchmer Street, the street trees
and the o<pen space.
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A9 Edwards Place Precinet cowm.)

(iii) Builgin

Scnedule

The following buildings are ceonsidered to
contribute to the character of the area.

Falconer Street — south east side

62

64

[«
=1 O

SRV B

o

<Ly O

[¢ 20N 3

[ ]

I N Sl R S

Bt pea pen

TG Oy 1o

Falconer Straet -

i T
s RN BN ]

LAt

s
fo]
~1

109
11113

facade, lead light windows with sun
hood, timber verandah trim and finial
gtable at side, intact but derelict.
facade, appropriate colour scheme,
cast iron, criginal cement render
finich, fence.

facade, face brickwork, appropriate

colour scheme, cast iron, fence.

semi intact shop facade, sign cn

side wall.

facade, original cement render finish
tc parapet, fence.

facade, cast iron, fence.

facade, polvchrome brickwork, casc
iron fence,

facade, pelvchrome brickwerk, cast
iron, original .ement render
Tacade, £ e

Acade, cast iron, [a2ncs
[
cclvchrome dricuwerk, slace raal,
cast iron.

nolvchrome brickwerk, ca
23st ireon (wicth Xoukaburra motil;
polvahrome ‘r
solvehrome i

zast iron

briciweris,

slate rocoi, chimneyv.
facade, face brickwork, zhimnev, timbher
frecwork, Ifance

facade, chimnev. cast iron.

facade, polvechrome brickwork. chimnev,
orisinal cement render f{inish.

facade, polychrome brickwerk, chimnev, Iznce.
slate rocof, chimney.

facade, polvchreme brickwork, slats roof,
chimney, cast iromn.

intact facade, polvchrome brickwork, slate
roof, chimney, cast iron, fence.

facade, cast iron

facade, polychrome brickwork, slace root,
chimney, cast iron, fence.




A9 Edwards Place Precinct (cowm.)

Falconer Streel - ncrth west gide {(cont.)

115 facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof,
chimney

117 facade, slate roof, chimney

119 facade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron

121 facade, polychrome brickwork, slate roof,
chimney

123 facade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron

128 facade, slate roof, chimnevs

Scotchmer Street - norta side

247 facade, chimney, cast iron

249 facade, pelychrome brickwork, cast iron,
original cement Yrender finish, chimney

251 facade, slate roof

283 facade, polvchrome brickwork, slate roof

2E5 Zacade, polychrome brickwork, chimney

257 rtacade, cast iron

259 semi~-intact facade, face brick, slate rcoi,
cnimney, casc ilrcon, fence

2632 facade, cast 1lren, side shukters

Michael Strest - norin east sice

1z4 facade, cast ilron, unusual balcony detall over
bay window, fine timber verandanh trim, £fancs

15 facade, fancs

Rushall Crescesnt - south westT side

facade, slate roof, face brick cn ©we siocrev
rear section

103 facade, polychrome brickwoxrk, slate roofl,
chimneys, cast iron
igs Zacade, polychrome brickwork, cast iron, fencs




A0 Delbridge Sireet Streetscape

Boundarv deiinition

Telpridge Strset north=2ast side - ncs. 34-30

rt

scave descripticn

£a Ay M
(123 Ztree

The significance of the streetscape Jevives Srom:

ra)  the largelv latact, hicghly Zeccrative natvurs
of the row of Two storey Terracss

{z} the wvaristy of architectural Zletail: ~ne Zediment
treatment ‘with falustrades zand urns)
varandan Traatment ‘1o, 44 hag =zn irgusTss Tround

mpesing oI
AL, B

iie warzs

S

—_—

14 favzde, polyco Drickwezik., zasc z
12 Zzcade, zolvchrome srickwerik g ground IZzcr
20 gemi~intact facads., facs rick o lLowsr IZlcor

L
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Al1 Scotchmer Street Streetscape

(i)

Boundary definition.

Scotchmer Street, south side nos. 160-178

Streetscape descriptions.

The significance of the streetscape,derives from:

{a) *the consistent nature and scale of the row of
Edwardian terrace houses (168-17¢ Scotchmer}

{(b) the projecting bay windows and alternating sized
gable ends which provide a rhvthm and unity to the
group

the larger detached Edwardian houses which frame
the central terrace (160, 178 Scotchmer)

9

(The central tervace was bullt in 1912-1812, 180
Scotchmer Street was built 1513-1914 and 178 was built
in 1915-1916.)

Buillding schedule.

The following buildings are considered to contribute o
the character ¢f the streetscape

Scotchmer Street - south side

160 facade, face brickwork, slate roof and terracot:a
capping, chimneys

163, 170, 172, 174, 176 =
facade, face brickwork, terracotta tile roor,
decorative capping and finials, chimneys and gpots,
timber verandal trim, turned verandah posts, half
timbered gable ends.

178 facade, face brickwork, slate roof, terracotta
capping, chimneys

Refer Fitzroy Ratebooks 1911-1916.
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B1 Brunswick Street South Precinct

(i) Boundary Definiticn kL

Brunswick Street east and west side between Alexandra
Parade and Freeman Streest {(460-~576 Brunswick Street),

The following streetscapes were noted -
497533, 549-577 Brunswick Street {west side)
520~548 Brunswick Street (east side)

{iiy Arex Description
he signifi e rea deriv Lrom:

The significance of the area derives ifrom

a) the consistent two storay and single storey shop
fronts with elaborate znd relativeiv intact facades,
{(with cast ircn werk, nparapers, and shoepirconis of
var7ing degrees of imtactiness:,

=, the consistent Lwo storev and single storev ferracs
nousing.

2} the view to the north, which is Zzrmicacad B+ Ch:z
dungarian Reformed Churae> This churih oreatas @ o Jocal
soint snd srovides zn atiractive wista,

"ha fellowing buildings are censidsred Lo 1y ke

characTar 3T rhe arao:

SIAnEwWl Ta EtresT 3r.2

R R AE0 T P S S -

GLLIOTE L 2and, #40b) Zrmawicil STT2aT,

470

LTh

5713

Ly
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fom s
-t0
T om ey
1aCo,

acade, iron lace, chimnev, poivchrome brickwerk,

facade, iron lace, caimney

J 3
3 facade, timber barge beaxrd,
Ii.-%al, facades, iron lace, face brick to 38,340, chimnevs
Z=u contributory,
330
35¢
238
3:0

368

370

372 374 ,faccde,

[t -2 d PR ] o o
-/ racade,ilron lace, chiimneys,

n
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B1 Brunswick Street South Precinet (covm.

Srunswick Street - west sicde

469, 471, 473, 475, 477 {"Holdens Buildings 1391") i
semi intact upper facade, some cast iron trim,
Ground floor shop fronts in various states oI
intactness.
479 Slate roof, szemi intact Zacade, o
481 facade d
483 facade, fence,
487 slate roof,
439-49% ) Upper floor Iacs face brickwork,
original cement render to parapet, shop fronts
with various degr=e of intactness
497 Zacade, {iron lacs, fac
rander to parapet

LafacI 2nep Sronc

[#7]
I
:-]
e
I
LAt
I
i
I
i

» S3EMI TacT S3neTITrIonT.,

crizingl cemer
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B2 Coleman Street Precinct (CONTD. )

{i1)

Area description

The gignificance of the area derives from -

a) the consistent small scale single storey terracing
(9,3,15 are exceptions, )

b) the narrow street which creates an intimacy with
the terraces facing each other,.

¢) the single storey terrace houses 503,505 Napier
Street on the south of Coleman Street and 507
Napier Street on the north which stromngly define
the boundaries of the precinct.

d) the recently planted street trees,

B3 Brooks Crescent Precinct

(i)

(i)

Boundary definiticn

Area including Brooks Crescent, Brooks Street, Watki
Street, Salisbury Crescent, Annand Street, Rae stree
(east side) from 178 -~ 204 and Ras 3Street {west s5ice
from 173 - 275.

The following sitrestscapes were nRoTad:
173 - 191 Rae Street (west side)

180 - 184 Rae Strest {(east side)

Area description

by

Tne significance of the area derives Zron.

a) The unusual configuration and layvout of the streets.

The block north of Church Street was the first area

to be subdivided in North Fitzroy in 1851. These
crown allotments, part of the "Guarries Survev',

were one acre in area and were bounded {(in later vyears)
by Nicholson, Church and Rae Streets. In 1370,

Watkins Street was already formed:; during 1887-3
Brooks Crescent, Salisbury Crescent and Annand Street
were {ormed and in only 12 months completely builc
aver.

b) The remaining housing stock, particularly in Annand
Street and Salisbury Crescent, is consistent in
scale and form.

¢} The Rae Street streetscapes which are of interest
for the diversity of building materials, height and
styles. 173-183 Rae Street (west side) and 180 Rae
Street (east side) are humble dwellings cf timber and
contrast strongly with 185, 187 Rae Street and 182,
184 Rae Street, 2 storey ornate brick terraces which
face each other.

C.P. Smith, Fitzroy, Investigation Project B. Arch.
Iriversity of Melbourne, 1977. (Project Ne. 6 p. 11)
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| Brunswick Street North Precinct

(1) soundary definition

Area aleng Brunswick Street from 700 - 736 (east side)
and from 655 - 733 Brunswick Street (west side).

The following streetscapes were noted :

679-685 Brunswick Street (west side)
700-736 Brunswick Street (east side)

(ii) area description
The significance of the area derives from -

a) The varied streetscape from 712-736 Brunswick Street
dominated by the Salvation Army citadel.

b) the established street trees particularly seouth of Reid
Street.

¢) the consistent single storey terracing {679-685) framed
by established trees.

86 Scotchmer Street Precinct

{1} Boundary derfiniticn

Area on north and scuth side of Scotchmer Sireet between
Brunswick Street and St, Gecrges Road,

67 Scotchmer Street, - Parkview Hotel,Scotchmer . 5¢, (North Side}
8C-114 Scotchmer Street (south side).

The following streetscapes were noted:

67-81 Scotchmer Street (north side)

108-114 " " (south " 3
105-125 i " {north " )
83_97 1" " ( " t1 :}

(ii) Area descrinticn

The significance of the area derives from:

a) the variety of building tvpes, styles, materials and
decorative elements, with small groups of consistent
streetscapes listed above., Two storey shop terraces
contrast against single storey dwellings and shops.

b) the decorative parapets and cast iron work to 83,85,
87,91,95,97 Scotchmer Street,

¢) the intact first floor facades of 98-110 Scotchmer St,
{south side), 67,69,75-81,105-115, 125 Scotchmer Street,
(north side). Of particular note is the shop 125 Scotchmer
Street with intact verandah with cast iron columns and
frieze.

55




B6 Best Street Precinct

(i) Boundary definition

103-109 Best Street, north of Scotchmer Street,

49-113 (west side)
48-62 (east side)

(ii) area description

The significance of the area derives from:

a;j the scale and continuity of the single stcrey terraces
49-59 Best Street broken and framed by No. 49 (two storey)
and 5% (single storey) which projects to the pavement line,

b) the consistent parapets, ircn fences and frieze of 48-34
Best Street,

¢) the variety of relatively intact single and double storav
terraces throughout the street.

B7 Park Street Precinct

{zouth side; from 2 - 288 Fark
lscn Street and Knee 2at)
cluding tiie open ace area o©n the north sice =f
rk Street, and the Fir
ithin this area the fol

Station in 3t. Secrges Ro
CWiNg streetscapes were not

2-15 Park Street (south side)
2 - 100 Zark Strset (scuth sice)
138 - 196 Park Straet (scuth side)

{1i)Area descripticn

The significance of the arsa derives from:

a)the establighed street trees and large continuous expanse of
open-space which forms an attractive vista (from all the
streets running north-south in North Fitzroy,)

h)the variety of predeminantly single storey and double storey
terrace houses, which despite some defacement read as a
continuous streetscape element.




B8 Bennett Street Precinct

(i) Boundary definition

Area on west and east side of Bennett Street 12-87 Bemmett St,

The following streetscapes were ncted -

15-87 Bennett Street (west side)
47-64 Bennett Street (east side)

{ii)ares cescription

The Significance of the area derives from:

a) the single storey terrace housing with a variety of
parapet treatment and details, (particularly 27-41 Bennett

Street, (west side) ‘
) the strong focal element of the double steorey terraces

49-61 and 46-48 Bennett Street,
¢) the predominance of polychromatic brickwerk {in particular
nos,46,48,62,63,64,71 Bennett Street).

3% the established street trees which serve to unifv the ares.

BYS Delbridge Street Precinet

P . L
(L) 2cundary ceriniticn

Aarea on north and south side of Delbridge 3treers
length of street (from 1-100 Delbridge Strast
Delbridge Street north side discussed separarei-
scapes Al0) and Falccner Street West side {fromll
side (14-22

i

+
YOO L
13 () bed b=

o Lo O

i

B S —

v} the intermix of substantial twe 3tovey ce2rvace rgusas, 3lagla :
steray tsrracas and detacned. relabtivelv intact pelyshrome :
drick houses In particulaxr $3-31 Delbridge Zrrasto, Jzouih

b) the vista aleng Delbridge Strect which slepes down o the
west and is closed by the houses 19-33 Falconer Street which
are at an obligue angle to Falconer Street,




B10 Precinct adjoining Old Colonists
Homes

(i) Boundarv definiticn

Area on east side of McKean Street [(ncorth of Rushall Crescent),
north side of Rushall Crescent (4-16 Rushall Zrascent), south
side of Rushall Crescent (19-&7 Rushall Ir=scent) and

Brennand Street, south side {2-6 Brennand Street).

The following streetscapes were noted -
4~16 Rushall Crescent {(north side)
59-67 Rushall Crescent (south side)
103,105 Rushall Crescent (south side)

2-6 Brennand Street (scuth side)

{ii)Area descripticn

The significance of the area derives from:
a) The vista across the reserve to the 014 Colonists Homes,
in particular the reserve with established tress along

McKean Straet.

b) The group of polychrome brickwork singlie storey houses
4-16 Rushall Crescent (north side) with intact cast iren
work and polychrome chimneys.

¢} The varietvy of largely intact nhousing styles,.

d) The curve on Rushall Crescent which creates a closing wvista
when viewed from lMcKean Street. The vista is enhanced
by the S.E.C. Substatiocn,

2) The mature pepper trees along the railwav land at the Yorth
end of McXean Street, which serve to close the vista north
along McKean Street from Rushall Crescent.
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B11 Queens Parade Streetscape

(i) Boundary Definition

378-492 (Terminus Hotel) Queens Parade (north west side)

{(ii)Streetscape Description -

The significance of the streetscape derives from:

a) the intact upper floor facade of Bristol Paints (378-382
Queens Parade),

b) the streetscapes of Edwardian houses (nos 422-428,454-468;
Queens Parade which are characterised by face brickwork,
tiled roof, some decorative timber fretwork and/or cast
iron work.

¢) the variety of the streetscape between Rushall Crescent
and Brennand Street with 2 storey brick and painted bluestone
buildings and the streetscape of houses mentioned in(b)above,
436 Queens Parade and the Terminus Hotel provide strong
corner buildings.

d) the established street trees.

(iii) Building Schedule

The fellowing buildings are considered to contribute
to the character of the streetscape -

Oueens Parade - Nerth Side

378-382-384 '"Bristol Paint & Wallpaper'upper floor facads

intact,
386,388,390 upper flcor facade intact,
394,396 parapets contributory,

404,406 "Brooks Buildings) Upper Fleor facade intact

406 dintact facade,iron lace, fence.

410 wupper floor facade contributory,

416 cast iron, verandah, chimneys,

422,424 ycontributory Edwardian and later transition

426,428,§red brick houses,

436,438 corner Building, Bluestone now rendered, chimneys
building appears of an early date.

440,442 upper floor facade intact, lower floor shopfronts
partially intact,

446,448 contributory,

450 contributery,

454 ¥dwardian contributory,

460 TFederation style,cast iron timber fretwork, slate
roof, terracotta capping and decorative griffen
finial, chimneys, fence tiled path and verandah
floor, original cement render to chimney bands,
face brick.

462,464 Edwardian contributory,

468 Face brick ,tiled roof with terracotta ridging,
cast iromn,.

470 "Clifton Hill and Northcote Dispensary {1914)%

partially intact facade, face brick,
Tramways Board Building ~ contrioutory

Terminus Hotel - semi-intact facade.




B12 McKean Street Streetscape (1)

(i) Streetscape Definition
182~-190 McKean Street (east side)

(ii) Streetscape Descripticn

The significance of the streetscape derives from:

a)the unifying element provided by 184,186,188 McKean Street,
with a continuous ornate pediment wirh balustrading,
chimmeys,cast iron worik and face brickwork.

b)The intact nature of all the houses -
each house has unpainted banded or polychrome face brickwork
and intact cast iron work.

c)the consistent single storey scale of the aouses.

B13 McKean Street Streeiscape (2)

‘1% Beoundarv Delinition

112110 McXean Strest {west side)

{13i% Sicreetscape Descriotion

The sizniiicance of the strsecscape ferivas ITOT:

3! =he 3} two

3

o , Ao

st
5T which are imtact with slaborata archic
derailing: polvchreme brickwork and very

orev houses which comprise this zroup, 2i:
acTural
fine
tron to 11,1172, and cement renmder Iinish with
arcaded Iro

)]

e -

3

i
1
|

nt, baluscrades and fine ornamental sTucso
worik ©o .18 McXean Sirset,

3, the original Zences and gatapests which survive on
119 MeXean Strezet,

2% rhe alaperats pediment creatment =0 all the houses,

B1l4 McKean Street Streetscape (3)

{1} 3oundarv Definiticn

52-20 MeKean Street (sast side

- [=

—

{ii)Streetscape Descriprion

The significance of the streetrscape derives Irom!

a) the consistent and intact single storey terraces {02,04,00
McKean Street) with siate roofs, chimneys, cast irom, IZeancsas,
and scme original cement render finish,

b) the two storey terraces (68,70,72,74 McKean Street)with a
coentinuous slate rocf over the four houses,

c¢) ihe zenerally intact nature of all the terracss,




B15 Rae Street Streetscape (1)

(i) Boundary Definition
Boundaly = - —-——

0~74 Rae Street (east side)

(ii)Streetscape Description

The significance of. the streetscape derives from:

h

a) the group of two storey terraces (60-66 Rae Street) wit
chimnevs, cast iron work and fences., The constant roor
siope and pitch unifies these terraces,

h) the group oI single storey terraces (68-74 Rae Stre
with a variety of facade trzatment, pediments, Ifenc
cast iron work.

B16 Church Sireet Streetscape

{i} Boundary Definit

b
jo]

2454 Churcn Szrzet {south side)
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a) the zroup of Intact single and double storsw ferraczs
with"Fernvilile Terracs” (32,34,36) and "Leaminszton
Terrace' (24,26.28,30) Zorming z strong 2iement oF
consistent and ornate twe storev tarracing.

b) the decorative =
the ornare para
Street) and 32,

3¢ ircn work includin
N -

cn =eamington Lercw
ur

c) the comsistent zroup of single storsy Zarvacas (40-34),

B17 Rae Street Steets-cape (2)

(i) Boundary DeZinition

270~2%0 Rae Street {east side)

(ii)Streetscape Degeription

The significance of the strestscape derives Irem:

a) the continuous building heights, set backs,string
Courses, consistent window details of the terraces
274-286 Rae Street (284 is an exception, the upper
focade having been altered),

b) the intact fences to 274-286 Rae Streat,

. ¢} the framing elements of 270 Rae Street at the
: Southern end and 290 Rae Street Aar the —~=+hawrn and.




B18 Reid Street Streetscape

(i) Boundary Definirion

17-37 Redid Street (north side)

{ii)Streetscape Description

The significance of the streetscape derives from:

a) the variety of building type, materials,set backs and stvls

with the central brick factory (no,27) providing a focal
point,

b) the decorative elements to the buildings:

17 - elaborats cast iron work.

19 -~ exposed polyvchrome brickwerk

21,23,25 - eupesed bluestone quoins

33,35,37 -~ the consistant cast iron work,sclvchrome chimnevs and
eaves brackets. | . ) .

39 - decorative ridege capping, fretwerk and fence

B19 Rae Street Streetscape (3)

.1, Boundarv DJeiinition

348-264 Rae Zivssn {zast 57

2ijStresetscavpe Descristion

1 -~ L - -
il 3120N1IICcance JI the stTegliiscnne Sl

a4, the consistent scale anj 2leva
3torey terrace {252-364 Rae §
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g srovid i Raz Itrezet 2 Two
3L0ray ferrace contrasting against the siagle stors
220 Rae Strast.

S/ CDe C28T Iron WOrk, Ingludlng orizingl fencag

Bz20 Egremont Street Streetscape
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fiiyStreetrscane Descristion

The significance of the zrrzetscape derives from -

a) the consistent scale, detailing, parapet, verandah
and stringcourcse lineg to'E

Street)

) the consistent creatment of *the detached brick houses
f3-15 Egremont Ztreet) with

gramont Terrace' (17-31 Zgremont
ldentical separation between
heouses (1 metre), bullnose verandahs and intact chimneys.

2} the sense of enclosurs ¢
street,

r2ated bv the narrow width cf the

[

o
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. Birkenhead Street Streetscape -g

poundarly pefinition
head Street morth of Scotchmer Street,

Birken :
enhead Street (west side}, i

3-19 Birk

~gcape Description
sipnificance of the streetscape derives from:
a) the relatively intact single and double storey terracing,

dominated by the "jam Factory' {9 Birkenhead St}
in the centre.

b) the cast iron friezes and fences , utilized on 3-7,15-19
Birkenhead Street.

Napier Street Streetscape

'~

§) Boundary Defipnition
472-484 Wapiler Street (east side;

i) Streetscape Description F

The significance of the strsetscape derives from:

a) the consistent ccukle 3torsv terrace ncousing of "Zlizapetn
Terrace' {(nocs. 476-484)
b} the intact parapet tc Zlizmabeth Terrace. l
c) the unpainted pclilvcnreome brickwork o nos. 272, 475, 420
{184- ‘ r - .
d) the cocnsistent and intact cast iron fances
e) the estaklished strset trzes, 1
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Buildin

-ossiple addition to or retention on the Historic Buildings

HE

gs Requested for Investigation

128

=HE

pacrground
The fo
'Hith 3 i TO:
3]
Reglster;
ii} zossible
vaticnal
iii) possible
Biarnino

The following infoymation is attached to each building.

addition or retenticon on the Register of
Estate;
scheduling under Clause 8 of the Town and

chedule).

o
in

Aot {Thir

Histcric 3uildings Register

- There are 3 Dbuildings on the

within the Noron Fitzrzcy study araa.
ZegJlstar oI tne Natlcna. Zstace
* Zuilcdlng feglstered,
Naticonal Trust
= Recoriad

ZlassiZied

he

~

—~
i

llowing list of buildings (Secticn 3.2.2) has been investigated
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3.1.2 List of bu

ildings investigated.

NAME

ADDRESS

Alfred Crescent

Houses
House
House
House
"The Haven Centre

State School No.

Bennett Street

House

Birkenhead Street

12,21 Alfred Crescent
41 Alfred Crescent
43 Alfred Crescent
67 Alfred Crescent
" 73-75 Alfred Crescent
1490 Alfred Crescent

62 Bennett Street

"The Jam Factory”

Brunswick Street

National Bank
Shop

Iord Newry Hotel
House

House

Railway Sub -~
station

Delbridge Street

House

Edinburgh Gardens

9 Birkenhead Street

460 Brunswick Street
497 Brunswick Street
543 Brunswick Street
591 Brunswick Street
599 Brunswick Street

Brunswick Street (corner
Park Street)

17 Delbridge Street

Bandstand

Falconer Street

House

62 Falconer Street

Fitzroy Cricket Club

Grandstand
Timber Gatehouse

Brick Gatehouse

Cnr. Brunswick Street and

Freeman Street

£6




ADDRESS

NT

den Street

oy Moran & Cato

. Josephs School
Bl oruci form bul 1ding)

ouse
;*ntonville"

ton Hall"®

*Hatherlie"
*Camercn House"
"Moss Vale"

Halesmere"

ﬁipholson Street

st- Brigids Roman

63-69 Holden Street

10€é Holden Street

39 Kneen Street

124 Michael Street

77 McKean Street

96 McKean Street

151 McKean Street

Rear of 151 McKean Street
177 McKean Street

191 McXean Street

222 McKean Street

223 McKean Street

225 McKean Street

227 McKean Street

387 Nicholson Street

Nicholson Street (cnr. Church St.)

500-506 Nicholson Street
720 Nichelson Street

270 Queens Parade
284 Queens Parade
370-374 Queens Parade

376 Queens Parade

67
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NAME

ADDRESS NT

HBR

Rae Street
Former Shopv

Formex Temp.erance
Eall

Rowe Street
Terrace
House

House
"Strome"

Rushall Crescent

St. Gecrges Read

Hungarian Zeform
Church

Church of Christ
"Work House"

"Gladstone
3uildings”

DPgst Office

Weodaide Street

"Fashoday™

York Street

Hcuse

123 Rae Street

270 Rae Streat C

16-20 Rowe Street

35 Rowe Strzet

37 Rowe Virse

78 Rowe Strest .

39/41 Rushall Crescant 2

Rushall Zrescent 2
rounder
& AsSSQoC.
Cottcage

242 Scotchmer Straek

121 St. Georges Recad R

St. Geocrges Roead

131 5t. Cecrges Read c

159-187 2t. Gecrges Road

St. Georges Reoad, C

{Cnr. Taplin Street)

St. Georges Road

324 3+, Georges Road

21 Woodside Street

61 York Street R
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J1.3 Legis-——=—
Under <ur
for ina
Governme

and Coun

ticn for Protection of Buildings

rent legislation there are four scurces cof protection
ividual buildings : the Historic Builldings Act, the
nt Buildings Adviscory Council Act, Clauze & cf the Town

try Planning Act {Third Schedule), and the Register of

the Naticnal Estate.

1)

The Historic Buildings Register

The Historic Buildings Act 1974 came into force on the 27th

September 1974 to provide for the preservation of buildings,
works and objects of nistoric or architectural importance.

The initial buildings constituting the register were notified
in the Victorian Government Gazette of the 9th Sctoker 1274,
ard on the reccmmendation of the Minister from time tc time by
notice puplished in the Government Gazette any specifled bulla-

ings may be added or removes.

o
b
(ol
}_J
s

0
9]
O
Fy

are, firstly to recormend to the Minister the ouil
architestural cr nistorical impeortance which 1t consicers
snould be added to the reglster. Further, the Counclil nas
the cquty to consider applications from the owners of lesiiznated

buildings to remove, demclish cr alter the Zullding.

When a build Lo the Register nctiflcaticn 1s made oo

I
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o
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trar of Titles who 1ls cihliged o
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O
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p
n

the Fegistrar-Gen
bring the nctice to tne attention of perscns whce searcn thsg nitle

oL the land.

The Historic Builicings Pr

o

servation Council has wower Lo sarve

an interim preservation order on the cwner of a bullding wnich
it 1s investigating where, in the cpinicn of tne Jouncil, “i:f is

necessary -or desirable to do so for the purrzoses ¢f acnleving
the objects of this 2ct”. This interim preservation order
remains in force for a perieod of € months or such further period
28 specified by the Council, and while it remains in force the

building shall not be removed, altered or demclished.

T




The Minister, on the recommendation of the Council, may grant

special financial assistance tc the owner of a designated buildj_l19
Before any financial assistance is given, the Minister may reguijr,
the owner of the land to enter into a covenant to preserve the

building.

Any responsible authority which is preparing a planning scheme ip
which there is a designated building under the Historic Buildings
Act shall, in preparing the planning scheme, be concerned to ensure

the conservation and enhancement of the designated building.

Public hearings are held when it is intended to alter, add or
remove buildings from the Register. Submissions may be presented

by any interested body or individual regarding the hearing.

The provisiocns of Clause 590 of the Historic 3Bulldings Act can pe
exercised by the Fitzrov Cit¥y Council as the rsesponsible authority,
This c¢lause provides for the enhancement through planning controls

of & designated Historic Building.

1i) The Government Buildings Adviscry Council act

The Historic Buildings Act 1974 does NCT apply to Government
oulldings. Thesge buildings come under the conditions of the
Government Buildings Advisory Council Act 1872. This Act
establishes an Adviscory Council of ten members of similar com-
cosition to the Historic Buildings Preservation Council, to
examine whether the building in guestion is worthy of

oregervation,.

iii) Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act {(Third Schedule)

In additien to the Historic Buildings Act, thers are provisiens
for protection of individual buildings under the Town and Country
Planning Act {(Third Schedule).

Clause 8 states:

The conservation and enhancement of buildings, works, object?

sites specified as being of arciitectural, historical or

scientific Interest Dy prohibiting restricting or regulat-

ing the use or development of the land concerned or adjacent

land and by prohibiting restricting or regulating the pulling l
down, removal, alteration, decoration or defacement of any SUl

building, work, site or object.
i
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3.1.4

rThis Clause provides protection for buildings of architectural,
nistorical or scientific interest, but which are not so outstanding
as to warrant listing on the Historic Buildings Register. 1In this
report buildings of a local, state-wide and natiocnal significance

are recommended for protection under this Clause. Those buildings
recommended for addition to the Historic Buildings Register are also
recomnended for specification under Clause 8 - this is to ensure that

those buildings which may NOT be registered by the Historic Buildings

preservation Council receive protecticn by this Clause.

Clause B has received limited use throughout Victeria. In Maldon
the Planning Scheme, gazetted in October 1377, utilized Clause 8 for

the specification of buildings within the township.

In the City of Ballarat, 11 buildings have been specified under

this Clause.

Qther municipalities utilizing this Clause include the Shire of
Bacchus Marsh, City of Benalla, City of Echuca, and Interim
Development Orders over Westernpeort, Geelong, Shire of Gisborne

and the United Shire ¢f Reechworth.

Within the Melbourne Metropolitan area reguests frem Hawthorn and
South Melbourne have been made to the Melpourne and Metropclitan

Beoard of Works, but as vet no action or implementation has been

effected.

Clause 8, like the Historic Buildings Act, provides demolitien contrci
for buildings. Tt is a particularly important planning toel for
Protecting those buildings which are of local significance, but are

of insufficient state-wide importance to be listed on the Histcric

Buildings Register.

Building Selection Criteria

In selecting buildings for investigation in North Fitzroy the follow-
Criteria were used as a basis for the selection of buildings of
significance. =& kuilding is usually chosen con the combination of

these criteria, and is generally not an outstanding example of any

one criterion.
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Architectural Importance :

a) good example of spécific style, identifiable as belonging to 4
certain style.

b) intactness. External/internal.

¢) unigueness.

d) good example of specific architect's work.

e} good example of a type of building e.g. Bank, Model Gaol, Schog],

£} setting - e.g. intact, appropriate fencing, garden layout,
setback, garden/street furniture.

g} good application of specific material e.g. polycnrome brickwork,

cast lron, timber work.

or

building construction tecnnigues - early or unusual use cf

materials.

Historical Importance :
a) age, usually selscted due to evidence o early zullding tscanigues
- snould ke relatively intact. To pe verified opv research.

b) connection with nistorical events or important ceople.

¢) Lirst or earliest surviving building of its tvre.

8:

retenticn of oricinal use - scocial functicn.

Zontributory buildings not investigated as part of this study:

There are many buildings which contribute to the nistoric character
of North Fitzrov which have not been investigated as part <I this
study and which fall outside A or B areas. These buildincs are
impeortant to the Heritage of Fitzroy. Limited time and resocurces
pravented the investigation of every contributory building within
dorth Fitzroy. However, 1t is strongly urged by the consultants
that these buildings be preserved and enhanced and not neglected
because they have not been individually identified or researched

as part of this study.
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3.2 Building Identification and Analysis

3.2.1 zxplanation of standard building description format

A1l buildings are disucssed according to the following standard
format:
AAME : here is inserted the name of the building where one exists.
ADDRESS: street number and street of the building are listed.
CONSTRUCTICN DATLE: year cnly has been used to indicate the main
constructicn periods for the building.
AT TERATIONS/ADDITIONS: dates (year only} and architect (where kncwnj cf
major alterations is noted here.
ARCEITECT: the name of the architect for each building has been often
difficult to cbtain, especially in the case of buildings not

excepticnal for their time which 4id not attract coverage in
RUILDER: this informaticn has the same difficulties and the builder

name was ¢Lten cmitted in published reports.

This refers tco the cownery at the time I

-
T
UPIEZR/USE: where kincwn, Thls 1s lnserted.

PRESENT CWNER:tnhis i3 the cwner at June 1978 cbtained from Ccocuncil ZRats

m
4
CCCUPIER/USE;: ditto, whers locatred.

COHNETRUCTION maln construction materials i{walls and roof) are ncozc nera.

MATERIALS:

INTACTNESS/CCNDITICN: a brief summary of the cuilding's external intactness
and ccndiftion. Intact interior noted nere.

CONEERVATION ARER: 1% the building falls into a recommended arsa (cut-

lined in Fart 2 of this report) it is noted here.
RECCMMENDATIONS ; recommendations resgarding the building made by the
ccnsultants are noted here.

IMPORTANCE AND
BUILDING ANALYSIS: a summary of the building's importance, a building

analysis (where required}) and sources of informatcion

are ncted here.
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3.2.2 Building Inventory:
WADME ; Pair of Heouses ADDRESS: 19,21 alfred Crescent

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1886

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER. William Garrity,
Contracter

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: brick, slate roof

CONSERVATION AREA: A5

BUILDING CITATION:

This pair of housges was constructed in 1886 for William Garrity.l The
ground floor has projecting bay windows with a string course supported
by acanthus leaves at dado height. The cast iron werk te the verandah
1s of a celicate circular pattern. A steep slate rocof unifles the two

houses (without a dividing parapet) and the roof 1s surmounted Ly a
chimney with vermiculated panels and projecting cornics supported on
brackerts.

The sice elevation, of patterned prickweork , has an interesting entrance
portico.

FECOMMEL DaTIONS

It i1s rzcommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of tne

Town and Iountry rlanning Act {(Third Schedula).
4 Pitoyoy Ratepook 1556: 3riclk nouss, o rooms  soJ.  W4illiam Garrito.
NAL (ouse ADDREES

1388

unkrcwn

unknown

william Fergile, Sclicitor
Francis Joseph Morgan

rendered mMasonry
AD

BUILDING CITATION: 1
This house was constructed in 1880 for William Fergie, Sclicitor. It
was originally a pailr with number 43 Alfred Crescent - number 43 was
altered in 190%. It has a well proportioned facade, with a projecting
bay window, a string course at dado height, delicate cast iren work
and a balustraded pavapet.. It forms an important adjunct te number
43 Alfred Crescent. 74
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.41 ALEred crescent (Contd.)

mTONS
ENDAT 25 2 L. s . o :
— recormend=d vnat :iis bullding be speciiizad under the Town and
# plapnine SeT (thirg Schedule).
ery T -

pitzroy sateboois A588: Brick house, 5 rooms 7100, william
Pergre 303iclTEs
ADDRESE : 43 Alfred (Crescent

A=

ke e

1205

LMENCWnD
1905 - o5.R. Iwan anc

A O’nﬂ‘{ER—
EPRUCTICH
ALS .

Rypiression of A
Ract with tie
ber ana casc
GOW nheads
GMMENTDATIONE

~is recommenced

AU R TULRISE T . ‘

® plan of the criginal facade
Ap agd dpraarsd to have besn
Pt without tne bay window.
Ofmate anc cresenes an almost
PISpicuous feature is the ru
©0f of a late Mogul Imperial
the tewer iz clad in fig
‘raiieilncows arg cf a slightly
avk slats above.

. Pitaro
139

D¥ Ra;ebook,lBB?:Brick House 9 rooms William Hobbs,coach builder.
ifectory 3. PFitzrov Council Permit EBook: 7.4.1905,Additions

43 a
241fFEd Cresz. D.R.Iwan & Coc. 4. Fitzroy Ratekbock 1914
Pirectory 6. 1974 Dirzctory

1<
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House, 43 Alfred Crescent {Continued)

The verandah and balcony have delicate open work timber friezes supported
on timber brackets, and the balcony comes out in a three sided bay,
projecting from the front verandah line. The cast iron panels are of a
late character.

The top lights of all the windows, except for the top tower windows, are
in panels with a keyhole arch motif, again presumably of Moorish
derivation. Pilers dividing up the verandah and balcony, and supporting
the tower, are built up in vermiculated blocks in cement work. The arch
through the base of the tower which leads to the entrance docr is divided
not only by a keystone but by two blocks on the angle breaking into the
archivelt, giving a sort of rudimentary rustication.

The interior is extremely ornate and lavish. The undergraduate thesis
by Mario Bernardi provides evidence of its former appearance in 1968 when
it still belonged to the Lloyd family.

The front room is wall papered in panels and an elaborate timber fireplace
surrounds a very lush mantle with mirrors. The front bay window has a
timber Art Nouveau screen across with pleasing sinucous lines. There is
ornate leadlighting across the top of the window. The skirtings are deep,
and are picked out in different timber colours. The door surrounds, which
defy architectural analysis, are extremely elaborate, in multi-colour
tirber work.

Tne hall walls have been redeccrated but there are the same elaborate
aoor surrounds and an elaborate Art Nouveau ceiling, which is constructed
in either pressed metal or carton pierreBWIth subtle gradations of

browns and greens with detailing picked cut in gold. There i1s an ornate
tinber Art Nouveau screen/arch in the hallway.

The second room back again has a similar rather heavier timber fireplace
overmante! and a less elabeorate bay window and screzen. The ceiling in
subtle colours is superb and appears to ke carton pierre.

Tite rcom further back has been rececorated and again has the mirrored
cver mantle with a coved top above a grey marbled fire place. The
ceiling, painted white, 1is intact but it appears to be pressed metal
rather than carton pierre.

Upstalrs in the main bedroom on the east side of the front there 1s again
a very elaborate relief ceiling, white marble chimneypiece and a very
simple timber mirrored overmantle. Again there 1is a bay window with
leadlight glazing and a fairly simple Art Houveau timber screen across
the top.

Above the space adjoining the master bedroom on the west side rises the
stair to the tower. The tower itself is still intact internally with

the original surviving seats. Next to the stair there is a master dressing
room with panels of diagonal timber, mirrors and other decorative features.

7. M. Bernardi "Art Nouveau Architecture in Melbourne", B. Arch.
University of Melbourne 1968.
{(Permission could not be chtained to reproduce the large colour
photos contained in this report, but they provide an excellent
reference.)

8. carton pierre - layers of paper successively pasted together.
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House, 43 Alfred Crescent (Continued)

The second bedroom back has a white marble chimney piece, and a mirror
with a broken pedament over the top. The ceiling in original colours,
is in relief, with no Art Nouveau screen across the window. On the
landing there is a bathroom with its original ceiling and tiled walls.
The bath has a marble surround and timber panelled sides with marbling
in the panels.

The room behind is totally tiled, with another good ceiling and a
built-in wardrobe in a variety of timbers. There are some intact
tinber window venetians and a simple marble fire place.

This house provides a unigue expression of Art Nouveau architecture

in Melbourne. The exterior is intact with the original unpainted
vermiculated cement work, and ornate timber and cast iron decorative
work. The interior has some intact features, and the overall impression
is extremely lush.

NAME ; Hcouse ADDRESS : 67 Alfred Crescent
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1890 1
ARCHITECT : unknown ]
BUTLDER: unknown ﬁ
FIRST OWNER: Alfred Mills, Fruiterer !
PRESENT OWNER: J. & J. Addis i
CONSTRUCTION : “
MATERIALS : rendered brickwork, slatef

roof -
CONSERVATION AREA: AS

BUILDING CITATION:

A large two storey dwelling of a comparitively chaste design for the
period (1890)l perhaps forshadowing the later depression. It comprises
a simple hipped slate roof with eaves brackets over a square massing
with a projecting wing on the right hand siae which is terminated by

a projecting bay - alsc finished with a hipped roof.

The cement rendered facade has maintained its original natural finish

and has little decorative treatment except string mouldings at the
springing height of the arcuated windows and cornices. A two storey
verandah with intact iron lace is constructed in the space subtended

by the projecting wing. The whole building is notable for its 1lntactness,
including the cast iron double palisaded fence, as well as for its street-
scape value created by its scale, small setback and relationship to the
adjoining neighbouring buildings.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
it is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

l. Fitzroy Ratebook 1890: Brick house 7 rooms and workshop {860
Alfred Mills, Frulterer.
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WAME : House ADDRESS : 69 Alfred Crescent

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1884

ARCHITECT: unknown )
BUILDER: unknown-

FIRST OWNER: William Teague, Contractor
PRESENT OWNER: H.M. Daiton

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS : rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: A5

BUILDING CITATION:

This elaborate two storey terrace, constructed in 1884,2 has many features
typical of the 1880‘s. It comprises an elaborate rendered finish over a
fairly standard terrace shell with a projecting ground floor bay window.
The first floor has a triple arcuated window design which echces the
ground floor large central window with separate small side windows. The
elaborate parapet is balustraded at the sides flanking a triangular
pediment, all supporting urns. The projecting wing walls with pilasters
create a verandah enclosure. The cast iron verandah deccration is alsco
elaborate with unusual iren work, particularly the brackets. The
balustrade iron panels are identical to those used on 78 Rowe Street
and the design appeared in William Stephens Excelsior Foundry Catalogue

of 1801. A secondary frieze is enclosed within timbper bressumers. The

building is intact including double palisaded iron fence and elaborate

iron posts. It forms a major streetscape element and relates well to the
neighbouring dwelling. f“{

RECOMMENDATIONS E ?
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the g 3
Town and Country Planning Act (Thirc Schedule). '}

1. PFitzroy Ratebooks 1884: Brick house 9 rooms £45. William Teague ;;
Contractor. N %

NAME ; The Haven Centre ADDRESS: 73/75 Alfred Crescent

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1890

ARCHITECT : unknown
BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: John McMahon
CONSTRUCTION

MATERTIALS: rendered brick,

slate roof
CONSERVATION AREA: A5




The Haven Centre (Contd,)

BUILDING CITATION:

A large late Victorian dwelling, constructed in 1890,l that is devoid of
muach of the flamboyance of the boom period. It comprises a symmetrical
two storey cement rendered structure with a smaller slate hipped roof
projecting section which has a two storey return verandah. The verandah
is notable for its scale and intact and pleasing cast iron work. The
fenestration cnto the verandah is of interest because it is all of a
matching design with double hung sashes with side lights. The building
is of a major streetscape value.

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Cecuntry Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 18%0: Brick house, 12 rocms }150.

NAME . Zrate Scnool Ho. 14590 ADDRESS. blfred Crescent

CONSTRUCTICH DATE: 1875

ALTERATIONS: 1925-26

ARCHITECT: Public Works Dept.

BUILDER: 1875 - Gecoffrey ©0'Connell
1925 - Phillip Bros.

FIRST OWNER.: Colony of Victecria

FRESENT CWNER: Victorian Government

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: red brick, marseilles
tiles

CONSERVATICON AREA: A5

BUILDING CITATION: _
This building was constructed in 1875 by Geoffrey Q'Connell contractor for
f3,33l and dramatically altered in 1925-26. At this date large rectangular
windows replaced the former paired arched windows and drastically and
detrimentally altered the elevations.The tower 1s the only component that
is more ¢r legs intact.

The building is constructed in red brick with some diaper patterning and
bancs ¢f cream brick. The roof, formerly slate, has been replaced by
Marseilleg tiles.

This building provides an attractive streetscape element to aAlfred Crescent,
and is important in a local context.

_ RECOMMENDATIONS:
This building, owned by the Education Department, is recommended for addition
to the Register of the National Estate and for specification under Clause 8
of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule). It is recommended
that tne Lullding ke referred to thne Government Buildings Advisory Council.
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State Schocl No. 1490, Alfred Crescent {Continued)

BUILDING ANALYSIS:
The land for this school was gazetted in 1869 and in 1874 Geoffrey O'Connell
submitted the successful tender ( {3,331) for the construction of this
building which was ready for occupation on the 5th April 1875.

The present double gabled building visible from Alfred Cresgent was only
part of the original building. The smaller attached eastern wing (also
facing Alfred Crescent) was built in 1925 and connected the present
building with another original wing that has since been demolished.

The school, designed by the Public Works Department has a long double
gabled block with side gables running in at either end. At the centre
there is a large gable and a square tower with a steep roof with a row

of arch ventilators breaking into the roof plane. A widow's walk surmounts
the tower with the iron balustrade intact. The tower scheme is more or less
intact. There is a c¢ream brick Florentine arch over the entrance door with
label moulds of shaped bricks forming a nail head mould around the inner
side. The upper windows are paired arch headed windows, again with the
arches in cream brick. The slating to the tower is of a fish scale pattern.
The tower itself has a slight bell cast to the bottom,

The roof to the rest of the building has been totallyreclad in Marseilles
tiles, which has a very destructive effect. The ridge ventilators also
detract from the building's appearance.

The two gables at either end are formed in cement work with a nail head
serration to the Gothic arch within the triangular gable. The gakle
is carried on double brackets at eaves.

The gable adjoining the tower still retains an iron finial. The subsidiary
gables on the front elevation have little ventilators surrounded by
Florentine arch (thicker at the top than at the sides) in cement work.

A1l of the windows except for those of the tower were replaced in 1925-26.
The original paired arch headed windows can be seen on the drawings for
remodelling the school held at the Public Record Office. These alterations
were extensive, designed by Evan Smith (?) Chief Architect and constructed
by Philip Bros. Contractors for £4,277.%

The windows were originally similar to these in the tower (but larger), with
label moulds of shaped c¢ream bricks, keystones and bowtell (curved) moulded
corners. The present larger windows have been located insensitively with
little regard paid to the external symmetry and composition of the building.
Large horizontal lintels surmount modern Georgian panes.

The main body of the wall is in red brick with some diaper patterning below
5111 height in dark brick.

The interior has been completely modernised.

This building provides an attractive streetscape element to Alfred Crescent.
The garden and fence treatment to Alfred Crescent is inappropriate, and the
appearance cculd be enhanced by sensitive planting and compatible fencing.

The building itself is in good condition and exerts a strong visual impact
to the area.

l. Education Department of Victoria Vision and Rezlization - A Centenary
History of State Education in Victoria 3 volumes 1373. Volume 3. p.6%9

2. 2 drawings dated 1925-26 are held at the Public Record Office.
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NAME : House

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown -
FIRST OWNER: Thomas Joyson
PRESENT QOWNER: A.L. Church
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: Polychrome brick,

slate roof
CONSERVATION AREA: B8

BUILDING CITATION:
This polychrome brick house, built in 1888 for Thomas Joyson,l is of
interest for its decorative projecting entrance porch. This porch
consists of cast iron columns with spiral shafts broken at mid height
by two horizontal bands; a decorative cast iron frieze and bkrackets,
a row cf dentillation, and an elaborate tympanum of cast iren
decoraticon. The arched windows to the projecting bay are highlighted
by the striped voussoirs and cement hood moulds following the arch
line. There are intact pressed metal blind hcoods to the windows.

The roof is of diamond pattern slate. The chimneys are intact.
Internally there are some original finishes surviving including a
very elaborate cornice to the front room.

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of
the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1888: Brick house £30 Thomas Joyson
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NAME . “* Tam Factory" ADDRESS ;

o T,

9 Birkenhead Street
- ; ‘ h

CoNSTRUCTION DATE: 1880

ARCHITECT: unknown

- BUILDER: unknown
FEEEE_EWNER; Mary Eddington
;EEEEEE—BEEER: J. Courmadias
—_— Nominees Pty.Ltd.
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: Brick

Malnn ol
CONSERVATION AREA: B21

BUILDING CITATION: -
2 two storey brick building, constructed in 1890,l and owned from 1890
by Mr. Henry Gage a furniture manufacturer. It was later occupied by
C.E. Ellen, a Jam Manufacturer. It was described in 1903 as "a two
storey building complete with every description of wood-turning

machinery.“2

This factory is set between residential buildings. The facade is simple
with & cement rendered string cocurse at first floor level and at the
bottom of the pediment. There are three mock chimneys on the parapet
behind the front gable.

RECOMMENDATICONS :

It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 18%0: Brick Cordial Factory £40, Mary Eddington,
James Donly Cordial Factory.

Smith J. (Ed.) Cyclopedia of Victoria 3 Vols. Melb. 1903-1205
Vol. 1 p.563 Article of Henry Gage and early illustration.

[

T RAmIES - Y NTRGY
WOUDWARE .

Toknatone, tr siuune ssy amf co. T

Mu. L ik,

11. G.-\(i[':, Furnnure ,‘.!“L11||f;|.('l|l!‘t’1‘~,l (13) (14) . H Oage’s Premises. Birhunhead $troat. Fitsroy.
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NAME Naticnal Bank of Australasia ADDRESS: 460 Brunswick Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1884

ALTERATIONS : 101, 1923, 1956

ARCHITECT: Smith & Johrison

BUILDER: Hoskins & Sons

FIRST OWHER: Colonial Bank

PRESENT OWHWER. National Bank

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA. Bl

BUILDING CITATION:

Tnis pank, built in 1884, {(Architects Smith & Johnson) is an important, con-
servative, classical, corner bank building. The upper storey with Ionic
pilasters surmounts a lower storey with Tuscan pilasters. The whole 1s
surimountes by a dentillated cornice witih a recessed gsplayed panel on the
corner. Tne exterior is largely intact - the corner door nas been
modernisec, and a door to the south face nas been filled in to make a
window. In this corner position, 1t 1s an important streetscape element,
and is worthy of adaition to the Historic Buildings Registser.

RECOMMENDATICNGS :

It is recommended that the external envelope of this building be adcec
to the Historic Buildings Register, tne Register of the National Estate,
and specifliea under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third
Schedule}.

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

A branch of the Colonial Bank was first opened in Morth Fitzroy in 1881t.

On the 26th August 1884 the contract for the building was awarded to Hoskins
and Sons with_Smith and Johnson as architects.? Two of the original drawings
still survive” and show the original form of the bank. In 190! the Queens
Parade extension was added and J. Beswicke was the architect, ‘‘he contract was
awardea to W.H. Douglas on 12 July 1501. In 1918 the National Bank acguired
the Colcnial Bank and this bank became the North Fitzroy Branch of the Wational
Bank. In 1923, a new Manager's room was added to the north along Brunswick
Street and the banking chamber enlarged. The architect was A.E. Dainton(?).5
In 1956 there was further internal re-arrangements, and the corner antrance
was altered.

{1

-+

Information from Mr. Mitchell, Naticnal Bank archivist.

2. Original Drawings dated 26.6.84 (held at Premises Department,
National Bank).

3. Ibid.
4. 1 Drawing held dated 26/¢/1901.
5. 1 Drawing held dated June 1923
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National Bank of Australasia {(Contd.)

The building comprises a two storey trabeated facade surmounted by a dentil-
lated cornice with a recessed splayed panel on the corner in the manner of
Charles Laing. The upper storey with Tonic pilasters surmounts a lower
storey with Tuscan pilasters. The pilasters of the lower storey overlay

an arcuated door and window system. The upper storey rectangular windows
are supported on consoles. The first window from the corner on the south
face has a three centred arch headed window., This was originally an
entrance with a six panelled bolection moulded door,? but was later filled
in, possibly during the Beswicke period of work. The corner entrance door
{also originalily six panelled) has been replaced by a modern one, but within
the existing opening., The interior has the original cornice but the fire
place has been removed.
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NAME : Former Shop ADDRESS : 497 Brunswick Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1886

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST QWNER: Thomas Pingsent, Painter
CONSTRUCTION .

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork
CONSERVATION AREA: Bl

BUILDING CITATION:

A terrace house with a built-in shop freont and elaborate parapet treatment
returning down the York Street side of the building. This building was
constructed in 1886 for Thomas Pinsent, Signwriter, and an original sign
'‘Pinsent, Signwriter' is visible on the side elevation. The shop front,
with six panel shutters and bolection moulded 4 panelled docr is intact,
as is the residence entrance. The cast iron work is of a fern pattern,
registered by Cochrane and Scott on the Sth August 1884.

The building occupies a corner position and is an important streetscape

element. The intact sheop front, cast iron work, ornate parapet and |

original signs combine to make this building worthy of addition to this
Historic Buildings Register.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that the street facades conly of this building be added
£o the Historic Buildings Register, the Register of the National Estate,
and specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third
Schedule) .

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This building, constructed in 18861 for Thomas Pinsent (Signwriter) is a
terrace house with a built-in shop front where there would normally be

a verandah.

There is a residence entrance on right hand side, a central shuttered
shop window and a shop entrance on the left. The upper balceny has
intact cast iron with a fern pattern which was registered by Cocchrane
and Scott on the 5th August 1884“. The upper floor windows are flanked
by cement pilasters (an elaborate treatment for this shop design) with
debased corinthiian capitals, archivolts and elaborate voussoirs all
against a4 brick wall. The lower storey has an interesting shop entrance
door with two removable upper panels of the four panel door. These

1. Fitzroy Ratebooks 1886. Brick Shop £7O Thomas Pinsent Painter
(owner and occupier).

2. E.G. Robertson, Victorian Heritage Georgian House Melbourne 1960 P.72
Design Vic. 338. Cochrane & Scott, 5th August 1884.
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487 Brunswick Street (Contd.)

panels are bolted from the inside and when released can be lifted up and
cutwards. The shop window has intact shutters (six panels) locked in by
a horizontal bar at the base. Below is a skirting board with three panels
of bolection meouldings. Above is a two part transom light with curved
corners and above the door another plain transom light . with a flat
segmental head. The residence door is.elaberate with bolection mouldings
and pyramidal panels, late ccloured glass side lights and likewise side-
lights in the transom, but the central transom pane has been replaced.

A flat timber segmental head of unusual character surmcounts the transom
light. Piers on either side of the building and between the residence
door and shop window, frame the composition and are in bluestone with
tocled edges.

on the southern51oe of the building (the York Street elevation) the
orlglnal sign of Plnsent Slgnwrlter, and an early street sign {York
Street) are visible.

The intericr of the shop (the front room) has had the partitions removed
from it and has a deal beoarded ceiling. The hall and the second room
have intact doors, cornices and roses, but have cotherwise been re-decorated.
The banister, in very good condition, finishes in & spiral rather than
newel post. The doors opening off the upper landing are in original
condition with the mouldings in black and the rest varnished. The front
landing has much of the original brown floral wallpaper intact. There is
a wide stairwell light with intact etched blue and ruby glass. The

aoors and mouldings, in original conditicn, are more elaborate and are
picked out in black and other stains. The upstairs front room has an
intact marble fireplace (with one servant bell on either side)

and a glass fronted bookshelf. The front windows can be raised for
stepping out.

NAME ; Lord Newry Hotel ADDRESS: 543 Brunswick Street
CONSTRUCTICN DATE: 1873

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: James Arnold

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: Bl

BUILDING CITATION:
A simple two storey corner hotel Built in 1873 and subsequently remodelled
cn the ground floor in c.1920. The upper floor facade is intact and very
Plain - only a projecting cornice breaks up an otherwise unmodelled facade.
It is likely that the building originally had a verandah.

This building is of importance as a corner streetscape element along
Brunswick Street.

RECOMMENDAT IONS
-1t is recommended that this building be specified under the Tewn and
Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzrcy Ratebook 1874; Brick Hotel 9 rooms f60. James Arnold {(owner)
Mrs. Lever (Publican).
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NAME - House
CONSTRUCTION DATE:
ARCHITECT:
BUILDER:

PIRST OWNER:
PRESENT OWNER:
CONSTRUCT L i
MATERIALS:

CCHSERVATICH

unknown .
unknown
D.B. &yk, T. Feoo

Red brick, galv.
iron roof

AD

18927

ADDRESS: 591 Brunswick Street

It is reccommended that the street facade oniy of 4his pbuilding be retained
on the Keglster of the Maticonal Estate, and speciflsd under Zlause & of tne
Town and Jourty Planning 2ct {Third Schedulez:
l. Fitzroyv Ratebocks: Great difficulty was found in tracing this property
in the ratebooks due to changses in numbering in Brunswick Street.
2. The Naticnal Trust file records this building as being constructed in
- 1892, Verification required.
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NAME . House (former shop) ADDRESS : 599 Brunswick Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: unknown

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

PRESENT OWNER: Enrigue and Luz Ecija
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork
CONSERVATION AREA: A5

BUILDING CITATION:

This single storey shop flush to the pavement is of a most unusual design.
The facade with an arch headed window and door, and twc occuli windows, 1is
surmounted by an elaborate pediment. Above the central section is a semi-
circular pedimental motif containing an elaborate scallop shell and
surmounted by an acroterion. There is evidence of a former verandah and
urns, of which cnly the bases now remain.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that the street facade of this building he added
to the Register of the National Estate, and specified under Clause 8
of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This single storey shop flush to the pavement, is a most unusual design.
Although the building elements appear decorative and late, the composition
is relatively simple for the time, and has an almost primitive feeling.

The facade has an arch headed door and wide arch window which both have a
continuous architrave running through to the keystone (decorated with a
face). Between the dcor and the window and again on the right hand sice

cf the window are two oculi or round windows with four keystones and
stained glass of a late charvacter. The front door itsslf is a six panelled
bolection moulded pyramidal panelled dodr with a large nail head moulding
strip forming the transom above. The lunette has a plain glass panel.

The facade 1is painted, and the string course with wrought iron mouldings
provide evidence of a feormer verandah. Above, there is a plain cement
panel which may have carried a sign, then a cornice with small consoles
and a number of dentils between each. These are flanked by vermiculated
blocks supported on scrolls., B2Above this again there is a relatively plain
section surmcunted by a balustraded parapet with sguare balusters. This
is again of late character, with a lush treatment of the central secticn
surmounted by semi-circular pedirmental motif, containing an elaborate
scallop shell and topped with an acroterion. The surrcounding archivelt
moulding has small floral paterae. At the side of this balustrade there
have been urns of which only the bases now remain.
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NAME : Railway Sub~Station ADDRESS :

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1915

BUILDER: Swanston Bros.
FIRST OWNER: Victorian Rallways
PRESENT OWNER: Victorian Railways
CONSTRUCTION

MATERTALS: Red brick

CONSERVATION AREA: B7

BUILDING CITATICON

This monumental building of a Renaissance design was constructed in 1915,
It is similar to many other substaticns which were built at this time in
response to the electrification of the railway lines. Rectangular windows
to the ground floor are topped by a main floor of arched windows linked v

a continucus impost mould. A projecting cornice surmcounts the building with

a segmental pediment at one end surmounted by an abstracted parapet block.

Internally there is a dramatic use of space. The vertical windows with
arched heads produce a cathedral effect and are of particular interest in
the context of industrial architecture.

The building is of significance in that it can be viewed in its entirety
from the adjacent Park Street reserve. It is an important streetscape
component in the Park Street area.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this building be referred to the Government Building
Advisory Council. It is also recommended for addition to the Register of
the National Estate and for specification under Clause 8 of the Town &
Country Planning Act (3rd Schedule),

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

When the railways were electrified there were many switching rcoms and
substaticns built at the same date to a similar design. The substations
at Glenroy, Caulfield, Mentone, Seafcord, East Camberwell and Deer Park

are similar to the North Fitzroy station. However the relationship to

the open space of Park Street makes it possible to view the North Fitzroy
substation in its entirety. This building, constructed in 1915 by

Swanson Bros.l has a strong impact on the surroundings and the monamental
design can be appreciated in this location. This building is therefore
considered of local and state wide significance.

In addition the design of Fitzroy is better emphasised because it combines
brickwork and render - many other substations are completely rendered

Internally there is a dramatic wuse of space. The main hall,where heavy
electrical equipment was brought in by a railway track with an overhead
gentry, is vast and spectacular. It is brightly lit by a series of vertical
windows. Tnese are metal glazed with arched heads and are 6.4 metres by
2.1 metres wide. They produce a bright almost cathedral like effect and
are of particular interest in the context of industrial architecture.

The floor of this area is broken up into different bays and levels by
concrete walls.
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Railway Sub-Station {(Contd.)

In contrast to the extravagant use of space in the main machine hall, the
switch rooms on the south are a series of concrete cells served rather
dangercusly by a series of steel ladders. A recessed balcony on the first
floor level with a simple cast iron baluster crossed with a circle motif
provides an intriguing refinement for this extracrdinary building.

1. Contract Book Vic. Rail lists 20 drawings of this substation. However
only & were located and consulted. Contractor: Swanson Bros. signed

16.6.1915
NAME . House ADDRESS 17 Delbridge Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1890
ARCHITECT: unknown
BUILDER: unknewn - _
FIRST GwNER: Mark Allen (photographer) \
FPRESENT OWNER: A.T. Bebonis
CCNSTRUCTION
iATERIALS: rendered brickwork
CONSERVATION AREA: B9

DING CITATION:
Titis two storey hnouse was constructed in 1890 for Mark Allenl a
hotographer., It nas an arcadec frent with the gable running out
over the balcony level and the parapet at tne front line. It is
possikly the best example of this tvpe in Nerth Fitzrov, althougn
the present palnt ¢olours are not appropriate, The most distinctive
feature of the nouse 15 the frieze band of tiles surrmcunting =he
upper arcade. The parapet, supported ¢n a dentillated cornice,
consists of an interlocking balustrade, sguare name plate framed bv
large scrolls and balls. The composition 1s pleasing and the
arcading at both levels 1s finely detailed.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this building be added to the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzrcy Ratebook 1890: Brick house, 7 rooms £50. Mark Allen
Photographer.
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NAME ; Bandstand ADDRESS: Idinburgh Gardens

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1924 S

ALTERATIONS: Base wall rendered

ARCHITECT : Edward Twentyman

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Crown Land (managed

T by F.C.C.)

PRESENT OWHER: Crown Land (managed
by F.C.C.)

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: Masonry, Wunderlich
metal roof sheeting

CONSERVATICN AREA: A5

(16) Bandstand, Edinburgh Gardens, Fitzroy.

BUILDING CITATION:

This pavilion was constructed in 1924 to the design of honary architect
Edward Twentyman.l The scheme derives frcm the Tholos of Delpni. It

is a circular Doric building with rather attenuated ceolumns, mcre Tuscan

or Roman Doric than Greek DRoric. There are 8 plain unfluted shafts with
five panels of metopes between. The dividing triglyphs have two vertical
snafts and are complete with guttae, all slightly brittle and thin in
execution. There 1s a plain cornice above 1t and a dome in metal sheeting.

The pavilion kase is a solid drum and there ig a high £light of stairs
rising to it.

An early photegraph of the building2 shows that the base was originally
rusticated and the rough cast finish a later alteration. There was
originally an iron fence arcund the structure.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

Tt is recommended that this building {(as part of the Edinburgh Gardens
complex) be added to the Register of the National Estate and be specified
under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

Plague on building.

Forty Years of Wunderlich Industry 1887-1927, Publicity Dept. of
Wuanderlich Ltd, Sydney, 1927 p.60 (held at State Library of Victeria).
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HNAME: House
CONSTRUCTICH DATE:
ARCHITECT:
BUILDER:

FIRST OWNER:
PRESENT OWNER:

ADDRESS: 62 Falconer Street

1900

unknown

unknown .
Charlctte Morton
Robert Pools

CONSTRUCT I0N
MATERIALS:

Timber, corrugated
iron roof
CONSERVATION AREA: 29

BUILDING CITATION:

This timber house, constructed for Charlotte Morton in 19001, replaced an
carlisr brick house winich was possibly destroyed py fire. It is a three
gabled composition with the central larger gable recessed and & verandah
connects the two pavilion wings. The cast iron frieze work is of a iate
character. There is intact leadlighting to the windows with hood moulds
over. The gable valence boards are plain surmounted by a delicate timber
finial. The fence was added at a later date, possibly ¢.1228. The
adjolining timber stable is similar in execution but in poor condition.
This building is important in a local context. It is one of the few intact
and finely detailed early timber houses in North Fitzroy.

RECOMMENDATIONSG :

It is recommended that this building be added to the Register of the
Hational Estate, and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook: 1899 brick house 4 rooms Charlotte Morton f18;
1500 weatherboard house 5 rocms Charlotte Morton £18.

NAME: Fitzroy Cricket Club Grandstand ADDRESS: Edinburgh Gardens

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888

ARCHITECT: N. Billing & Scn

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Crown Land (managed
by F.C.C.)

PRESENT OWNER: Crown Land (managed
by F.C.C.)

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: Brickwork base, timber,
galv. iron roof

CONSERVATION AREA: AS
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Fitzroy Cricket Club Grandstand {Contd,)

BUTILGNG CITATION.

This grandstand, constructed in 1888 to the design of N. Billing and Son
Architectsl, is half hipped at either end with a small projecting gable
{originally designed to take a clock fac=) on the southern elevatiocn.

A subsidiary cantilever roof below the main roof surrounds the building,
strutted out from iron columns by diagonals. These unfluted corinthian
columns have connector joints specially cast to take the struts. A
balustrade =7 cast iron panels (partially hollcow backed) of a flamboyant
late character runs along the fromt and up the slcping sides. Special
panels with raking tops and bottoms have besn cast to fit the slope.

The rear of the grandstand has panels with diasgcnal bearding set in
chamfer stopped frames similar to the timber gateticuse. The timkber
trussed rocf, clad in corrugated iron, appears to have supported finials
at e=ither end. There are flag poles at the far end above the ¢ables.

The adicining stand, of which only the foundations remain, appears Lo
nave been the same or similar. This stand was pbuilt in 1905 to th
of £3,000°. This stand was burnt down.

2 Ccost

ing grandstand is of impcerizancs 1n a local context, and is an
important landmark to the area.

RECOMMENDATICNS @
it is reccmmended tnat this kuilding be added to the Register of the
Natlonal Estate {as part of the Fitzroy Cricket Clue comwlex) and

5

specified under Clause 8.

1. Aurcralian Builldsr & Contracrors jews  12.3.1888 tenders called
DL Weekiy Times £ May 1935
RERTS Fitzroy Cricthet 21l AUDERIO L Uriniuryn Zardens

Timbay Gatehouse
CONETELCTTCN DATE: UnLXnown
ARCHITECT. UnKNCwWr
BUILDER: unknown
FIRET OWRER: Jrown Land {manage.
o o Ly the F.C.C.)
FRELSENT T.LITE: Jroewn Land (Managed

by tie Z.CTL0.
1'.‘
. Dosizey, galv. 1x CTO T

__ VAT TN AR.EE; A5
BLILDTAG LITATION:

fhe <. . Ze. oailding, of similar character to the first pavilion in the

Parllé.entary Gardens, is a five bay arrangement with a padiment over the

central zay. The roof is of corrugated iron with delicate cast iron

riage capiring along the main and transverse ridges. The valence board-
ing (similar to the brick gatehouse on the southern side of the cricket
ground) consists of short pointed lengths of board projecting downwards
so that a palr of adjeoining beards form an cgee arch. This boarding
continues around to the gable ends. BAbove each gateway bay are panels
containing diagenal bearding with chamfer stopped timber framing members.
Two very simple half finials remain - these are composed cf a central
spike and a little bracket which prajects outwards from the gable end
{not backwards into the roof ridge).

The date of construction is not known. The building does not appear on
the M.M.B.W. Survey of 1895, but was probably constructed socon after this

date around 1900. The building is at present in peoor condition and
is being renovated.
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itszY cricket Club Timber Gatehouse {Contd.)

AOMMENDATIONS :

is recommended that this building be added to the register of the

tlonal Estate (as part of the Fitzroy Cricket Club complex) and specified
jer Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act.

Fitzroy Cricket Club Brick Gatehouse ADDRESS. Brunswick St. (cnr.Freeman $t.)
X1

RUCTION DATE: <©1895

~HITECT: unknown

FITLOER: unknown

5w OWNER: Crown Land (managed by
F.C.C.)
SENT OWNER: Crown Land (maraged by

F.c.C.

STRUCTION ) .

TERIALS : Fed orl
roor,

NSERVATION AREA: AD

JILDING CITATIGH: .

is building, constructed around the turn of the century, is composad cf
wen bays, with the end bays surmounteda by unusual pyramical roofs
eminiscent of the work of William Kent. The facade is in red brick
Jecorated by cement bands. The four projecting gables are decorated

gith timber gable ends and finials, This building provides an important
riréetscape element to Brunswick Street and Freeman Street,

OMMENDATTONS :

is recommended that this building (as part of the Fitzroy Cricket Clup
plex) be added to the Fegister of the HNational Estate, and specified
der Clause 8 of the Town and CountryPlanning Act (Third Schedule}.

ILDING ANALYSIS:

is building constructed probably c18951 presents a facads to Freesman
‘ﬁreet of seven bays. The four bays projecting slightly forwards are
Urmounted by timber finials., The end bays behind the gables zre sur-
unted by unusual pyramidal roofs, (with finials now missing) reminiscent
Of the work of William Kent.?

€ whole facace is in red brick decorated by cement bands (with evidence of

‘ormer ochre colouring), and is typical of building work in the early
entieth century.

hﬁ ©riginal use of this building is uncertain. In the ground floor there
e lavatories and urinals all the way along. The upper floor locks as
Ough it must have been a sitting or standing area. It is now sheeted
PVer but has ornamental peinted valence boards hanging down all the way
long, This is similar to the timber work in the timber gatehouse at the
Tth side of the cricket ground.

; gate of this building in not known. However it appears on the 1897
W. survey map and was possibly built just prior to this date,

The building appears on the 1895 Board of Works Plan. By
| An English Architect c1665 - 1748.
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NAME: Former Moran & Cato Shop ADDRESS: 63 Holden Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1919

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: "

FIRST OWNER: Moran.& Cato ~

PRESENT OWNER: Particleboard and Ply-
wood Pty. Ltd.

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: red brick

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION:

This building, constructed in 1919 for Moran and Cato, is of interest only
for its size and substantially intact Victorian facade. There have been
some alterations: the shop windows have Ieen replaced by crude modern paning
and the doors have been replaced. On the Rae Street elevation a former

arch has been replaced by a large rectangular opening.

RECCOMMENDATIONS ;
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS: 1

This building, constructed in 19197, is only remarkable for its size and
substantially intact facade. It has a bluestone base course, rough dressed
all the way round, except for the little shop front on the corner with the
splayed entrance doocr, where there is dressed bluestone and a perforated
iren ventilating panel below the shop window, Bluestone piers surround

the corner entrance The shop windows have keen replaced by a crude modern
paning and the doors have also been replaced.

The facade is surprisingly Victerian in detail. It is in face brick ané
the lower windows have fairly plain rectangular architraves., The upper
windows have arched heads linked by a three way impost moulding, plain
brackets below the sills and simple keystones. »Above the window at the
top there is a simple cornice.

On the Holden Street side there is an intact arched entrance way into

the stables, whereas cn the Rae Street side there have been scme alterations:
a former arch has been replaced by a large rectangular opening with a concrete
lintel and scome upper floor windows have been inserted adjoining the shop.

This shop was constructed for Moran and Cato, Importers and Manufacturers.
From 1905 Moran d Cato owned this site2, and operated extensive stabling
at this location™, until 1919 when the present building was constructed.

1. 1319 Fitzroy Ratebook, Meoran & Cato Pty. Ltd. Merchants, Brick Store
and Stables d{l65.

2. 1905 Fitzroy Ratebook. Moran & Cato Land 60'4" x 116' {10
3. J. Smith Ed. Cyclopedia of Victoria 1903 Veol, 1 p. 514
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NAME : St. Josephs
CONSTRUCTICON DATE:
ARCHITECT :

BUILDER:

School (Cruciform Building) ADDRESS: 106 Holden Street

1911
unknown
unkrnown

FIRST OWNER:
PRESENT OWNER:
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS: red brick,
CONSERVATION AREA: -

St. Josephs School
St. Josephs Schocl

slate roof

BUILDING CITATION:

This building constructed in 1911 is a single storey cruciform plan
schocl building. The building is constructed of red brick and is
gecorated by a c¢ream brick band at sill height, cement bands, and
an elaborate cement parapet deccorated by semicircular motifs and
corbelled turrets. The front gable end is of a mixed eclectic
character, not of high quality.

The building itself is rather clumsy in design and composition. It
is of interest conly in a local context as part of the streetscape of
Holden Street.

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of
the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

! This building, constructed in 19111, is a single storey cruciform plan

school building. The central section which reads as a polygon from the
outside is little more than a square with chamfered corners and inter-

nally has a false ceiling.

It is not possible to discern the nature of

the original space.

Externally the roof is surmcunted by a small louvred

ventilating lantern of a slightly unrefined barogque character.

The building i1s constructed of red
band of cream brick at sill height
front (north) wing has a basilican
are surmcunted by a cement parapet with corkelled turrets at the
corners. The parapet is decorated by loopy semicircles (filled with
vertical strips) which are suspended from the top of the parapet.

This detailing is similar to the work of MacKinteosh, and is found on his
Glasgow School of Art building (18%7-9).

brick decorated by a three course
and cement bands elsewhere. The
cross section., The two side wings

The front gable end is cf a mixed eclectic character, again not of high
quality. There is a cross at the top (with strange foliated decoration
at the base) which caps a pediment. There is a suggesticn of vertical
half timbering at the top part of the gable end. Below, there is a
triple light ventilator with two further fake panels on either side,
with some strange ornamental work. The interior has been completely
modernised.

1. Foundation Stone {in Latin}
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HAME: House

CONSTRUCTICN DATE: 1892
ARCHITECT: unknown
BUILDER: unknown -

John Meckiff
G.H. Pritchard

FIRST OWNER:
PRESENT OWNER:
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS : brick,
CONSERVATION AREA: A8

slate roof

BUILDING CILITATION:

This house was constructed in 1892 for John Meckiff.

1870's and 1880’s.

ADDRESS :

39 Kneen Street

John Meckiff was
well known in the building and contraciting trade of Melbourne during the

The house itself is of a striking formal eclectic

Renaissance composition with an arcade in 2 orders returning around the

corner.

The spandrel panels are in decorative relief tile work and the

cornice is supported on paired brackets with ribboned garlands between.
The balustraded parapet supports draped urns with spiked balls.

1

h
The house 1s
£

an unustal decorative arcaded composition.

'he unusual central mansard roof appears to be a later addition.

The whele

effect is one of opulence, typical of the late boom pericd.

RECOMMENDATIONS ;

Tt is recommended that this building be added to the Historic Buildings
Register, the Register of the National Estate, and the Town and Country

Planning Act (Third Schedule}.

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

39 Kneen Street, built for John Meckiff,

is first menticned in the 1892

Fitzroy Ratebook when it was described as a brick house, 1l rooms and

stable { £65).71
in 1888 which was valued at £20.%

Meckiff had constructed a wood werkshop on the site

John Meckiff, first owner of this building, was extremely well-known
in the building and contracting trade of Melbourne duxing the 1870's
and 1880's according to biographical details included inVicteria and

its Metropolis:

Meckiff, John, North Fitzroy, was born at Poplar, London, 28th October,
1839 served his apprenticeship to Messrs, C. J. Mair and Co., shipbuilders,
Millwall, as a carpenter and joiner, and was alterwards employed by
Messrs. Watts Brothers an several railway stations on the Morth London
line. He arrived-in Victoria in 1870, and was engaged as foreman
carpenter for Mr. Charles Carter, of Queen-street, for ¢wo years, on the
additions 1o the residences of Mr. Sturt, P.M., Mr. Ireland, Q.C., at
Templestowe, and Mr, Lynch, at Brighton. In 1873, he contracted for the
erection of Perry's kay and corn store, butcher's shep, and two residences
in 1874 e was empleyed by Mr. Mitchell, the contractor, on the additional
story to Sargood's warehouse, Flinders-street; several warchouses in
Flinders-lane ; the Scots Church, Collins-sireet; Mr, Laidlaw's residence,
Heidelberg; the Ladies’ College, Eust Melbourne; St. Stephen’s Chureh,
Richmond; an additienal story to Champion's Hotel, Swanston-street; Mr,
Rowe’s residence, Tempiestowe; and the Victoria Coffee Palace, Collins-
street. In 1875, he was foreman for Mr. James Moore, at the Catholic
preshytery, South Melbourne, &c. He was also employed by Messrs.
Pickering and Sutherland, at the State-school, South Melbourne; and ay
Finley's Brewery, South Richmond; and was then foreman for Messrs,
Rawlings and Sayers, at Webster's warehouse, Fiinders-lane; the

residences of Mr, Bruce, South Yarra: and My, Newman, Mount Grand
View, Prahran. He then entered the employ of Messrs. Nation and
Gamilin, and worked on ibe National Bank of Victoria, Collins-strest ;
Briscoe's warehouse, Little Collins-street; was foreman carpenter for the
same firm ar the Eastern Market, Lincoln and Stuart’s warehouse,
Flinders-lane; Malls' hay and corn store, Brunswick-street; fixed Fairbank’s
scales and weighbridges in the Exhibition, 1881 ; wasar the Coloniai Bank,
the Mutual Store, Selborne chambers, the Mercantile bond and free
stores; and was the foreman joiner for the same firm at their workshops,
Church-street, Richmond; re-instated their premises after the receni fire;
superintended the work at a large number of mansions, residences, and
stores ; George and George's alterations; tramway workshops, Nichelson-
street, and engine-house, Punt-road. In 1885, Mr. Meckiff joined the firm
of Sanders, Turner, and Meckiff, builders and contraciors, of Canning-
street, and erected numerous terraces, dwellings, &c.; also the Wesleyan
Church in Sackville-sireet.  This partoership was diasolved in 1885, and
the firm of Sanders and Meckiffl was established in 1386. They have since
built the engine-house and chimney stack at the rajlway goods platiorm,
and many large stores, hotels, and dwellings throughout Melbaurne and
tha suburbs, and are still carring ant extensive contracts,

1. Fitzroy Ratebock 1892
2. Fitzroy Ratebook 1888
3. A. Sutherland (ed)

28

Victoria and Hetropolis

2 Vols. 1888 Vol. 2 p.647




House, 39 Kneen Street {Continued)

The house itself is of a formal unusual eclectic Renaissance
composition with an arcade in 2 orders returning around the corner.
The arcade is composed of Roman doric pilasters with relief tile work
spandrel panels surmounted by a band of key pattern frieze, a cornice
supported on paired brackets with ribboned garlands between, and a
balustraded parapet carrying draped urns and spiked balls.

The unusual central section with a semi-mansard roof contains corner
windows with charming semi circular heads, but reflects an undistinguish-
ed interior space and seems to be a later addition. The interior front
rocms are of considerable pretension with the original fire place and
intact elzborate cornice.

NAME . House ADDRESS: 124 Michael Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1884

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: Thomas Chevalier

FIRST OWNER: Thomas Chevalier, builder
PRESENT OWLIER. M.A. Mossiman
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS : rendered hrickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: A9

BUTLDING CITATION:

This hcouse, constructed in 1884,l i1s of interest for its narrow site and
somewhat distorted composition. There is a projecting bay at the ground
floor level which supports an upper balcony with a simple cast iron
balustrade, timber posts and sawtooth bressumer mouldings. fThe parapet
aoove surmounts a cornice supported on single brackets which alternate
with paterae. The pedimental motif with nail head archivelt moulding

is flanked by scrells and urns. ©On the ground floor there are hood
moulds to the windows (broken by a face in the central window) which are
connected across the facade at impost.level and linked tc the label
mould of the entrance door.

The aouble iron palisade fence is intact.
RECOMMENDATICNS :

It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

"l1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1884 Brick houss 4 rooms j40. Thomas Chevalier
Builder.
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NAME: Hinton Villa ADDRESS: 77 McKean Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1882

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Henry George
PRESENT OWNER: R.L. Toy
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: polychrome brick

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION:
This house, constructed in 1882, provides an excellent example of an
intact polychrome single storey terrace house.

The central window has intact sidelights and colenettes, and the fanlight,
inscribed with "Hinton Villa" is intact. The

verandah rcof is surmounted by an exceptionally high ornate cement
rendered parapet. This house is the best example of its type in North
FPitzroy and is of local importance.

RECOMMENDATIONS . o
It is recommendeda that the external facade of this building visible from

the street be added to the Register of the National Estate and be
specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third

Schedule)

BUILDING ANALYSIS:.

This house, constructed in 1882 for Henry George,l is an excellent example
of an intact polychrome, single storey terrace house. In the central
window there are intact etched ruby glazing sidelights divided from the
central pane by colonnettes. Surmounting the door is a dentillated
transom bar supported by ancones. The faniight with "Hintcn Villa"

partly obscured, is intact as are the sidelights. The lower glass beside
the docor has bheen replaced.

There is an ogee profile corrugated verandah roof surmounted by an
exceptionally high cement rendered parapet {(with some original creamy
colcured paint remaining). The parapet is composed of a frieze with
paterae between acanthus brackets, a cornice, then a large central
pedimental motif with a square sectioned balustrade on either side and
urns en the top. A central motif with elaborate scallop shell,
vermiculation and a segmental pediment is capped by an acroterion.

An intericr inspection was refused.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1882, Brick house 5 rooms é30. Henry George
{owner). James Forbister Dentist (occupier).
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NAME; House ADDRESS: 96 McKean Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1892

ARCRITECT: unknown

BUILDER.: Henry Rowe?

FIRST COWHER: Henry Rowe (builder) _
PRESENT OWNER: M. & H. Sheslock |
CCNSTRUCTION :
MATERIALS: brick, galv. iron roof

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION: o
This building constructed in 1892, probably by Henry Rowe, a builder,

1s notable for its roof line which extends out over the upper balcony

leaving the eaves exposed at the front. There 1Is masonry arcading to

the upper and lower flocor, separated by a friezeat the dividing line. i
At both levels the arcading is followed by label moulds terminated by
foliated crockets.

Like 17 Delbridge Street, this arcaded twc storey composition with the
roof line projecting over the upper balcony, is an excellent example
of this terrace type.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this building be retained on the Historic Buildings
Register, the Register of the National Estate, ancd be specified under
Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act {Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:
This two storey terrace house was constructed in 1832 by Henry Rowe,
a builder.

There is masonry arcading on the upper floor and arcading suppcorted on

Corinthian iron columns on the ground floor. At the dividing line

there is a frieze with palmette motifs, a balustrade with square

sectioned balusters, square piers at the balcony level with debased

ionic capitals and nail head moulding around the arch (a Norman motif).

At both levels the arcade is followed by a label mould terminated !
with foliated crockets at either end. Below eaves line there is a
frieze of acanthus brackets with panels of vermiculation between, and
at either side consoles with masks and balls surmcunt the side walls
at the roof level. The eaves are exposed with no parapet above. The
door has interesting glass in the side lights and side transom lights
which appears to be cpague glass with painting of birds and flowers

on the inside. The main transom light is gone,

The main feature of this whole design is that the main roof extends
out over the upper balcony and the eaves are exposed at the front.
The arcade and frieze detailing is refined, and the front fence is
intact.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1892. Brick house 5 rooms £40 Henry Rowe. Builder.
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HAME ; Dentconville ADDRESS: 151 McKean Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE. isg7

ALTERATIONS : to the rear

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST COWWER: John Denton (Auctioneer)

PRESENT OWNER: A.¥. & H.M. Willingham,
W.D. & R.N. Beatocn

CONSTRUCTION

i TERIALS. cement rendered brickwork

slate roof
CONSERVATION AREA: -

Tl lan
A

il
.

Lata

_.'Eil“il’;!!‘.l uﬂg;: 5
BUILDING CITATION: —
"Dentonville” constructed in 1887 for John Denton, an auctioneer, is of
greatest interest as a complex. The large building behind the house

"Denton Hall" was constructed in 1894, presumably as an auction hall .

{see separate discussion). The front of the house 1s arcaded at both
levels and the rcof extends cut over the balcony line surmcunted by a
rarapet. The facade trsatment i1s simple, ana there is an interesting
frieze at the daividing line made up of a fern and flower pattern.
Surmounting the rocof is a balustraded widcow's walk.

BECOMMENDATIONS;

Tt is recommended that the street facace of "Dentenville” ke added to
the Historic Buildings Register, be retained con the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and
Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

"Centonvillie", constructed in 1887 for John Dentc:,l is of greatest

interest as a complex. There is a large nhall behind {prcbably

constructed in 18942) built presumably as an auction hall.

Victoria and ics Metropolis described Jonn Dentcn as -
" ... & native of Victoria, who was educated at Ballarat. He has
been in business as an auctioneer for the past eigat or nine years,
his auction room, one of tie largest in the colcony, being at 244
Smith Street. He algo ias branch estaplisaments in tiae Heidelberg
Road and in North Fitzroy.“3

“ne front of the heouse has arcading above and below and the roef
extends out cver the balcony line, with a pareapet at the front line.
he treatment is simple at both levels with square piers and axches
without archivolts, but with keystones with inscribed deccration.
There iz an unusual frieze at the dividing level with a fern and
flower gpactern made up in 38 cm  sections, possibly of baked clay.

At balcony level there is a balustrade of circles linked together

by blocks. The upper frieze consists of foliated roundels and
inscribed decoration between the roundels. The pediment kalustrade
consists of the same linked circles and the name plate “Dentonville".
The urns or balls are missing at the top. Surmounting the roof is a
balustraded widow's walk. The front docr has the original “Dentenville®
intact in gold leaf script across the transom. There is intact etched
ruby and blue side lights.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1887. Brick house, 6 rooms, i80. John Dentcon Auctioneer.

2. Fitzroy Ratebook 1894, Brick house, 7 rooms and hall {f80.
(Note that there is not a jump in valuation}.

3. Victoria and its Metropolis. Vwolume 2, pP.580
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Dentonville, 151 McKean Street (Continued)

The hall at the back, constructed in 1894, is of brick with the same
decoration in cement as on the front of the house applied to the face
of the brick. The rear of the hall has been altered. {See separate
discussion).

The interior of "bhentonville" has heen renovated, but there is a small
patch of original wall paper in the hallway, and an elzborate over-
mantle in the front room. John Denton remained at this location for
almost 52 vears (until 1930) when the property was sold to Michael
Beshara.

4, 1930 Directory.

HAME ; Denton Hall ADDRESS : Rear 151 McKean Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1894 ' v
ARCHITECT. unknown
BUILDER: unknown
FIRST OWNER: John Denton (auctioneer)
PRESENT OWHER. A.F. & H.W. willincham,
i.D. & R.N. Beaton
CCNSTRUCTION
HATERIALS: red brick, cement render

trim
CONSERVATION AREA: -~

BUILDING CITATION:

"Denton Hall" at the rear of Dentonville was constructed in 18941
presumably as an auction room. It 1s decorated by the same cement
frieze decoration as the front of the house. The plain brick
parapet with ornamental swags is surmounted by a pediment with
vermiculated blocks and the senicircular tympanum is inscribed
with "Denton Hall".

The windows have bowtell piped moulded corners and segmental arch
heads. The rear of the hall has been altered. The effect of the
facade is austere, decorated only by a delicate cement frieze,
garlands and pediment.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that the front facade conly of "Denton Hall' e
added to the Historic Buildings Register, be retained on the Register
of the HNaticnal Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town
ana Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1894: Brick house 7 rooms and Hall. {80
John Denton Auctioneer.
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NAME House ADDRESS: 177 McKean Street

CONSTRLCTION DATE: 1869

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown .\
FIRST OWIER: Charles Harrison, Salesman 5
PRESENT OWNER: E.T. & M.I. Pullen ;
CONSTRUCT ION

MATERIALS : masonry walls, galv.

iron roof
CDNSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION.

This house, constructed in 1869, was one of the first four houses in
McKean Street. In 1888 Mr. Corben, a mason, purchased the house, and
the name plate next to the door "J.B. Ccrben" iz a reminder of his
occupation., The house is simple with some interesting woodwork to
the verandah, a plain cornice and a simple cornice flanked by blocks
supported by conscles and a pediment motif of scrolls and foliage.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this house be specified under the Town and
Country Planning Act {Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This house, constructed in 1869, for Charles Harrison a Salesmanl
was one of the first four houses in McgKean Street. In 1880 Henry
Gecrge purchased the property and rented it to Mr. T.A. Kelly2 the
architect who designed St. Bridget's Church, Neorth Fitzroy and many
other buildings of importance. In 1888 the house was purchased by
Emmanuel Corben,3 a mason whe put up the name plate next tc the

door "J.B. Corben" in white marble with black inlaid marble 1ettering.4

L

There is interesting woodwork to the verandah : sguare chamfer
stopped timber posts, a plain bar across at frieze level, and
timber brackets of a 3 leaf design. (Some brackets and a corner
post missing). There is a very plain cornice flanked by blocks
supported by consoles, and a pediment motif of scrolls and foliage.

1. Fitzroy Ratebeook 1869. Charles Harriscn Salesman, brick and
weatherkboard and land £36.

2. Fitzroy Ratebock 188D. Kelly architect, Henry George (Cwner)
brick house six rooms £36.

3. Fitzroy Ratebook 1888. IEmmanuel Corben, mason (owner and ccgc.)
brick house six rooms, 5.

4. For Wilson Corben and Cc., slate mercharts, see official record of
the Melbourne International Exhibition 1880-1881 advert. p. iv
Victoria and its Metropolis Vol. 2 p.660
Cyclopedia of Victoria Vol 2 p.l42

Isaac Corben was the founding partner of this firm, but it is very
likely that J.B. Corben is connected.
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NAME ; House ADDRESS 121 McKean Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888

ARCHITECT : unknown

BUILDER: unknown .

FIRST QWNER: William Holgate
(Auctioneer)

PRESENT OWNER: Zaisen Nominees Pty @

CONSTRUCTION Ltd. [y

MATERIALS: polychrome brick,

slate roof
QONSERVATION AREL : -

BUILDING CITATION:
This house was constructed in 18881 for William Holgate, an auctioneer.
It is a polychrome triple fronted brick house with a polyvgcenal bay
window and an ogee profile verandah returning at cone side.

The brick eaves brackets are decorative, the iron frieze is of a late
character and the chimneys are intact with cement render chimney tops.
Internally a number of ceilings have been replaced in the 1930's, but
some intact marbled slate fire places remain. Fence and gate plers
not original.

This house is a fine example of a polychrome detached villa and is of
significance in a local context.

RECOMMENDATICONS @

It is recommended that this nouse be added tc the Register of the
Naticnal Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning aAct (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzrcy Ratebooks 1887 Weatherboard Hcouse, 3 rooms i26' Walter Powsll
Fitzrcy Rateboocks 1888-94 Brick house 11 rooms  £130 William Helgate

HAME Hatherlie ADDRESS : 222 McKean Street
CONSTRUCTIC DATE: 13888

ALTERATIONS. front balcony infilled

ARCHITECT: unknown St
P R, W HE !_"ﬂ!ﬂtﬁ,
FIRST OWNER: Samuel Lazarus | -
rRESENT OWNER: B. & E. Agcberli

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: polychrome brickwork

CONSERVATTION AREA: Ad
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Hatherlie House, 222 McKean Street (Contd.)

BUILDING CITATION:

This building constructed in 1888 for Samuel Lazarus, a financier, is a

twe storey polychrome brick terrace house with a small polychrome attachment
at the side. The detailing as a whole is not very remarkable. This terrace
is best appreciated in conjunction with 218 and 220 McKean Street. These
are also largely intact two stcrey poclychrome terraces. The three terraces
together combine to create an imposing streetscape element.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that houses 222 McKean Street be added to the Register
of the National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Tcwn and
Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS: -

This building, constructed in 1888 for Samuel Lazarus, a financier, is a
two storey polychrome terrace with a space at one side with a small
attachment set back from the front. The detailing as a whole is not

very remarkable. The verandah has been filled in, probably in the 1920's.
The balustrade is rather unusual with almost square balccny panels. These
panels are cf a late design from the catalogue of Excelsior Ircn Works

of South Melbourne issued by William Stephens in 1901.1

The parapet above has round section balusters cut through by the name

plate which is composed of incised pilasters flanking the name "Hatherlie."
One urn and an acroterion surmount the tympanum which is flanked by
scrolls on top of the balustrade. There are conscoles and decorated relief
blocks down the sides at both levels. The small side wing is cf similar
polychrome brickwork with a half timbered gable end. The interiocr has been
altered but has some pressed metal ceilings.

This terrace 1is best appreciated in conjunction with 218 and 220 McKean
Street, which are largely intact polychrome terraces

220 has an intact parapet with elaborate pedimental section scallop shell
balusters and screolls. The top of the pediment to 218 has been removed.

1. E.G. Robertson Victorian Heritage Gecrgian House Melbourne 1960 p.74

NAME ; Cameron House ADDRESS : 223 McKean Street
CONSTRUCTICN DATE: 1885
ARCHITECT . unknown
BUILDER: unknown
FIRST OWNER: Albert Lee Tucker,
Gentleman
PRESENT CWNER: Presbyterian Churcn
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS : masonry, slate roocf
CONSERVATION AREA: A4
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Cameron House, 223 McKean Street (Contd,)

BUILDING CITATION:

This two storey house was erected in 18851 for Mr. Albert Lee Tucker, a
prominent c¢itizen of Fitzroy.2 It is of a simple massive composition
with a projecting wing terminated by a polygonal bay. This bay is
modelled by stringcourses at two levels: the dividing line and at the
line of the arch springing of the arch headed windows. The balcony
cast iron work is of a refined pattern, and the ogee profile roof has
remnants of original striped roof colours. The chimneys have been
altered and the fence replaced.

RECQOMMENDATIONS
It is recopmmended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Tcwn and Ceountry Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Raetebogk 1885, Brick houss, 17 rooms 55180
dlbert Lee Tucker, Gentleman.

Jd. Tait Our Local Men of the Times: Biographical Sketches of the
rominent Clitizens of Collingwood and Fitzroy Melb., 1882 {(p.47-30
rticle on Albert Les Tucker)

HAME Moss Vale ADDFESS: 225 ilcKean Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE; 1893

SHRCHITECT UNKnown

BUILDER: unknown - -
FIRST OWNER: Henry Hyams, Boctmakexr I S
PRESENT OWHEE. Housing Commissicn ¢ Vic, T
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: polychrome brick

CONSERVATION AREA: Ad

ECGILDING CITATION:

This house, constructed in 1893 for Henry Hyams, 1s an excellent example
of a2 two storey polychrome bocm style terrace house. It has a very high
decorative intact parapet. The cast iron balcony panels are of a late

kevhole design. The front door has intact wocdgraining including imitation

walnut panels and intact coloured side lights. The iron fence and gate
plers are intact.

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that the street facade of this building be added to the
Histcric Buildings Register, the Register of the Naticnal Estate and be
specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third
Schedule) .
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Moss ﬁale, 225 McKean Street (Contd,)

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This two storey polychrome terrace house was constructed in 1893l for Henry
Hyams, bootmaker. It has a very high parapet comprised of a wide band with
swags, a band of paterae, a small strip of dentillation, a bracketed
cornice, then a balustrade with round secticn turned balusters, with the
central secticn cut through by conjoined ellipses. This is surmounted by

a lush semi-circular tympanum, containing another swag (flanked by
paterae) and the name Moss Vale 1891.1 Lush scrolls flank the tympanum

at the top of the balustrade and the pediment is capped by four elaborate
double handled urns and a palmette acroterion flanked by scrolls.
The cast iron work to the balcecny is of the late keyhole pattern. The
jeinery details on the house itself do not appear to be remarkakle. The
deoor has intact woodgraining including imitation walnut panels with intact
etched glass in the sidelights. There is a good intact iron fence with
square gate pilers surmounted by pineapples, and an intact chequerboard
marble and slate path. The interior has been modernised.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1893. Brick house 10 rooms £65. Henry Hyams i
Bootmaker. Pediment states 18%1, ,

WAME . Laslemere ALDRESS: 227 McKean Street
=
CONSTRULCTION DATE: 1s01 '
ARCEITECT: unknown :
BUILDER: unknown '
FIRST QWNER: Mr. R.B. Ashton, Dairyman
PRESENT CWNER. R. & M. Howden
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS: polychreme brick, slate
rocf
CONSERVATION AREA: A4

BUILDING CITATION:

This house was constructed in 19011 for R.B. ‘Ashton, dairyman. It is a
polychrome doukle fronted brick house with a pelygonal bay window,. The
verandah has a gablet marking the entrance with decorative cast iron
infill. The verandah frieze is a late design. The chirneys are intact

anda display an unusual semi-circular motif. The fence and piers are not
original.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this house be specified under the Town and Country
Planning Act {Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1901 Brick house 8 rcoms §80.. f

108 S




- .—ZI.zlson Street

L
il

ct. Brigids ADDRESS;

cTION DATE: 1869
1873 side aisles added
T.A. Kelly

Fortune
Reman Catholic Churchi
Roman Catheclic Church

v

bluestone, cement 4

dressings, terracotta ” .

- tile roof. A '

lcOtSERVATION ARER: -

P---—-“—‘-—'_"'____--____-

: N £ T
N - i "

: ey s HHRIIE

'BUILOING CITATION: ) _

The church was constructed in 1869, originally a= . =—=3i@ gabled nave

structure to the design of architect T.A., Kelly. = -= =Intractor was

i Fortune and the tender price was f1200.1:2. - —= -373 the side

‘aisles were adGed? by Kelly to create a three gac_ & Z5-2Tch, a scheme

kevived and usead by Pugin.

A more recent detraction has been the replacemer =z . === slate rocof

i{visible in an early photo ) by terracctta tiles - -- 1s totally out
lof character with the construction materials., T~ T2l the column
Eapitals are of an abstracted ornamental form rz—_. -Zx:2357 of Viollet
'le Duc's capitals at Aillant~Sur-Tholon {1863-7. = . =7 2se there isg

ﬁ;ttle of note internally.

beoh

i e design of the church is clumsy in cencepticr s-. . .= original
scheme was debased by the 1873 additions. Howe z—- -> <Z an important
slandmark teo Wiciiclson Street.

JRECOMMENDATIONS .

) - - oy . . . A - = = N
fThis building is recommended for specification =~ Z—zuse 8 of the

1own and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

?
g
g

d. Illustrateqd australian Wews 7.8.1869 p.156
%?- Argus 1.3.1869, p.3 tenders called

s Building Times 1.10.1869 p.4

Argus 11.8.1873 p.3 tenders called
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ST. BRIDGET's R. C. CHURCH, FITZROY.—T. aA. XELLY, ARCEITECT.
(17 St. Bridgid's, 1869
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NAME : Uniting Church ADDRESS: Nicholson St.( cnr. Church St.)

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 18732

ARCHITECT; Terry and Qakden
BUILDER: Murray Hall
FIRST OWNER: Metnoaist Church
PRESENT OWNER: Uniting Church
CONSTRUCTION

MATERTIALS: Polychrome brick

CONSERVATION AREA.

BUILDING CITATION:
A modest church, constructed in 1874 to the design of Percy Cakden ol

Terry and Cakden Architects. The brick facade is decorated by contrasting
bricks at the window heads and openings, with moulded bricks usad as
modillions under the side eaves. Colonettes with capitals flank the

west door with the label mould above terminating abruptly without

crockets. The buttresses are stepped out with cement cappings and the

bell tower rises up through the front gable terminating in a cast irocn
cross. Tne study undertaken by M.B. Lewis on this building fully

analyses the history and architectural composition. Whilst this church

is tne first in this manner by Percy Oakden there are numergus more
impocrtant examples c¢f his polychrome ecclesiastic work. These are
competently summarised in the report.

RECCMMENDATIONS .

This building is on the Historic Buildings Register. It is recommended
that it be retained con the Register of the National Estate and he
specified under Clause & of the Town ana Country Planning Act (Third
Scheaule) .

1. Report by Dr. M.B. Lewis “North Fitzroy Uniting Church" prepared for
the Historic Buildings Preservation Council 20,7.1975.

NAME: Simpsons Terrace ADDRESS: 500-506 Nicholson Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE. unknown

ARCHITECT : unknown ’

BUILDEK. unknown £ -
CONSTRUCTION ; :

MATERIALS rendered brickwork g o ~ o
CONSERVATION AREA: - '
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Simpsons Terrace, 5Q0~30& Nicholson Street. {(Contd.)

BUILDIWNG CITATION:

This row of four terraces is simple in conception. The palisade iron
fences are intact and are divided by projecting wing walls decorated
by heads. The upper facade is modest with hoods supported on consoles,
The window architraves are simply mcdelled. The upper cornice is
broken by projecting heads supported on consoles which reflect the
dividing line of the parapet wall behind. The whole effect is sinple
but well balanced and understated.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of
m.aie Town ana Country Planning Act (Third Schedule),

NAME ; Ytate Savings Bank LDDRESS: 720 Nicholscon Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1890
ADDITICQNS: 1922 - extension to
east
ARCHITECT : Wight and Lucas
BUILDER: unknown
FIRST QWHER: Melbourne Savings Bank
PRESENT CWNER: State Savings Bank
CONSTRUCTION
HATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CCNSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION:

This building, constructed L1, 1890 t¢ the design of architects Wignt

and Lucas, enbodies the diverse elements of boom classical architacture.
“hile most of the architectural elements can be found in tie c¢lassical
revpertoirs, they have been assenbled here in a rather capriciocus fashion.
In 1922 :-.2 bank underwent extensive alterations and & new banking
chamber was added at the east. An early pnotegraph shows the bank

after =.::ze alterations with the corner entrance filled in, the

criginal

P

zziustraded parapet and window guards {splkes). These have
subsequently beern removed and a corner entrance reinstated. A new
western wintdow has keesn inserted.

This puilding in a corner location is an important streetscape element.
However the alterations to the facade <etract from the inteagrity of
the building.

RECCMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this bank be aaded to the Register of the National

Estate and specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning
Act {Third schedule).




State Savings Bank, 720 Nicholson Street (7ontd.}

i
BUILUTING ANALYSIS: ‘
This building, constructed in l§90, was designea by the architects Wi ™Mt -j
and Lucas at a cost of £2,737." There is evidence that Wight wa- '
interested in producing a new or specifically Australian style and this
may account for the advanced character of this building which resembles
the later eclectic State Savings Bank building. While most of the
motifs can be found in the classical repertoire, they are put together
in a very heavy and rather capricious fashion. The building is two
storey with a curved corner entrance. The clumsy corner panel above the
entrance represents a section of a clagsical cornice with a pair of
triglyphs at either end surmounting a circular motif containing the
bank shield. In the recessed panels at the side and at the corner, there
are elaborate window motifs. On the upper floor arch heaced windows with
segmental pediments (with the bhottem chords missing)} are supgorted in
a mannerist fashion on top of scrolls which rise in turn from a small
section of entablature resting on a pair of pilasters.

The rusticated piers dividing th:s - ~dows (the corner piers of the
pavi’icr) T ave -ad ionic ~-»ital: with garlands. The base of these
ple.. COlpLocd - “rC g cables running vertically.

The = _ablature line on the bottom storey consists of a dentillated

cornice surmcunting a fieze which is in parts plain and in parts (in
the pavilion sections) deccrated by roundels or patterae between
compressed triglyph motifs. Guttae protrude below the lower moulding.

On the ground f1 'r there are masonry blocks represented by recessed
panels with a roil mculding, arranged in a ccarse manner. There are
bands of bosses running across the pilasters and crude corbels with
guadrant kases which support the main blocks forming the sides of the
pavilion section.

In 1922 the bank underwent extensive alterations and additions at a
cost of £3,367.2 The eastern wing was added as the new banking
chamber, and the front section of the bank converted into the Manager's
residence. A photograph, taken shortly after that date (¢.1224),
indicates that the corner entrance was infilled as part of this scheme.
This photograph shows the ¢riginal windows on the western facade which
have been replaced by a large window, original cast iron window guards
(spikes), and the balustraded parapet which has been subseguently
removed. The corner transom light has subsequently been infilled to i
take the State Savings Bank shield.

This bank enbodies the principles of koom classicism: distortion and f
elaboration of rules, concentration of ornament arcund the windows :
and doors, and an elaborate composition.

The upper floor windows have small metal balconettes (carried out on
conscles cf reduced quasi-ionic form) and continucus architraves around
the arched window heads, broken only by a keystone at the centre. These
keystones are of a floral motif, while the ones on the ground floor are
decorated by a stork with grasses and plants on either side.

The loggia consists of a series of arches between unusual columns with
Egyyptianizing round acanthus leaf capitals. These columns are doubled
at either end of the loggia and tripled at the splayed corners.

1. B. Trethowan "A Study of =anks in Victoria 1851-1939" for the Historic
Buildings Preservation Council. vUecenber 1976.

2. Plan held at State Savings Bank premises department.
Architects Sydney Smith Ogg and Serpell, Contractor A. Pithard.

3. Photograph held by State Savings Bank Archivist.




NAME: National Bank ADDRESS: 270 Queen's Parade

CCONSTRUCTION DATE: 1886

ALTERATIONS : New corner entrance
doors

ARCHITECT: W.A. Tyree’

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: National Bank

PRESENT OWINER: National Bank

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS : rendered masonry

CONSERVATION AREA: Al

BUILDING CITATION:
This bank, constructed in 1886, provides an excellent example of
transitional boom classicism bank architecture,

It is atwostorey corner bank with a recessed loggiz to the upper floor.
The lower floor has a bluestone rough dressed base. The parapet is
elaborate with an intact balustrade, balls and sculptural piece on

the splaved coxner., This 1is a significant corner bullding, and the
ornate design and composition combine t¢ maka tiils bkullding of
considerable merit and streetscape importance.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that the external envelcpe of thig puilding be adceda
te the Historiz Buildings Register, bz retained on the Register of the
National Estate, and be specified under Clause &8 of the Town and Country
Flanning Act {(Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This bank constructed in 1886 to the design of architect W.A., Tyree,
provides an exXcellent example of transitional boom classicism, a style
characterised by the distortion and elaperation of the rules and
conventions of ccnservative classicism.

It is a two storey corner bank with the entrance through the splayed
corner, and the Queens Parade side has a separate entrance to the
residence. The upper floor contains a recessed loggla running along
part of both faces and around the corner, but closed at either end.
The lower flcor has a bluestcone rough drezsed base, a rusticated
section and arched windows, hetween which runs an impeost moulding with
an elaborate band of acanthus leaves.

The mairn sntrance door consists of a pediment on tuscan columns framing
a transzom iunette which is now in plain glass, a dentillated transom
bar anc the deocrs below which have been modernised.

The residence entrance also has a pediment, but in this case it is
mcunted on plain pilasters. There is a palisade barred double gate and
a recessed space inside with steps running to the door. The entrance
door itself at the top of the steps is a six panelled door, again with
a lunette transcom light and dentillated transom bar.

1. Argus 13,2.1886 p,17

2. Trethowan, "A Study of Banks in Victoria 1851-1939," for the Historic
Buildings Preservaticn Council December 1976.
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National Bank, 270 Oueens Parade (Contd.}

{18) Naticnal Bank, Clifton Hill, 1509
from National Bank of Australia, Scuvenir of the Jubilee
of the Bank 1858~1908, Melbourne, 1909, p.49.

NAME : Fun Factory ADDRESS: 284 Queen’'s Parade

CONSTRUCTION DATE. 1883

ARCHITECT: unknown
BUILDER: unknown
PRESENT OWNER: M. & M. Chicdo
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: red brick

CONSERVATION AREA: Al

3

BUILDING CITATICN: ; . 1 :
This three storey brick shop, constructed in 1883, 7 is of a well
proportioned composition. The bullding is framed by cement faced
guoins (alternately vermiculated), and two projecting cement string
courses, The building is surmcounted by a parapet supported on brackets
(separated by vermiculated sections) which consists of a central name
plate (containing the date 1883) flanked by scrolls and topped by a
segmental arch with acroteria. The windowsare framed by cement
archivolts broken by keystones. Vermiculated blocks supported on
consoles, project at the dividing level. Part of the original

window framing survives at clerestory level. The verandah has been
removed.

This building is & prominent landmark to the Queens Parade shopping
Centre,

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Written on pediment.
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NAME : A.N.Z. Bank ADDRESS ; 370-74 Queens Parade

CONSTRUCTION DATE; 1889

ALTERATIONS: }

ARCHITECT: Oakden, Addison and Kemp
BUILDER.: J. Bell

FIRST OWNER;: London Chartered Bank
PRESENT OWHER: A.N.Z2. Bank

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: red brick, slate roof

CONSERVATION AREA: Al

BUILDING CITATION: s
This bank, designed by Oakden,Addison and Kemp in 1889 is the most
notable example of Queen Anne hank architecture in Melbourne. The corner
tower and small gables above the windows are both reminiscent of the

work of Richard Norman Shaw. The facade is broken up by painted
horizontal bands (these were originally of cream brick), segmental

arch window heads, plain sills with aprons below, and an elaborate
pattern of stepped out brickworks at the eaves line.

Tha entrance door has been modernised but this does not greatly detract
from the overall appearance of the building.

The building serves as an important landmark to the Queen s Farade
Shopping Centre.

RECCMMENDATICONS :

It is recommended that the external facade of this building be added to
the Historic Buildings Register, retained on the Register of the Haticnal
Estate and specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act
{(Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This three storey red brick building on an acute angle site is in the
Queen Anne style of architecture, and was designed by the architects
QOakden Addiscn and Kemp in 1889.i This firm of architects is one of
the mest notable exponents of Queen Anne architecture in Melbourne,
and designed two other branches for the bank in this style - at Kerang
and St. Arnaud.? All three banks exhibit the characteristics of Queen
Anne architecture: Steep pitched gable rocfs with tall elaborate
chimneys, exposed brick walls with stucco or centrasting brick mouldings
and no rocf parapets, and pointed or segmental arch windows. These
windows are a distinctive feature of Richard Norman Shaw's work in
England (fo; example, 0ld Swan House, London) .

The Horth Fitzroy branch is the most notable example of Queen Anne bank
architecture in Melbourne. Built origirally for the London Chartered
Bank, it became the Londeon Bank of Australasia on 10th August 1893,

the E.S. & A, Bank on the 1lst January 1921, and finally the ANZ Bank
on the lst October 1970.3

l. Australian Builders and Contractors News 26.1.1889 p.97, 23.2.1889
p.194.

2. See B. Trethowan "A Study of Banks in Victoria 15851-1939"
December 1976,

3. A.N.Z. Bank archivist.




A.N.Z. Bank, 370-374 Queens © (Couaca.

The composition, is emphasised by a hexagonal pyramidal roof .:i.l. =
finial~come-weather vane on top in iron. Small ornav:ntal crock. 3 run
down the top part of the ridges. On the lane elevatioun there are two
haunched brick chimneys with vertical preojecting kands and a small dormer
window. On the front and corner elevaticn there - » windows in the upper
{third) flaor which have gables cutting up thrs e v .f line. There
is no ind. :ation of original finials on these « :

The facade is divided up by painted horizoncal brics —.:.... These were
originally cream mcoulded cornice bricks, and the overall effect of the
composition has been greatly altered by the painting of this relieving

L. “ckwerk “agment-" .rch w.ndow heads are -~“so in brick with bowtell
Wwouls . e nlain and on t: - r two floors brick
aprcns ha., . .1Ow. . cae eaves line there is an =laborate pattern of

stepped out brickwork.

On the Queens Parade elevation, the entrance has been totally mocernised,
with two former bays combined to become a wide entrance door. There is
a moulded bluestone plinth to the base of the building which is now painted.

At the rear of the building the original cream relieving bricks are visible,
Cast iron rectangular section downpipes with interesting Gothic cast iron
~3in/water h~ads are fitted to the wall by trefoll Gothic brackets.

windo s 1 .ble at the back have upper sashe- “at+: lead light
winusws, - .. some pailntco pemes, There are four i-:=: her blind
cases. The intericr of the banking chamber has be taly morernised.
NAME ; Kingdom Cycle Works BDDRESS:
CONSTRUCTION DATE; 1204
ARCHITECT: unknewn
BUILDER: unknown
FIRST OWNER: Theodore Sabelberg
PRESENT OWNER. Mr. L. Tippit
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS: brick

CONSERVATION AREA: Al

BUILDING CITATION:
This shop, constructed in 1904l as a bicycle shop, retains its original
use. The facade is simple. The shop front is largely intact, but the
verandah has been removed. Large brackets project at the string course
lines, terminated by lions heads at the ground flecor. The pediment is
simple with the name-plate flanked by incised pilasters and surmounted
by a Greek revival pediment. The whole composition is pleasing and
restrained.

RECOMMENDATIONS :
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clauvse 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule) .

1. Fitzroy Ratebock 1904 Brick shop 4 rooms {35. Theodore Sabelberg,
Bicycle builder.
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NAME ; Former Shop ADDRESS; 123 Rae Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1887
ALTERATICNS: verandah removed
ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWHER: Betsy Caton
PRESENT OWNER: Geoff Luke
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: red brick

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION:

This corner two storey brick building was constructed in 1887l as a
butcher’s shop. The corner verandah has been removed but the facade

is substantially intact. The shop windows are simple with delicate

cast ireon stallboards, and surmounted by four pane lights at the window
head. The composition is broken by the string course at dividing line

and capped by the cement rendered cornice and unmodelled parapet corner
console brackets terminate the string course lines at both levels. The
chimneys are intact. This building is a strong corner streetscape element.

RECOMMENDATIONS: )
It is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

l. Fitzroy Ratebook 1887 brick shop, 8 rooms £7O Betsy Caton (owner),
Alfred Caton, butcher (occ).

NAME : Former Temperance Hall ADDRESS : 270 Rae Street

CONSTRUCTICN DATE: 1884

ARCHITECT : unknown

BUILDER: William Spurr?

TIRST OWNER: William Spurr, builder
PRESENT OWNER: G. & A. Sabljak
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered masonry

CONSERVATICON *AREA: -
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Former Temperance Hall, £/U maw Stavwwp .--

BUILDING CITATION:

This two storey hall was built in 1884.1 The facade is distinguished by
a complete trabeated system represented on the facade in pilasters of

the Tuscan and Corinthian orders and by delicate gegmental window hoods
in the upper storey. The ground floor pilaster to the left of the door
has been removed. The facade is surmounted by a delicate dentillated
cornice, and broken by a string course at the dividing line. The central
double doorway is framed by an archivolt broken by a keystone. There is
a delicate circular pattern immediately below the window sill. The whole
effect is one of simplicity and refinement. This hall was built after
the adjoining houses and provides a strong terminating element to a simple
row of two storey terrace houses.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this building be retained on the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1, Fitzroy Ratebook 1884 brick hall 480 William Spurr, contractor.

NAME : Terrace ADDRESS: 16-20 Rowe Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888
ALTERATION/

ADDITIONS:

ARCHITECT: unknowr

BUILDER. unknown

FIRST OWNER: Henry Bond
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATIOW AREA:

BUILDING CITATION:

This group of three terrace houses erected in 18881 is an extremely good
example of an externally near intact arcaded terrace. The terrace is
comprised of two levels of almost identical design - Corinthian columns
supporting a semi-circular arcade. The columns however are wider on the
ground fleoor. In both cases the arch is defined by a simple architrave
moulding and in the space subtended above a decorative motif. There is

a balustrade to the first floor. The parapet employs a cutout oval frieze
and central pediment, with urns over the party walls. The pediment of the
left terrace is missing as is the urn cn tne extreme right). The overall
sense cf intactness is heightened by the cast iron single palisade fence )
set between a series of rendered dividing fences with graceful curves and ]
rendered fence posts.

The group provides a very strong streetscape element on account of its
dominent scale and the elaborate nature of surfaces and spaces. '

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this terrace of three houses should be added to the
Register of the National Estate and specified under Clause 8 of the Town
an¢ Country Planning Act (Third Schedule} .

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1888 brick houses 7 rooms each, f£30.
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NEME:  House ADTRESS; 3 one Street
ConSTRUCTION TATE; le. -

L ENITIONS verandah removed
Lt RS unknown
BULL._. . unknown .
FIRST CWNER: Elizabeth Hurst
PRESENT OWHER: J. & V. Morgan

NSTRUCTT 0N

IRIBI: =olvchrome brick, slate

JUILDING CI7 A'TON:

This houie was constructed together with number 37 for Elizabeth Hurst

in 1881, It is a polychrome house with a typical asymmetrical polygonal
bay, but with (at the opposite end) an unusual second storey of one room
wnich may be a later additicn. "It is in a composition too heavy to be
picturesgue. COne of the chimneys has intact decorative chimney pots and
is of an extended height to proj-. :t higher than the tower. The front

verandah has been remove? and the iron polisade fence completely altered.
The interior has been mc - *nised.

This house is of loce™ . ; Iposicio. cimple
polychraome Ttalianate tower p. .. .- our.t=_ balance ¢ the projescting
polygonal bay.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this house be specified under Clause 8 of the Town
and Country Planning Act (Third Schec-..:'.

1. Fitzroy Ratsrock 1881 Brick house 7 rooms Elizabeth Hurst (owner)
John A. Brock (occ.} L60. (It was not possible to detect the
addition of the tow ).

NAME: House ADDRESS ; 37 Rowe Street
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1881 ;
ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Elizabeth Hurst

PRESENT OWNER: R, & N. Harper

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS::

CONSERVATION AREA: A2

BUILDING CITATION: Ry = ¥ 2

This house was censtructed in 1881l for Elizabeth BEurst and occupied by
Rcbert Chamberlain, a gentleman. It is a finely detailed polychrome
brick house with an asymmetrical projecting polygonal bay. The verandah
has an cgee profile roof and is decorated by a delicate cast iron frieze.
The cast iron fence, with elaborate gate posts, is intact.

RECOMMENDATICNS :

It is recommended that this house be specified under the Town and Country
Planning Act (Third Schedule),

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1881 Brick house 6 rooms and stable £58. Elizabeth
Hurst (cwner), Robert Chamberlain gentleman (occ).
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HNAME: - Strome L2DDRESS : 78 Rowe Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1835

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Florence Symms

PRESENT QWNER;: J.C. & V.P, Morgan, G. Kclins
(Apartment House)

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: Polychrome brick

CONSERVATICN AREA: A2

BUILDING CITATION:

This elaborate two storey poclychrome house was constructed in 1895 for
Florence Syrms. It is surmounted by an elaborate parapet with a name
plate. The cast iron balustrade is of a late design using sunflower
notifs and diagonal bands.

The interior has some intact wood graining and crude modelled plaster work.
Like Moss Vale (225 McKean Street), this building provides an excellent
examgple of a two storey polychrome terrace house, The parapet to this
building is mere ornate introducing a pedimental motif which breaks into

the parapet. 225 McKean St provides a mocre harmcnious, balanced, restrained
compesition; this building prtvides ornate cast iron work and an elzborate
parapet, resulting in a more flamboyant design.

This exterior of this building is substantially intact and is in gcod conditon.
It provides a dominant streetscape element to this predominantly single storey
section of Rowe Street.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that this house be added to the Historic Buildings Register,
retained on the Register of the Naticnal Estate and be specified under Clause
8 of the Tcwn and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This house was constructed in 1895 for Florence Symms.l It is a decorative
two storey polychrome terrace surmounted by an elaborate parapet which
consists ¢of a name place "Strome” above which there is a panel of relief
work capped by a dentillated cornice and small pediment carrying acroteria.
above this there is & balustrade which has lost its corner urns, which is
broken in the middle by a barogue decorative motif capped with a scroll-like
pediment.

The cast ircn balustrade is of a late design using sunflower motifs and ]
diagonal bands. This design appeared in William Stephens Excelsior ]
Foundry Catalogue, Melbourne 1901.2 :
E.G. Robertson describes this design: 3
"In each panel is & sunflower in an urn, the diagonal probably represents

waves, while tcp right the life-giving sun shines down."

This cast iron panel design alsc appears on “'Marmion® and "Rothsay" in !
Morral Street, Parkville.

The interior has some intact wood graining and some crude mcedelled plaster
work.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1895 brick house 8 rooms {35. Florence Symms, g

2. E.G. and J. Robertson Cast Iron Decoration. A World Survey Thames and
Hudscon 1977 p.53

3. Ibid. p.395
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NAME; Pair ¢f houses ADDRESS: 39,41 Rushall Cres,

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1890

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown i
FIRST QOWNER: James Green
CONSTRUCTICN

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: B1lO

BUILDING CITATION:

These twe storey arcaded terraces ware gonstructed for James Green in 1890 o
and extendec and altered in 1892. The composition is somewhat heavy with

a large balustraded parapet linking the two houses. Numper 39 (Clifoon) "Th
3till has =he cement work partially intact, but number 31 (Frestoni has 2,
been painted and the balcony glaged. There 1s arcading ac zeth levels

Eollowed oy label moulds with tihe parapet at the frenc line I the balcony.

There are sguare secticned balusters at the balcony and parapet leval and the
spandrels at both levels are delicately detailed.

The overall facade treatment is heavy. These bulldings ars an important
streetscage element in Rushall Crescent.

RECOMMENDATIONS::
It is recommended that these nouses bhe 3
ana Country Planning Act (Third Scnedule

BUILDING ANALYSIS:
These two storey arcaded terraces were constructed in 1890 by James Green

They appear to hive been altered and extended in 1892 as the assessed annual
value increases and each house has 4 more rooms<. The composition is somewhat
hesvy with & large balustraded parapet linking the two houses. There is a
lxrye segmental arch pediment motif to each terrace, with archivolt mouldings
ard acrcteria. The decoration infilling the typanum has been removed on
number 41 and remains partially intact to aumber 39. Two square blocks (with
& square recessed panel in each) are positioned on either side of the recessed
name plate. Square sectioned balusters surround these motifs, The balls or
urns surmounting the parapet have been removed.

Humber 3% Rushall Crescent (Clifton) still has the cement work partially
intact, but number 41 (Preston) has been painted and the balcony glazed.

There is arcading at kboth levels with a parapet at the front line of the
balcony. The arcading is supported by cast iron columns. At the ground floor
there are Corinthian capitals of four castings in zinc fixed together at the
edges. The arcades at both levels are followed by label moulds terminated in
foliated crockets. On the ground flcor the arches are decorated by incised
voussoirs, with scroll keystones which follow through to the frieze above.
There are decorative spandrel panels between the arches.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 189C brick house 5 rooms £30.

2. Fitzyoy Ratebook 1892 brick house 9 rcoms £50,
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NAME : Rushall Park: 0ld Colonists Hones ADDRESS: Rushall Crescent

CONSTRUCTION DATE QF COTTAGES. 187C Cnwaxds

= CZlarke Cocttages” constructed 1380 "Felton Cottages" constructed 1821, 41-47 Coooin
znln Avenue Avenue. Architect: Joseph Crook.

2 ITLCTS:: various includingiG.R. Jehnsen, Joseph Crock, J. Camercn,
James A. Wood, CT.A. Cocwper, P.A., Qakley, Oaklev & Farkes,
Gawler 5 Trummcnd, Verner Fici eczc

SUILLLRE. Varicus incluaing:Clements Langicrd, David Mitcenell, Crane :
and Barker, R. Zeney, A. Relfs, W.H. Broderick, P.A. Dixen

COWBSERVAIILG ABRLEA: AG

RECOMMENTATIONS ¢

It is recommenced that & detailed study of this complex be undertaken. As a
raesult of & preliminary assessment of the complex, it is recommended that
all rre second world war bulldings be added to the Historic Buildings
Fegister and ke specified under Clause 8 of the Town & Country Planning

2ev (3rd Zchedule)y ., It is alse recommended that this complex bhe added

as Aapn ax=2 ¢ .ne Register of the National Estate.

BACKGROULD HISTORY:

In lse9 Gecorge Coppin fcounded tne 0ld Colonists Association cof

for the old settlers of Victoria. 1In 1870 a grant wasg maces to

- ciation of four and a half acres on the banks of the Merri Crssk.
Wext to this land, four and half acres were granted to the Austraziian
Muszical and Dramatic Assccliation, which had also been founded by Gzcrge
Coppin. In 1807, these twe Associations merged and the complex c¢f nine
acres hecame one institution. This settlement had no master plan but
evclved in an extraocrdinarily c¢rderly and functional manner.

[N

“he complex consists of several brick and stone cottages erectea from

iB70 until recent times., Each cottage has been privately donated, and

1s marked by a memorial stone. Coppin donated the earliest stone cottages
ard these were designed by G. Jcohnson.

Rushall park is a unigue ccmplex of national significance and is of great
architectural importance., The complex is unified by its superk gardens
and pilcturesgue architecture all on a domestic scale. Recently scme of
the old cottages were demolished tc be replaced by an unappropriate
modern structure. Any future additicns or any alterations to buildings
shcould be carefully considered.

EXTENT QF INVESTIGATION:

It was considered beyond the scope of th . brief to undertake a full
iristorical and architectural analysis of thisz c.iplox. & survey was
undertaken and all the buildings were photograpaed and recorded.




Rushall Park: 01d Colonists Homes, Rushall Creséent {Continued)

A transcription of all the building stones is attached to each building
sheet. & bibliography for the complex has been compiled. It is recommended
by the Consultants that a thorough architectural and historical analysis be
undertaken of this complex. The data collection undertaken here would
provide the basis for such a study.

The bibliography is attached below. The photographs of the complex are held
by the Fitzroy Council.

BIBLIOGRAPHY .

1, General Contemporary SOUrces:
J, smith (ed) Cyclopedia of Victoria
3 Volumes Melbourne 1903-04-05
{Volume' 1 Page 337 entry on 0l1d Colonists Assocciation).

2. Hewspapers and Periodicals:
Australian Builders and Contractors News
19.4,1890 Page 956. Contract open for erection of Lodge and Hall for
Cld Colonists Association (Victoria) Joseph Crook Architect.
13.7.1890 Foundaticn Stone "Sumner Lodge" laid, Joseph Creok,
Arcnitect.

Argus
292.6.1870 Page 3. Tenders wanted, erection of dwelling houses at
Merri Creek for 0Old Colonists Association. George Raymond Johnson
Architect.
26.2.1873 Page 3. Tenders wanted for completion of cottage at Merri
Creek for the Dramatic and Musical association. George Raymond
Johnson Architect.

Building
March 1926 Page 125-127
August 1927 Page 133
Semi detached cottages Gawler and Drummond Archltects

Building and Engineering Mining Journal
15.10.1892 Supplement Page 3. Tenders wanted for erection of four
brick houses. Joseph Crook Architect.

Illustrated Australian News
10.10.1870 Page 12. Design of Almshouses of the 0ld Cclonists Society,
Merri Creek (Perspective Sketches and Description).

Weekly Times
6.5.1205 Page 18. Laying foundation stone for "“Edwin M. James" and
"Charles Young" cottages; (four photographs).

3. Unpublished Thesis:
Andrews, Gilligan and McMahon "Rushall Homes, 0ld Ceolonists Asscciation®
History Essay B. Arch. University of Melbourne 126l. (Thesis analyses
development of complex includes a map ¢f the complex and some individual
plans.)

4. Architectural Drawings:
Vernon Collection, Ballarat
(1) James A. Wood. 1911 'Keep Cottage” for the 0ld Ccleonists
Association of Victoria. 1 water coleour working drawing;
1 copy of specification.

(ii) Hugh L. Peck and Arthur Peck. Two Cottages at North Fitzroy
for the ©1d Colonists Association.

Fitzroy Town Hall

(1) Proposed Alterations and Additions to Sumner Cottage, 01d
Colonists Association. Verner Fick A.I.A.A. 1 drawing and
specification.
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Rushall Park, 0ld Colenists Homes, Rushall Crescent (Continued)

lMelbourne University Archives

20 drawings of the 0ld Colonists Association by Joseph
Crook Architect.

i,

o

£
23]

Dean, Bower, Wills and Carnival Cottage 14-20 Coppin
Avenue. Architect: Jogeph Crook, Constructed 1898

Secretary's Office, formerly Association or Founders
Cottage, 12 Coppin Avenue, Constructed 1870

Architect: George Johnson
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NAME: Carnforth

CONSTRUCTION DATE:
ARCHITECT:
BUILDER:

FIRST OWNER:
PRESENT {WNER:
CONSTRUCT ION
ATERIALS :
CONSERVATIZH AREA:

R !
o
oot
fo
—

surlaeing, cowki

John Ashton, dairyman
Carrclil

storey.double fronted hou
i a The building iz of importan
original finishes.

with the doairs as
example oL & prosgerous home and comrerch
feature of the inner suwurbs.

mmended that this building ce added to the Register of tne
e and be swpecilied under Clause 8 of
Third “ciednie).
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NAME, Former 3t. Lukes Church

ADDRESS: 121

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1879

ADDITIONS: Brick chancel and vestry
added 1910

Crouch and Wilscn

James Xennedy

Church of England
Hungarian Reformed Church’

ARCHITECT:
BUILDER:
FIRST OWNER:
PRESENT OWNER:
CONSTRUCTION
MATERIELS : bluestone
CONSERVATICON AREA: Ab

BUILDING CTITATION:

Thi s chursh was ba

of Crouch and Wilson, 11 and ccnstructed by James Kennedy contraciocr
for [3,2553. The style is principally early English. The facade is in plue-
stcne Wit Ccream ‘ S cezment cars to the cutback of the

P

huttresses, The cnurch 1z composed of a main gable with four subsidiary
yacles running in frem the sice over the aisles. It was bullt to only twe-

- -
thirds ¢ its intended lencth.

In 1970 the churecn was sold to the EHungarian Rsformed Church, and the lntericr
has subseguently been painted and remodelled. The slim cuatref:il columns,
colcured glass ana dea! boarded ceiling are of interest internal i- but there
1s nothing else of note.

The caurch provides a strong vista point when viewed from St. Cscrges Road
nd BErunswick Street. The imposing rather heavy asymetrical facade with the

arge "witches hat” spire combine to make this a noteworthy lanamark. Ths
wl2w v Wetkins Street with the repetition of gables is unusuali.

= Q)

PRI - -
ShC o .

IR I

-2 =lat the external envelope of this bulliing be zdded to
i i1 Jegister, retained on the Register of the Naticrnal
oo .. - se aro andar Jlause 8 of the Town and Country FPlanning #ct
AN ER P

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

This cnurch was built in 1879 to the design of Crouch . and Wilson, architects
and constructed by James Kennedy .contractor for 53,250 . This 1is the second
5t. Lukes in North Fitzroy - a timber building was constructed in 18702 on

a reserve hetween George and Napier Streets, but it was soon realised that
the location was not ideal.> The present site was bought on 27th November,
1878 and the foundation of the present church laid in February, 1879. The
church was consecrated on 15th March, 1891.4

The church was built to only two-thirds of its intended length.
chancel and vestry were added in 1910.

The brick

1. Australasian Sketcher April 12 1879 p.b6.
2. Argus October 1 1870 p.2 tenders called.

3. D.C. McColl St.Lukes Church of England, N. Fitzroy; St. Marks Church of
England E. Fitzroy. B.Arch. University of Melbocurne 1967 p.94.

4. Ibid p.99.
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kmer St. Luke's Church (Contd.)

The Australasian Sketcher of April 12, 1879 described the building as
follows:-

"The Memorial Stone was laid in February 1879 at corner of Watkin
Street, St. Georges Rocad and Brunswick Street by the Right Rev.

Dr. Moorhouse. The building is In the early decorated style of
English architecture, and when completed will be 76' exclusive of
lobby and chancel. The portion already commenced is 51°'7" x 45’7
wide; the side walls at their lowest part being 23'6". The church
i1s open to the ridge which is 47' high from the floor, and is
finighed externally with ornamental cast iron cresting. The roof

is carried on 8 crnamental cast iron columns with feocllated capitals.
The tower at corner of Brunswick and Watkin Street rises toc a height
of 131' surmounted with an ornamental vane of wrought iron galvanised
and gilded. At tiie south east corner is a turret with a high slated
roof and ornamental cresting. Principal entrances are under the
tower and the turret, and between the two is a paved lobby, 6' wide
lighted by 4 windows of stained glass. Above these and lighting

the church over tne lobby is a large mulljon window, with smaller
ones on eacir side with geometric tracery. The material used in the
building is bluestone, relieved with white pressed bricks and
pressed cement. The cost of the building is estimated at £3,250
including tae seats and gas fittings. The architects are Messrs.
Crouch and Wilson, and the contractor is Mr, Jas. Kennedy."

The church is composed of a main gable with four subsiciary gables running
in from the side over the aisles. The front facade consists of a tower
at one corner projecting ocutwards in both directions, and a subsidiary
tower at the other corner which has a separate rocf, The smaller guasi-
fower has triangular gambrel vents let into a pitched steep hipped roof,
with a short ridge, capred by finials and irorwork. The main tower is
slightly primitive. BAbove the main base section there is a level with
two circular windows of gquatrefoil insets, then what appears to be the
bellcote level, a pair of Geothic pointed windows with louvre openings,
then a horizontal alimost Italianate eave with brackets. It has a crude
steep pyramidal rocf clad in metal sheeting with nothing to surmount the
top, not even a finial or a cross. It has a rather strange witch's hat
appearance.

The style is principally Early English. The facade is in bluestone with
cream brick dressings and cement caps to the set-back of the buttresses.
The smaller door at the left has one order of cement colonettes, the
larger door has two concentric orders of colonettes and label moulds
with foliatad crockets.

Internally the space is a complete rectangle with a raking floor and

very slim juatrefoil ircen columns supporting a pitched roof., Diagonal
deal pcarding runs over the whele, brcken only by intersections cof the
side ganles. There is an openwork timber arch running between the tops
of the cclumns and triangular vents are broken through into the main

gable section. Simple bands of coloured glass arcund the edges of the
windows are largely intact and may be original. The windows are pointed
Gothic with oculi above. The chancel end has been slightly more modified
with the panelling at dade height.
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NAME . Church of Christ ADDRESS: St. Georges Road

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1887

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: Church of Christ
PRESENT CWNER: Church of Christ
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: polychrome brick

CONSERVATION AREA. A5

BUILDING CITATION:
This church, built in 1887, is a simple single gable form polychrome-fronted
church. Constructed in brick the front facade is broken only by pilasters
projecting through the gable ends, corner pilasters and diamond patterns cf
cream brick. There is a central door flanked by two single Gothic windows
and surmounted by a three light window. The facade ig plain and unimposing,
but the building is an important streetscape element along St. Georges Road.

RECOMMENDATIQONS:

It is recommended that this churxrch be retalned on the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning Board (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS;: _ 1

This church, constructed in 1887 to the cost of £2,000° is a polychrome-
fronted church. The church survives remarkably intact and differs little
in appearance from an early photo of 19032,

The facade is broken up by two pilasters which rise up through the gable
end and support simple conical tops in cement work. There are buttresses
at the corners. Otherwise the front is flat in brown brick with rather
fussy diamcnds of cream brick picked out up the pilasters and buttresses
and zigzaging up the sides of the windows,

There is a central entrance door with a cement label mould terminating in
foliated crockets which are not identical. BAbove there is a three light
window (with cream brick window heads and hood moulds) unified by a single
label mculd across the three. The spandrel panel between the three arches
and the second large label mould arch is filled in with herring bone red
brick running horizontally. This central panel is flanked on either side
of the pilasters by single light Gothic windows, again with cement label
moulds and crockets. Above each window is a blind circular oculus with
herringbone brick work and a cement star filling up the oculus. The
ring around the oculus is formed in cream brick with four gquadrant
pyramidal keystones.

Bluestone steps run down to a section of intact tiled paving. There is an
intact cast iron picket fence in the front with hollow cast iron piers.
There is nothing of significance on the side and the plan is a plain
rectangle.

1. Fitzroy Free Press 12 February 1887.

2. Maston, A.B. (ed.) Jubilee Pictorial History of Churches of Christ in
Australasia Melbourne, Astral Publishing Co. 1903 p. 195.
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NAME: York House

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1877

ALTERATIONS: Verandah added c.12C0
ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: John Ward

PRESENT OWNER: R.B.Flanagan
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA; a5

BUILDING CITATION:

This two storey house, built in 1877 for John Ward, occupies an acute-
angled site. The building is simple in conception and is a comparatively
early building for this part of North Fitzroy. The verandah is a later
addition, probably added c.l1900. The house occupies a prominent corner
site. The simplicity of composition and understated detailing cormbine

to make this a pleasing bhuilding.

RECOMMENDATIONS: :

It is recommended that this house be retained on the Historic Buildings
Register, the Register of the National Estate, and be specified under
Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS:

The triangular piece of land on which the two storey building at 131 St.
Georges Road, North Fitzroy, now stands was owned in 1876 by James Ryan

and valued at £2l. The following yeaxr, 1877, John Ward is shown as owner
of a brick house of nine rooms valued at #45, Ward also owned the adjacent
brick house of five rooms valued at £282,

The building is on an acute-angled site, with the corner brought ocut in a
verandah and balcony. The entrance is on the St. Georges Road side. There
is a pair of arched windows with a common sill on the St. Georges Road
elevation, and a horizcntal band of an interlacing pattern containing
rosettes divides the two floors. The ironwork is of a late character and
the design is identical to a balcony panel which appears in the catalogue
of Excglsior Iron Works, South Melbourne, produced by William Sterhens in
c.19007.

A full internal inspection was not possible. However, the front room has
a pleasing marble fireplace with different coloured marble colonnettes.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1876. James Ryan land {z2.

2. Fitzroy Ratebeock 1877. John Ward, Gentleman (owner and cccupiler)
brick house 9 rooms 45,

3. G.R.Rchertson Victorian HeritagefGeorgian House‘Melbourne11960{
p.74 (Plate 64).
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NAME; Gladstone Buildings ADDRESS: 169-187 St. Georges Road

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888

ALTERATIONS: verandah removed, shop-
fronts altered

ARCHITECT unknown

BUILDER: James Holden

FIRST OWNER: various

PRESENT OWNER: various

CONSTRUCTION .

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: AS

BUILDING CITATICN:

This row of 10 two storey shops was constructed in 1888. The contractor was
James Holden. There appears to have been verandahs along the front but these
have subsequently been removed. Most of the shop fronts were probably
altered ¢.1920, and there is some leadlighting to the shop windows. There
have been some more recent shopfront alterations. The upper flcor facade,
with paired arch headed windows, is intact, but the original pediment has beeén
removed leaving only the corner aedicule with the name "Gladstcne Buildings
1888" and a bust of Gladstone.

This building is important as a streetscape compcnent in & local context.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this building be added to the Register of the National
Estate and specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act
(Third Schedule) .

BUILDING ANALYSIS: 1

A row of 10 two storey shops constructed in 18887 occupying an acute angled
corner site. There appear to have been street verandahs all the way aleng,
and most of the shop windows have been replaced, possibly in the 1920's, Some
windows have more recently been remodelled.

The first floocr however, 1s intact. Each shop has a pair of arch headed
windows. There is a simple dentillated cornice surmcunted originally by a
parapet or balustrade which has been removed and the top re-capped. This
leaves exposed in a rather strange way the corner aedicule containing a bust
of Gladstone, and the name "Gladstone Buildings". At the top of this corner
rnotif there were originally urns or balls, of which only the bases remain.

The only other noteworthy feature is that in the ground floor shop windows,
what looks like original timber work survives. At the top of all but the
corner shop front four long panels with curved timber corners are visible.
The corner shop ones may still be there under the sheeting.

The foundation stone adjoining the corner door reads "THE FOUNDATION STONE
OF THIS TERRACE OF SHOPS WAS LAID ON THE 30TH DAY OF NOVEMEBER, 1888 BY JOHN
McMAHCN, OF ALFRED CRESCENT NORTH FITZROY JAMES HOLDEN CONTRACTOR."

1. Foundation stone
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NAME: North Fitzroy Post Qffice ADDRESS: St. Georges Road

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1888

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST CWNER: Thomas Rogers ajent
PRESENT OWNER: Australia Post
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: rendered brickwork

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATICN:
This post office was originally constructed by Thomas Rogers,agent, and sold
to the Post Master General in 1908. This two storey building cccupies an
acute angled corner site and is extended to a third storey by an irregular
hexagenal tower. The facade treatment is extremely elaborate. There is a

full Corinthian order superimposed over the first flcor facade, and a con-
tinuous arcade tec the ground floor, with decorative scroll keystones, spandrel
panels and elaborate corbels.

The puilding forms a strong streetscape element, and iz cf a sorixing coun-
pesiticn,

RECOMMENDATIONS ;

This kbuilding is owned by the Commonwealth Government. 11t 1sg therefore
recommenced that the external facade and internal dzcorative features of
the ground floor ccrner office be brought to the attenticn of the Historic
Buildings Council. It is also recommended that this building be retained
on the Register cf the National Estate and be specilied under Clause 8 of
the Town and Country Planning Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS: 1

This_ building was originally constructed by Thomas Rogers,agent” . Between
1890~ and 1907 it was owned by the3Standard Building Society, and was scld
Lo the Post Master General in 19087,

This building occupies an acute angled corner site. It is of two storeys,
¢..cended by a third storey coxner irregular hexagonal tower.

4

The ground flccr facade is treated as a continuous arcade (with some blind
arches), with scroll like sections replacing keystones at the window heads.
Above the arches spandrel panels contain foliated decoration and are sur-
mounted Ly a frieze panel of crowns, heads, and foliated decoration.
Elaborats ~zrpels reflect the points where half columns rise from the first
floor.

The first flocor facade treatment consists of arched openings, with the
arches carried cn encaged Corinthian columns. The window architraves are
again broken by scroll work keysteones, and the spandrel panels are
foliated.

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1888 Thomas Rogers,agent, Brick Office 10 rooms £200.

2. Fitzroy Ratebook 1890 Standard Building Society (1889 Ratebook
missing) .

3. Titzroy Ratebook 1208 Post Master General.
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North Fitzroy Post Office, St. George's Road (Continued)

superimposed over this first floor facade treatment is a full Corinthian
order which supports at the centre of the long sides, a substantial
pediment (with acanthus leaf consoles running up the raking sides)

and smaller pediments at either-end of the facade. !

The ground and first floors are surmounted by a plain cornice. The L
frieze on the upper floor is elaborate with stucco reeds and garlands.
A lion is seated on the parapet which rises up over the pediment at
the side, and two couchant lions are placed above the smaller pediment
blocks.

The main internal area is divided intc two spaces with piers on either
side supporting a beam across. The ceilings are decorated with very
elaborate cornices, with certain sections perforated for ventilation,
possibly above the location of original gas sconce lamps. The piers
are fiuted with Corinthian capitals and elaborate anthemion and other’
decoration above.

The remaining rooms on the ground flocr internally are plain. The
stair case has an elaborate banister with unusual intact newel posts.

Upstairs the front corner rocom is substantially intact, although it has
been redecorated, including painting over the original relief wall
paper. There is an interesting variegated grey marble fire place.

The second room back is again intact but is totally redecorated with a
ventilating centre flower and a rather debased wooden chimney-pilece.
There 1is another chimney-piece in the next roem back. One large room
at the back on the St. George's Road side has what must have been a
similar mantle-piece again, but it has been painted out.

g e+ b e o
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HAME: North Fitzroy Fire Station ADDRESS : St. George's Road
CONSTRUCTION DATE: 19i2

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown -

FIRST OWWER: Matropelitan Fire Brigade

PRESENT QWHER: Metropolitan Fire Brigade

CONSTRUCT 10N

MATERIALS : red brick, cement trims

TONSERVATION AbEA: -

BUILDING CITATION:

This building, constructed in 1912l {possibly tc the design of Cedric
Baliantyne), is a brick composition in five bays relieved by rendered
strips, string lines, Corinthienesque capitals, and a broken upper
cornice and central barcgue pediment, It replaced an earlier timber
fire station built at this site in 1888 t¢ the design of George
Johnson.?r3- It is an important and intact example of a fire station
of the period. It has survived the tendency to widen entrance doors
with ceep concrete lintels and modern doors. Although not of the
scale of the earlier Soutn Melbourne Station, it still provides an
important streetscape element.

RECOMMENDATIONS.

It is recowmmencded that this building be added to the Register of the
Wational tstate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Planning Act (Thiré Schedule).

1. Barly pnotoyraph held at the State Library of Victoria. {See photo)

2. Australian Builder and Contractors News 14.7.1888. (Letting cf tenders
fer original Station, G.R. Johnsen, Architect.)

3. Early zhotograph of original timber Fire Station.

P-_—

H . —-T.r-—l - !
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{21} 014 Fitzroy North Fire Station ¢l880-91
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NAME: Aberdeen Hotel ADDRESS: 324 St. Georges Road

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1889

ALTERATIONS: 1938 - ground floor
altered X

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER: James Donovan

PRESENT OWNER: E.A. and M.M,McDonell
(occupiers)

CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS : rendered brickwork

CONSERVATICN AREA: ~

BUILDING CITATION:
This three storey hotel constructed in 1889 is of a fairly primitive
eclectic classical character. The unusual feature is the three bayed
verandah/balcony on the St. Georges Road side. The upper section remains
cpen {(with cast iron kalustrading replaced by wire mesh) kut the ground
floor is flush to the pavement and was extensively altered in 1938, The
rest of the buillding is elaborately but somewhat crudely detailed. The
windows on the north elevation and the large windows to the ground floor
were also altered in 1938. This building is of interest in a local context
only and provides a strong streetscape element.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that this building be added to the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town and Country
Plannirg Act (Third Schedule).

BUILDING ANALYSIS: 1

This three storey hotel building was constructed in 18897 on an angled site.
It is unusual for the three bays of verandah/kalcony on the 5t. Georges
Road side. The upper section remains open but the ground floor was altered
in 1938° when the hotel was extensively renovated. The ground floor corner
windows were also altered at this date. The cast iron balustrades have
been rerlaced by wire mesh but the iron friezes and brackets are still
intact. French deoors open from the bedrooms onto the balconies.

The remainder of the facade isinafairly primitive eclectic classical
manner. On the first floor there are three windows surmounted by a
horizontal window hoocd with brackets at either end. Breaking through

this are corbelled pilasters and half pillars which support a pediment
surmounted by a decorative acroterion, On the first and second floor level
on the Holden Street elevation there are twe arch headed windows with
engaged columns at either side. Roundels or paterae fill the spandrels on
either side of the arches and a cartouche or scroll replaces a keystone.
This is similar detailing to that employed by the architect Walter Scott
Law.

On the splayed corner, on the first and second floor levels there are
smaller arch headed windows which have similar cartouche keystone motif.
The whole row of ground floor arch windows on the Holden Street side also
have the scroll cartouche keystone. There is a balustraded parapet and

the bases remain of wrns. The chimneys are banked together and in one case
five flues are grouped together with semi-circular divisions according to
the Doulton patent.

1. Fitzroy Ratebooks 1889,

2. Draw%ngs held at the Fitzroy Town Hall. Four drawings of alterations.
Architects: Sydney Smith, 0gg and Serpell; Builder: A.H.Duncan.
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NAME: Fashoday ADDRESS:; 21 Woodside Street

— 2

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 19017

ARCHEHITECT: UNKnown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST QOWNER: Herbert Tabner
PRESENT OWNER: P.Nair and D.Haviland
CONSTRUCTION .
MATERIALS: polychrome brick

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION: 1

This single storey terrace house was probably constructed in 1901. The
facade is intact with colonettes and etched glass side lights to the
central window and a dentillated transom bar surmounting the door. The
verandah, with an ogee profile roof, is decorated by an.elaborate, late
cast iron frieze with brackets. The parapet is supported on a cornice
terminated by projecting heads at either end. The pediment motif is
ornate with a name plate with "Fashoday"” in relief, an elaborate scallop
shell, roundels in relief around the archivolt and an acreoterion, scrolls
and draped urns. The double palisade cast iron fence is intact. The whole
effect is lush but the composition is not as balanced or refined as 77
McKean Street.

RECGMMEJDAT IONS :

Tt is recommended that this building be specified under Clause 8 of the
Town and Country Planning Bct (Third Schedule) .

1. Fitzroy Ratebocok 1901 Brick house 4 rooms {22 Eerbert Tabner (owner)
Robert Smyth Moore, Lawyer (occ.)

NAME: House ADDRESS; 61 ¥York Street

CONSTRUCTION DATE; 1876

ARCHITECT: unknown

BUILDER: unknown

FIRST OWNER. Michael Cecnnell
PRESENT OWNER: Frank Benvenuto
CONSTRUCTION

MATERIALS: - rendered masonry

CONSERVATION AREA: -

BUILDING CITATION:

This simple single gabled double fronted house was constructed in 1876,
and is a relatively early dwelling for North Fitzroy. It is a small and
elegant cottage with a symmetrical front of agreeable proportions built

hard on the street alignment, a type of which few remain, although once
common .

1

The eaves line is simple with brackets supporting the gutter. The only
decoration is the projecting blocks with faces supported on consoles at
the gutter ends. The two chimnevs are intact,

"RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this house be retained on the Register of the
National Estate and be specified under Clause B8 of the Town and Country
Planning Act (Third Schedule).

1. Fitzroy Ratebook 1876 Brick house 4 rooms £20 Michael Comnell,
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APPENDIX 1: SoURCES OF INFORMATION .

1. CONTEMPORARY SQURCES

1.1 Manuscript and Archival.

City of Fitzroy Ratebooks. Ratebooks are held 1858 onwards
(with some missing) . Ratebooks mostly 1870 opnwards were used
for this report. These change in information, numbering and
mode of description, thus making some buildings difficult to
trace. Ratebook searches are included in Appendix 3 of this

report.

1.2 Directories.

Sands and McDougall Directories held at LaTrobe Library were
referred to,

1.3 Maps.

Melbourne Metropolitan Board of Works Survey Maps 1897, 1901.
Scale 160 feet to 1 inch and 40 feet to 1 inch.

Plans held at the Central Plans Office, Crown Lands & Survey
Department. Maps held at University of Melbourne, Baillieu
Library.

1.4 Newspapers and Periodicals.

Time did not allow thorough searching of this source. However, ;
entries on North Fitzroy found in the Architects Index
(currently held at the Architecture Library, University of
Melbourne) were referred to. These are noted in Section Three
Building Inventory.

1.5 Illustrations.

Very few early illustrations of North Fitzroy were discovered.
Reference was made to the Historical Picture Collection at the
La Trobe Library. There is a collection of early photos
(unlabled and unsorted) held at the Urban Planning Office,
Fitzroy Town Hall - these are mostly of South Fitzroy. Sources
of illustrations are noted for each building in Secticn Three
Building Inventory.

1.6 Architectural Drawings.

(1) The University of Melbourne Archives holds some early
architectural plans of buildings in North Fitzroy.
These include the following drawings (from the Clements
Langford Collection } :
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Commando Industries, North Fitzroy.
Excelsior Broom, Park Street, North Fitzroy.
Premises of Mr. R. Goldring, 321 St. Georges Road,
- North Fitzroy.
Premises of Mr. C.E. Millar, Brunswick Street,
North Fitzroy.
01d Colonists Association, North Fitzroy.

(ii) Collection of old plans and specifications held at the
Fitzroy Town Hall. These are uncatalogued and date
from the 1930's. After a random search, some plans of
buildings in North Fitzroy were located. These are
noted in the Section Three, Building Inventory.

(iii) Collection of early drawings held by L.H. Vernon and
Associates at Ballarat. These include :

. 1 plan and specification of 'Keep Cottage',
Architect James A. Wood, for the 01d Colonists
Association of Victeria (1911).

1 plan of two cottages, Architects Hugh and

Arthur Peck, for the 01d Colonists Association of
Victoria. TUndated.

Books

E. Finn ("Garryowen"). The Chronicles of Early Melbourne 1835-52
Centemial Edition. 2 Vols. Melbourne 1888.

A.B. Maston (Ed). Jubilee Pictorial History of Churches of Christ
in Australasia. Melbourne Astral Publishing Coc. 1903. (p. 195
North Fitzroy Church of Christ}.

Natiocnal Bank of Australasia Ltd. Souvenir of the Jubilee of the
Bank 1858-1908. Melbourne 1909, (p.49 Photograph of the

Clifton Hill Branch opened 5th January, 1884.)

J. Smith (ed). Cyclopedia of Victoria 3 Vols. Melbourne 1904-5.

A. Sutherland. Victoria and its Metropolis Vols. 1 and 2.
Melbocurne 1888.

J.M. Tait. Our Local Men of the Times: Biographical Sketches

of the Prominent Citizens of Collingwood and Fitzroy. Melbourne
1889.

LATER WORKS.

Bocks, Pamphlets and Articles.

B. Barrett. The Inner Suburbs; The Evoluticn of an Industrial
Area., M.U.P, 1971.

Education Department of Victoria. Vision & Realisation - A
Centenary History of State Education in Victoria. 3 Vols. 1973.

'Fitzroy'. & manuscript compiled by members of the Urban
Conservation Advisory Committee to the Fitzroy Council. 1971.
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2.2

Fitzroy City Council. A Centenary of Change: City of Fitzroy
1878 ~ 1978, Prepared by the Fitzroy City Council 1978.

B. Trethowan. 'A Study of Banks in Victoria 1851 - 1939

for the Historic Buildings Preservation Council. December 1976.

Unpublished Theses.

Andrews, Gilligan and McMahon,

“Rushall Homes, Old Colonists Association.
B. Arch. University of Melbourne 1961.

. ] if
M. Bernardi,‘ Art Nouveau Architecture in Melbourne. B. Arch.
University of Melbourne 1968.

M. Davidson,“Balconies of North Fitzroy:f B. Arch.
University of Melbourmne. 1968.

W.L. Jacobs, " Cedric Heise Ballantyne, 1876-1957.

Investigation Programme, B, Arch. University of Melbourme 1975.

D. McColl,uSt. Lukes Church of Englaqd, North Fitzroy;
St. Marks Church of England, Fitzroy. B. Arch. University of
Melbourne 1967.

P. Navaretti, "Index of Architects and their Work 1900_1940f
B, Arch. University of Melbourne, 1971.

C.P. Smith, Fitzroy, Investigation Project, B. Arch,
University of Melbourne 1977 - includes a history of North
Fitzroy and a Conservation Plan for the Brooks (rescent area.

Cole Collection, Manuscript of Hotel Licences held at the
LaTrebe Library, State Library of Victoria.
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APPENDIX 2:

(1)

(ii)

(1ii)

Buildings in North Fitzroy on the Historic Buildings Register

96 McKean Street
Uniting Church, Nicholson Street
131 St. George's Road

Buildings in North Fitzroy on the Register of the National Estate

43 Alfred Crescent

"Riverside Villa®" 557 Brunswick Street

591 Brunswick Street

96 McKean Street

"Dentonville" 151 McKean Street

“"Denteon Hall" rear 151 McKean Street

Uniting Church, Nicholson Street

Naticnal Bank, 270 Queens Parade

A.N.Z. Bank, 370 Queens Parade

270 Rae Street

"Strome"” 78 Rowe Street

0ld Colonists Homes - Feounders and Associatien Cottages
Hungarian Reform Church, 121 St. George's Road
York House, 131 St. George's Road

Post Office, St. George's Road (cnrx. Taplin Street)
61 York Street

Buildings classified and recorded by the National Trust of
Australia (Vic.)

C - Classified R =~ Recorded

1lé, 18 Alfred Street - R

19, 21 Alfred Crescent - R

43 pifred Crescent - C

Jam Factory, Birkenhead Street - R

Shop, 497 Brunswick Street - R

"Riverside Villa" 557 Brunswick Street - C

591 Brunswick Street - C

599 Brunswick Street - C

“Valencia" 716 Brunswick Street - R

39 Kneen Street - R

96 McKean Street - C

“Dentonville" 151 McKean Street - C

"Denton Hall" rear 151 McKean Street - R

"Moss Vale" 225 McKean Street - R

"Haslemere " 227 McKean Street - R

Uniting Church, WNicholsen Street - R

118 Queens Parade - R

A,N.Z. Bank, 370 Queens Parade - C

270 Rae Street - C

78 Rowe Street - C

125 Rowe Street - R

39, 41 Rushall Crescent - R

45 Rushall Crescent - R

63 Rushall Crescent - R

0ld Colonists Homes, Rushall Crescent - C: Founders and
Association Cottages

Hungarian Reform Church, 121 St Georges Road - R

"York House" 131 St. Georges Road - C

Post Office, St. Georges Road (cnr. Taplin Street) - C

18 Woodhead Street - R

61 York Street - R
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APPENDIX 3:

INDEX OF IDENTITIES

12.
13.

14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.

28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34,

35.
36.

37.
38.
39.
40,

42.
43,
44,
45.
46,
47.

Allen, Mark, photographer
Arnold, James,

Ashton, John, dairyman
Ashton, R.B. dairyman

Ballantyne, Cedric, architect
Bell, J. builder

Beswicke,J. architect
Billing, N. & Son, architect
Bond, Henry

Britten, G.

Broderick W.H., builder
Brook, John A.

Browne, Octavius

Cameron, J., architect

Caton, Betsy & Alfred, butcher
Cahmberlain, Robert

Chevalier, Thomas, builder
Clarke, Captain Andrew
Cochrane and Scott

Coney, R., builder

Connell, Michael

Coppin, George

Corben, Emmanuel, Isaac and J.B., stonemasons
Cowper, C.A.

Crane & Barker, builders
Crook, Joseph, architect
Crouch and Wilson, architects

Dainton,A.E., architect
Denton, John, auctioneer
Dixon, P.A. and Scns, builders
Donovan, James

Donly, James

Douglas, W.H., builder

Duncan, A.H., builder

Eddington, Mary
Ellen, C.E., jam manufacturer

Falconer, John

Fergie, William, solicitor
Fick, Verner, architect
Forbister, James, dentist
Fortune, builder

Gage, Henry, furniture manufacturer
Garrity, William

"Garryowen"

Gawler & Drummond, architects
George, Henry

Green, James
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91
87
126
108

136

84-85

83-94
119

45
123
12¢C

10

123
118
120
99
13
86

138

123

104

123

123
123-124-125
127-128

84
102-103
123

137

83

84

137

83
83

15

74
123-124
100

109

83

74
13-15

123-124

100

122
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48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.

56.

57.
58.

59.
60.
6l.

62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.

€68.

69.
70.
71.
72.
73.

74.
75.
76.
77.

78.
79.
80.
81.

82.
g83.
84.
85.
86.
87.
88.
89.
90.
91.
92.
23.
54.
5.
96.

97.
98.
99.
100.
101.

Hall, Murray, builder
Harrison, Charles, salesman
Hobbs, William, coach builder
Holden, James, builder
Holgate, William -
Hoskins & Sons, builders
Hurst, Elizabeth

dyvans, Henry, bootmaker

Iwan, D.R. and Co.

Johnson, G.R., architect
Joyson, Thomas

Kelly T.A., architect
Kennedy, Jas, builder
Kent, William, architect

Laing, Charles, architect
Langford, Clements, builder
Lazarus, Sanuel, financier
Lever, Mrs., publican

Levens W.T. (Senior & Junior)
Lloyd, Reginald T.,

Norman Shaw, Richard, architect

Oakden, Percy, architect

Oakden, Addison & Kemp, architects
Oakley P.A., architect

Oakley & Parkes, architect
0O'Connell, Geofrey, builder

Pecke, L. and Arthur, architects
Phillip Bros., builders

Pinsent, Thomas, painter
Pithard, A., contractor

Rogers, Thomas, agent
Rolfe, A., builder
Rowe, Henry, builder
Ryan, James,

Sabelberg, Theodore, bicycle builder
Slew, John

Smith, Ewvan, architect

Smith & Johnson, architects

Spurr, William, builder

Stephens, William, ironfounder

Sydney, Smith,0gg & Serpell, architects

Symms, Florence

Swanston Bros., builders
Tabner, Herbert

Teague, William, contractor
Terry & Cakden, architects
Tucker, Albert Lee,

Twentyman, Edward, architect
Tyree, W.A., architect

Ward, John

Watson, David, dentist
Wilson, Corben & Co., slate merchants
Wood, James A.,

Wright and Lucas, architects
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104
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84
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75
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104-109
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75-76

11s

111
116
123
123
79-80

124

79-80
86

113

134
123
101
132

117
15
86
84
118-112
106
113-137
121
20
138
78
111
106
92
114
132
75
104
123
112-113

pa r*‘_\;;‘

J@

:
|

e e T or e

T T 3

D e e S el n ettt vt 03

—— e - L oaen -
o wem Ll .

e e et




	Ackowledgements
	Study Team
	Contents
	List of Illustrations
	Part 1: Introduction and Recommendations
	1.1 Introduction and Objectives
	1.2 Definition of Study Area
	1.3 Summary of Recommendations
	1.4 Historical Background - The Development of North Fitzroy

	Part 2: Conservation Areas and Streetscapes
	2.1 Introduction
	2.2 Area Survey Method
	2.3 Conservation Areas
	A1 Queens Parade Precinct
	A2 Rowe St Precinct
	A3 Newry St Precinct
	A4 McKean St North Precinct
	A5 Alfred Cres Precinct
	A6 Old Colonist Home Precinct
	A7 Batman St Precinct
	A8 Kneen St Precinct
	A9 Edwards Pl Precinct
	A10 Delbridge St Streetscape
	A11 Scotchmer St Streetscape
	B1 Brunswick St South Precinct
	B2 Colman St South Precinct
	B3 Brooks Cres Precinct
	B4 Brunswick St North Precinct
	B5 Scotchmer Street Precinct
	B6 Best St Precinct
	B7 Park St Precinct
	B8 Bennett St Precinct
	B9 Delbridge St Precinct
	B10 Precinct Ajoining Old Colonist Homes
	B11 Queens Parade Streetscape
	B12 McKean St Streetscape (1)
	B13 McKean St Streetscape (2)
	B14 McKean St Streetscape (3)
	B15 Rae St Streetscape (1)
	B16 Church St Streetscape
	B17 Rae St Streetscape (2)
	B18 Reid St Streetscape
	B19 Rae St Streetscape (3)
	B20 Egremont St Streetscape
	B21 Birkenhead St Streetscape
	B22 Napier St Streetscape

	Part Three: Building Inventory
	3.1 Buildings Requested for Investigation
	3.2 Building Identification and Analysis

	Appendix 1: Sources of Information
	Appendix 2:
	Appendix 3:

